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DRUGS AND THE CITIES: 'fHE FEDERAL 
RESPONSE 

TUESDAY, JUNE 30, 1992 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, 
SELECT COMMITTEE ON NARCOTICS ABUSE AND CONTROL, 

Washington, DC. 
The committee met, pursuant to call, at 11:30 a.m., in room 2226, 

Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Charles B. Rangel (chairman 
of the committee) presiding. 

Members present: Charles B. Rangel, chairman; Lawrence 
Coughlin, Christopher Shays, James A. Traficant, Jr., James M. 
Inhofe, Michael G. Oxley, Kweisi Mfume, Edolphus "Ed" Towns, 
Benjamin A. Gilman, Robert K. Dornan, Nita M. Lowey, Jim Ram­
stad, and Donald M. Payne. 

Staff present: Edward H. Jurith, staff director; Peter J. Coniglio, 
minority staff director; James Alexander, press secretary; George 
R. Gilbert and Michael J. Kelley, staff counsel; Rebecca L. Hed­
lund, professional staff; Melanie T. Young, minority professional 
staff; Mary Frances Valentino, minority staff assistant; Christina 
Stavros, administrative assistant; and Marianne Koepf, staff assist­
ant. 

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. CHARLES B. RANGEL, CHAIRMAN 

Mr. RANGEL. We have a full committee, and I must say, in look­
ing over the witness list, it must be because we have the mayor 
from Tampa here. [Laughter.] 

But before we start, and recognizing that the ranking Democrat 
on the Ways and Means Committee has another appointment, and 
recognizing further that the enterprise zone bill is going to be 
before the committee and we're depending on your leadership and 
support, suppose the chairman of this committee yields to the 
ranking chairman of Ways and Means. 

Mr. GIBBONS. Well, Mr. Rangel, I certainly appreciate that. I 
came this morning to introduce Mayor Sandra Freedman of the 
city of Tampa. Mayor Freedman is sitting right here by me, and I 
don't know exactly what that color is--color blindness runs in my 
family, but I think you will all recognize her. 

Mr. Chairman and committee members, Mayor Freedman has 
done an outstanding job. She was elected to the city council a 
number of years ago, became the chairman of the city council, and 
then was elected mayor and, with the resources she could corral lo­
cally, she put together a very effective antidrug program. 
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She will describe it to you. I know it works. I know that she is 
chiefly responsible for it, that.it was her leadership and imagina­
tion, and her ability to organize and get things done that made the 
Tampa antidrug program so successful. 

So, I want to introduce her to you, and recommend her very 
highly, and I know that you will find her testimony worthwhile. 

Mr. RANGEL. Thank you, Chairman Gibbons, and we will hear 
from the distinguished mayor from Tampa as well as the other 
mayors. We are concerned as to the relationship between the drug 
problem and those who have the responsibility of managing our 
urban communities. 

And we are really very pleased that the Secretary of Housing 
and Urban Development is here today. In the past, we've had very 
little housing, and even less urban development-but we've had a 
lot of excitement, and a lot of ideas, and a lot of concern, and a lot 
of prodding, and somehow, because of what has happened in Los 
Angeles, once again our Nation's leaders downtown as well as on 
the Hill recognize that we need to treat the people in the cities as 
though they are a part of the United States of America. 

Until we are willing to invest in our urban communities with the 
commitment we do have for plant and equipment, until we provide 
incentives for people to come into these communities and help to 
rebuild them, then America would not have been responsive. 

The Office of Management and Budget, in a very unemotional 
way, has notified the Ways and Means Committee, and this com­
mittee, that every year we lose $300 billion as a result of our alco­
hol and drug problems and the added costs for health care, and the 
justice system, and jailing these people, and through lost revenue 
as well as lost productivity. 

I really think that under Jack Kemp's leadership everyone has 
now focused on this issue. The question is, what are we going to 
do? What can we do? And the hour is late. 

And, so, I cannot think of a more fitting witness to have at this 
time and place on our legislative calendar; I'd like to yield to my 
friend and colleague and ranking member on this committee who 
will be leaving us in the next session, but has certainly made an 
outstanding contribution, and his record will follow him with great 
pride no matter what he decides to do when he leaves the U.S. Con­
gress, and I'm speaking, of course, of the ranking Republican, 
Larry Coughlin. 

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. LAWRENCE COUGHLIN 

Mr. COUGHLIN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I appreci­
ate those words, and join you in welcoming Secretary Kemp and 
the distinguished panel of mayors, as we review the national drug 
control strategy on tn.'i1 local level. 

I would like to note that we have among the mayors, Mayor 
Althaus, of York, PA, who is the president of the U.S. Conference 
of Mayors. I want to particularly welcome my home Sta.te mayor 
here. We are glad to have all of you here. 

Certainly, the administration has made a major commitment to 
the antidrug effort in terms of funding. It's been increased by some 
93 percent, from $4.6 billion in 1988 to approximately $13 billion in 
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1993. In terms of drug use, casual use is at its lowest level since the 
Government began collecting figures on drug usage in the 1970's, a 
decline of about 13 percent, which continues an overall trend of de­
creased casual use by about 45 percent since 1985, but we still have 
a problem in the hardcore drug use. 

The administration has requested $1.2 billion in fiscal year 1993, 
to address the problems of hardcore use through targeted programs 
in prevention and treatment. In particular, the Justice Depart­
ment's Weed and Seed Program provides a comprehensive multi­
agency approach to combating violent crime and drug use. 

Mr. Secretary, we know that you've been a great advocate of 
community action against drug dealers in public housing. Just a 
few weeks ago, the select committee held a hearing on community­
based antidrug groups, and we were deeply impressed by what a 
few neighbors were able to accomplish with a little bit of planning 
and a lot of determination. 

The committee was told of how community efforts to start patrol 
groups, to clear trash out of the streets, to coordinate and share in­
formation with local police, to enact local laws to prevent loitering, 
to close down bars or clubs which serve as havens to drug dealers, 
and to evict those tenants who illegally use their homes to deal in 
drugs, can transform a neighborhood. 

I welcome your thoughts, Mr. Secretary, on what the Federal 
Government can do to help these local groups take back their com­
munities from the criminals and the drug dealers. We look forward 
to hearing your testimony. 

Mr. KEMp. Thank you. 
Mr. RANGEL. I would ask the members whether they would con­

sent to have their written statements entered into the record, so 
that all of us would have an opportunity to inquire of the Secre­
tary. He has limited time, and I have no idea what he's going to 
say. I hope it is not the press release--

Mr. KEMP. Nor does my staff. [Laughter.] 
Mr. RANGEL. There was a press release that arrived yesterday, 

but I'm certain that the testimony today would be a little different. 
In any event, I hope you feel free, Mr. Secretary, to bring us up to 
date as to where you think we are, with your recommendations to 
the administration and the Congress as relating to enterprise 
zones. Thank you for coming, we appreciate it. 

STATEMENT OF JACK KEMP, SECRETARY OF HOUSING AND 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

Mr. KEMP. Well, I'm pleased to be here, Mr. Chairman, and let 
me compliment you and the committee for the ongoing efforts that 
you have made to highlight the cost to this country of failing to 
address the drug problem, the problems of poverty and despair in 
the inner cities of America. Let me add my word of welcome from 
you and Mr. Coughlin, to Mayor Althaus, the new president of the 
U.S. Conference of Mayors; along with Mayor Rice of Seattle and 
Mayor Freedman of Tampa. 

I know all these mayors personally. I have been in their cities. 
I'm looking forward to going to York. I know Maryann Mahaffey, 
the president of the Detroit City Council. Maryann is a Democrat 
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and I'm a Republican, but she thinks right about what it's going to 
take in Detroit to give people hope, to give people opportunity, to 
give people a sense that there's an alternative to the streets, an al­
ternative to wasting one's mind and one's life in alcohol and drugs. 

So, I don't come before you, Mr. Chairman, as an expert. You are 
an expert. I'm just the new kid on the block, so to speak. 

I learned about drugs from Virginia Wilkes, of Richard Allen 
Public Housing in North Philly. The very first trip I took as HUD 
Secretary in the Bush administration, after visiting the King 
Center in Atlanta was to North Philly to visit with the folks at 
Richard Allen Public Housing. 

The tenant management leader at Richard Allen is a young, 
black woman by the name of Virginia Wilkes. She has two, I think, 
children, maybe one, and she showed me around Richard Allen and 
taught me more about drugs and the problems of public housing 
communities, and the problems of inner cities in America, than 
any book, any movie, any testimony. 

After visiting the Head Start Program, Mr. Rangel, at Richard 
Allen Public Housing in Philadelphia-and, Larry, I know that you 
know of this community-the Head Start Program had the most 
precious asset that America has, in that room-those precious little 
babies, those precious souls, those incredible young boys and girls 
to whom this country is going to look to the future for political, 
military, business, educational, academic, and artistic talent. 

We walked out of the Head Start Program, in which I had the 
honor of meeting, thanks to Virginia Wilkes, about 25 of the chil­
dren in the Head Start Program. I've got great testimony, Mr. 
Chairman. Tonight, if you want to put yourself to sleep and you're 
having trouble, just read Kemp's testimony and it will knock you 
right out. But I'm not going to use my testimony. I know this 
drives everybody at OMB up the wall, but I'm here because I think 
the hour is late, Mr. Chairman. I think there's a crisis-

Mr. RANGEL. We'll waive your testimony, and-­
Mr. KEMP. Throw it in the--
Mr. RANGEL [continuing]. It will be entered into the record. 
Mr. KEMP. That's where it belongs. Maybe someday someone in 

absentia will read it, but right now I just want to speak from the 
heart because I think what you said, Mr. Rangel, that drugs and 
alcohol are costing this country up to $300 billion or more-or 
more-I don't know what the cost is of incarcerating a young man 
or woman-the estimates run from $40,000 just for food and securi­
ty, to $80,000 when you combine the loss to the economy, the loss 
to the neighborhood, the loss to the Nation, but whether it's 
$40,000, $80,000, or $100,000, it really is a graphic illustration, as 
you point out consistently, Mr. Rangel-Charlie, from now on-the 
cost to our society exceeds even the $300 billion that you talked 
about and have so eloquently expressed. 

Now, getting back to Virginia Wilkes. When we walked out, it 
was a cold February day in 1989. I'd been Secretary of Housing for 
about a week and a half. It was a very cold Friday afternoon, and 
we walked out of the Head Start Program, which I support, you 
support, there isn't a member on this body, from Ben Gilman on 
the left to K weisi Mfume and Ed Towns-are you on the left or the 
right, Ed?-that doesn't believe that Head Start and early child-
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hood intervention and prevention are absolutely essential ingredi­
ents to any effort to bring hope to our communities and cities, 
whether they are in urban or rural America. So, let's just put that 
aside for a moment. 

I walked out of the Head Start Program, Jim, and here were 
three guys standing over next to a barrel, doing what, I thought 
was warming their hands on a cold Friday day, and I said, "Oh, 
isn't that nice, Virginia, those guys over there warming their 
hands on a cold Friday day." She said, "Mr. Kemp, you fool, they 
are not warming their hands, they are smoking crack. Those are 
the thugs that my babies have to walk by to come to school here at 
the Head Start Program, or that my teenage friends and neighbors 
have to walk by when they come home from school." 

Now, when she said "fool," I knew what she was saying. That 
was not an attack on Jack Kemp. It wasn't an attack on my color. 
She happened to be black and, as you can tell, I'm Anglo. She was 
suggesting that the ignorance in this country about drugs, among 
mainstream Americans, is so pervasive alld so profoundly disturb­
ing to this young, black mother who has got family living in a 
public housing community, wallts for her children, what my 
mamma and my dad wanted for me growing up in Los Angeles in 
the 1940's and 1950's and so forth. I mean, it is not the American 
Dream any longer, it is the universal dream, to be able to raise a 
child, to see him or her develop their talent, to rise to the top of 
the ladder that we call the American Dream, but that Yeltsin calls 
the Russian Dream, and Walesa calls the Polish Dream, and Lands­
bergis calls the Lithuanian Dream, and Mandela calls the African 
Dream, and the students in Tiananmen Square call the Chinese 
Dream. 

Alld Virginia Wilkes told me one thing whell I left her public 
housing community. She said, "Mr. Kemp, you help us, the resi­
dents, get the druggies out of our public housing community, and 
we can save the children." 

I came back to Washington, Mr. Rangel-Charlie-and wrote a 
letter to every public housing director in the Ullited States of 
America. And I said tell me within 30 days-my staff objected to 
that because that's a violatioll of-my lavv-yers-I'm not going to 
say "my" lawyers, they are good guys-but there are lawyers in 
this tOWll who said we were violating the Paperwork Reduction Act 
by asking public housing authorities what they are doing to get the 
drug user, dealer, doer, out of public housing. 

We went ahead and did it anyway because I challenged the bu­
reaucracy to tell me whether they wanted to debate Jack Kemp on 
national television as to what's more important, reducing paper­
work for public housing or getting druggies out of public housing. 
Suffice it to say, and we began, I think, Charlie, to get support in 
an effort to reduce the paperwork and the cumbersome process by 
which you can remove someone from a public housing unit, who is 
using a boarded-up or a nonboarded-up unit to use drugs and deal 
drugs. 

Mr. RANGEL. I think you ought to make it clear when you say 
"druggies" that you have not concentrated your efforts or your 
campaign in getting rid of addicts, but what you have done, and in 
many cases very successfully, is to move those drug traffickers out 
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of public housing, especially those who have taken over legitimate 
apartments. 

Mr. KEMP. I'm g0ing to get to that. I'm going to get to that. Now, 
another experience I had, very quickly, because I know we are 
simply shifting the ground from which the use or the dealing was 
done. I admit that. 

But I'll tell you what, I haven't talked to Virginia recently, but I 
know that Richard Allen is, at the margin, better off with the drug 
dealers gone than when they are there. The same is true in Liberty 
City, Miami, or any other community. I don't think there would be 
any disagreement over that. 

Now, yesterday, Mayor Kelly, Sharon Pratt Kelly, and I went 
over to Parkside Homes which, as you know, is in northeast DC, 
didn't get any publicity. I begged the press, I begged the press in 
Washington, DC-now, they don't do this, as you know, Charlie­
th/ay will show someone shooting, they will show someone's house 
on fire, they will show somebody doing in somebody; they will not 
show anything that's working anywhere in America that will give 
a message of hope to anybody. They just won't show it on televi-
sion. . 

I guess it is too hopeful that there are signs of progress in our 
urban communities. Tampa has a program called REAP [Resident 
Enterprise Assistance Program] introduced by the mayor· and 
young Otly Evans, the public housing director in Tampa, and I am 
a strong, strong supporter of tnat program, and that's a wonderful 
program. Mayor Rice of Seattle, a progressive Democratic mayor 
doing things in Seattle with the help of a lot of people in the public 
and private sector; the mayor of York, Althaus, and Maryann, as I 
alluded to-there are many things that are happening. 

But one thing that I was impressed with yesterday, Charlie, was 
that at Parkside Homes and Paradise and Mayfair Mansions in 
northeast Washington, DC, you wouldn't see a sign of graffiti, you 
would not see a drug user, dealer, doer, you wouldn't see anything 
but black and white, and Latino, mostly minQrity men and women 
getting a chance to live in decent housing, to own ultimately their 
own home, get a job in a minority contracting firm that's rehabili­
tating the public housing or HUD-assisted housing, 221(d)(3) hous­
ing. It was the most incredible manifestation, and it was nowhere 
on television. It was nowhere in the newspapers. And here's a 
whole community in northeast Washington, DC, that's been saved 
for the neighborhood, saved for the community, where people have 
hope and. a chance to get their children into a job, and get preap­
prenticeship training and apprenticeship training in rehabilitating, 
the housing minority contractors doing the work, free enterprise at 
work, ownership at work, schools uplifted, and not a sign of crime. 

And let me pay tribute, parenthetically, to the city, to HUD, to 
the Congress, to the administration, to the Democratic Party, the 
Republican Party, to Mayor Kelly, to CDBG money, to HODED 
grants, and UDED grants, and all of the grants that have over the 
years done anything to improve a community, and I say that as a 
conservative Republican who wants to watch every penny and 
where it goes, but how we spend our money is more important 
than how much we've spent. And what we've done is redesign the 
program to empower the people, empower low-income people in-
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stead of empowering bureaucracies, empowering developers, em­
powering those at the top of the ladder so that somehow it will all 
trickle down to the bottom. 

And I was impressed, Charlie, that the Nation of Islam, with 
which I have some strong disagreements, is belping to get the drug 
users out of Mayfair, and Parkside, and Paradise. I was impressed 
that these young men were doing more to bring some stability, as 
well as the mothers and the parents and the families. 

I guess what I'm saying, Mr. Chairman, in the essence of my tes­
timony, is that there is an answer to drugs thaes a lot better than 
putting everybody in jail. I don't think there's enough prison space 
to hold the population that would be l'equired if this country fails 
to address the problems of poverty. 

Now, I'm in trouble a little bit on the right because they say, 
"Well, hey, man, I picked myself up by my boots and my straps, 
why can't they," whoever "they" are. Well, when you don't have 
boots aIld straps, and your life is turned into existential despair 
and abject conditions of poverty that are disgraceful to a 20th cen­
tury nation that expects to lead Eastern Europe to democracy 
when we can't even practice it in east DC, or east Harlem, or East 
St. Louis, or east Palo Alto, or east LA, then I think it erodes, as 
Mr. Lincoln said-and I'm paraphrasing it--erodes our moral posi­
tion to the rest of the world. He said that slavery in the last centu­
ry eroded our ability to tell the world that we were truly democrat­
ic, that we were truly a liberal democracy worthy of emulating for 
the rest of the world, and that it was a stain on our record for 
which we had to, and still are, paying the price of that evil. 

But I want to say to you, Mr. Chairman, from the heart, that I 
believe that the condition into which 50 percent of all black chil­
dren are born, on the day that they come out of the womb of their 
mother, that they are living in poverty; that 70 percent unemploy­
ment in certain neighborhoods in south central LA, among black 
males and Latino males, that no hope of ever owning a home, ever 
owning a piece of property, ever owning stock or equity in the 
American Dream, as humble as it might be, and only having con­
trol over the shirt on your back or the clothes on your body, is a 
recipe-is a recipe-for social problems. 

And what a shame it would be-I know all of you were listening 
to Yeltsin last week. I was struck by the fact, how proud he was 
that he was trying to build in Russia kind of a United States of 
America. He didn't say it in so many words, but that's what he was 
talking about. He wants the market to work. He wants private 
property to work. He wants democratic capitalism to work. He 
wants people to own. He wants people to start businesses. He 
wants people to get jobs. 

I thought, what an irony of history, that here we are in the 20th 
century talking about gaining the world for democracy, and losing 
our soul at home. And, believe me, Mr. Chairman, I believe we will 
be losing our soul if we lose our cities. The soul of America is in 
how we treat the poor, how we treat the dispossessed, how we treat 
the disenfranchised, how we treat people who lack opportunity to 
be a part of the mainstream economy. 

Now, all of this is just the precursor to saying, quickly, I think 
there's something that can be done. I think there are answers to 
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poverty and despair and hopelessness and homelessness. It's going 
to take money, Mr. Chairman. It's going to take more jobs. The 
best antipoverty, antiwelfare, profamily, prochild, prourban eco­
nomic development pollcy in the history of the world, is to create 
more jobs.-create more jobs. I don't mean jobs at a level of unem­
ployment vacillating between 6 and 7 percent, I mean "jobs"-so 
many jobs that we have a shortage of labor. 

I'm going to get in trouble with the Fortune 500 because they 
think that too many people working causes inflation. I think people 
who are not working cause inflation, because they put demands on 
the system that can only be met by so-caned expenditures, or infla­
tionary ideas. 

I'm for enterpris2 zones. I'm for home ownership. I'm for appren­
tice training. I'm for Weed and Seed. I am for changing the welfare 
laws to give people access to assets, and access to property, and 
access to a savings account. I don't know, Mr. Chairman, if YOll saw 
in tlle New York Times just a couple of weeks ago, Sandra Rosato, 
a young Chicano woman-Chris Hayes must have seen this in New 
Haven-Sandra Rosato, 19 years old, at community college itl New 
Haven, CT, saved $4,000. Her mother was on welfare. They fined 
her mother $9,400 after finding her daughter's savings account . 

Do you know we have policemen running around the country 
finding out if poor people save mo~ey? It is against the law to have 
anybody saving in your family, if you happen to have someone in 
your family on AFDC. Is that the dumbest law you have ever heard 
in your life? I mean, come on, you guys, is that stupid? It is stupid 
to tell Sandra Rosato, who is saving to go to college, that her $4,000 
savings account had to be spent the next day, within 24 hours. Ac­
cording to the New York Times, the bureaucracy told her to spend 
her savings account, get rid of it, and they fined her mother $9,400. 
Now, that's Salvador Dali and Rube Goldberg welfare rolled up in 
one. They are counterintuitive, they are counterproductive, they 
are counter everything that we have learned in a Judeo-Christian 
society about what we want to encourage. 

Now, let me make one point about enterprise zones, and then I'll 
stop. We have to drive capital and credit, we have to "incentivise" 
the inner cities of America, to develop entrepreneurial capitalism 
for minorities. 

I'm sorry the word is a pejorative to some people-it shouldn't 
be. Education is capital. Seed corn is capital. What's in your heart 
and what's burning in your belly to start something and improve 
your lot in life is capital. What a mother teaches her daughter 
about rising above the odds is capital investment. What a papa 
teaches his children about never giving up is capital investment. 
And, yes, capital is capital-that green stuff. 

But capital is far more than just money per. se. It is the idea of a 
Bill Gates, who can take an idea for software and convert into a 
company that in 6 years is now worth more than General Motors. 

Now, let me ask you a question. Is anybody on this panel upset 
that Bill Gates is wealthy? I'm not. He created a lot of wealth. Do 
you know what he is doing in Seattle? Do you know what John 
Scully is doing in Memphis inner-city schools? Providing personal 
computers to kids. A computer is capital. The software is capital. 
And we've got to decide whether we are a democratic, capitalistic 
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country <)1'- not, and capitalism cannot work without capital. And 
our tax laws are driving capital offshore. 

You get a better incentive to invest in Mexico, in a maquiIladora, 
than you do in an enterprise zone in Harlem. You talked about 
$300 billion, Mr. Rangel. We spent $150 billion bailing out the 
thrifts, $70 billion last year bailing out the FDIC, $10 billion loan 
forgiveness for Egypt and Poland, both of which I support. We m~y 
forgive other loans for Third World countries, and we can't get 
credit and capital ,.~nd seed corn and oxygen into the U.S. inner 
cities because we've got to debate between Democrats and Republi­
cans, over whether or not we want a bill to be passed by July 4. 

Now, thank God that the Ways and Means Committee passed a 
bill, but I went to the mayor of Tampa-excuse me, a little parti­
san note here-I asked the President, and he did it, I speak for him 
on this, if there is any city in the United States of America, from 
-.l'ampa to Detroit, and from York to Seattle, and from East Harlem 
to Baltimore, MD, that has an area with endemic poverty, chronic 
unemployment, high levels of welfare, a shrinking tax base, and 
the conditions that we can objectively determine would qualify for 
an enterprise zone, why shouldn't they be entitled to an enterprise 
zone? 

Mr. RANGEL. And what did the President say? 
Mr. KEMP. The President didn't say anything, he just put it in 

his bill, Charlie, it's on your desk. You get a chance to vote for it 
tomorrow. ' 

Mr. RANGEL. Where is the President's bill? 
Mr. KEMP. It'll be on the floor tomorrow, you'll have a chance to 

vote for it. You can vote for one enterprise for New York, and one 
for Connecticut, and one for Maryland, or you can put one in 
Tampa, put them in Detroit, put them in York, put them in Seat­
tle-and I just want everybody to know-I'll give you the list-300 
cities, from the Colonials of Texas t4], the Yaqui Indian Tribe Reser­
vation in Guadelupe, Phoenix, AZ, would qualify under the admin­
istration's enterprise zone bill. We've got to decide whether we're 
going to use entrepreneurial capitalism to create jobs, or whether 
we're going to use summer youth jobs. 

With all due respect, I'm for summer youth jobs. Do you think 
summer youth jobs are going to last forever? No. 

Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Secretary-- . 
Mr. KEMP. Did I touch a raw nerve there, Mr. Rangel? 
Mr. RANGEL. No, no, because this is the most exciting news I've 

heard since we've been discussing enterprise zones. Now, if I under­
stand you correctly, the President is going to introduce a bill t<r 
morrow? 

Mr. KEMP. It's in. He introduced it. Yes, it's there. 
Mr. RANGEL. The President is going to introduce a bill. 
Mr. KEMP. You'll get a chance-I gu~rantee, you'll get a chance 

to vote on the President's hill. 
Mr. RANGEL. Well, let me-I don't think as fast as you speak­

but did some Merilber of Congress---
Mr. KEMP. You do pretty well. 
Mr. RANGEL. Did some Member of Congress attach his name to 

this bill? 
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Mr. KEMP. Well, no, we don't do things like that. It's the Rosten-
kowski-Gephardt approach versus the Archer-Coughlin approach. 

Mr. RANGEL. So, will there be an Archer bill? 
Mr. KEMP. Well, there will be a bill. It will be a substitute. 
Mr. RANGEL. Will the bill be paid for? 
Mr. KEMP. It will be paid for, $2.5 billion, same as the Rosten-

kowski bill. 
Mr. RANGEL. Now, if--
Mr. KEMP. But you'll get a chance to vote for it. 
Mr. RANGEL. If the Rostenkowski bill is passed--
Mr. KEMP. Going to rmd out if you want an enterprise zone in 

Harlem, alld South Bronx, and Brooklyn--
Mr. RANGEL. If the Rostenkowski bill only has 50 enterprise 

zones and we have a cap that was negotiated with the White House 
for $2.5 billion, when you expand the number of enterprise zones, 
will the amount of money that's .been made available, the $2.5 bil­
lion, will that expand as well, Mr. Secretary? 

Mr. KEMP. Well, the Treasury Department estimated that the ad­
ministration's bill would cost $2.5 billion for 300 zones. And the 
Rostenkowski bill is scored at $2.5 billion for 50 zones, 25 in rural 
and 25 in urban America. So, you've got to decide--

Mr. RANGEL. Now, Mr. Secretary--
Mr. KEMP. Charlie-with all due respect. Mr. Chairman, I'm one 

of your strong allies, but you say that it costs $300 billion a year 
for chemical abuse problems to this country, now you're asking me 
can we afford $2.5 billion for 300 zones. 

Mr. RANGEL. I'm asking you whether you and the White House 
were not a part of a group that met to limit the amount of money 
on enterprise zones to $10 billion. And I'm also asking--

Mr. KEMP. You're talking to Kemp now, and I'm telling you I 
support an enterprise bill, as does the President, that would allow 
for 300 zones, from Tampa to Detroit, and from York to New York. 

Mr. RANGEL. I'm going to yield, Mr. Secretary, but I don't know 
who speaks for the President. It certainly wasn't Dick Darma'Ll, at 
these meetings; it wasn't Secretary Brady, and you can have 1,000 
enterprise zones if you want. The question is, are you going to have 
resources that will be made available so that these mayors just 
don't have a zone without the resources to make these demonstra­
tion projects successful? 

Mr. KEMP. Let me tell you what the mayors would get under the 
administration's bill, just so we can clear this up for the record be­
cause there's--

Mr. RANGEL. Well, we can clear it up right now. 
Mr. KEMP, I'm going to. 
Mr. RANGEL. Are you opposed to the bill that's on the floor? 
Mr. KEMP. I'm speaking for the President right now. 
Mr. RANGEL. The bill that's going to come to the floor tomorrow, 

because we can straighten out a whole lot of stuff now-­
Mr. KEMP. You've never had anybody--
Mr. RANGEL. If this bill that comes to the floor tomorrow-­
Mr. KEMP, You'd better make sure you know the answer to this 

question, Mr. Rangel, because a good lawyer doesn't ask a question 
he doesn't know the answer to. 

• 

• 

• 
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Mr. RANGEL. All I'm saying is, if I get the slightest indication 
that the administration is going to back off from this bill--

Mr. KEMP. Oh, oh, oh-back off what bill? 
Mr. RANGEL. The bill that's coming to the floor tomorrow with 

the amendment, and that's the amendment that will relax the cap­
ital gains tax for--

Mr. KEMP. The administration will strongly support the very 
positive message that the Ways and Means Committee leadership 
bill sends over to the Senate. That's a very good start, but--

Mr. RANGEL. Then I don't have any further questions. 
Mr. KEMP [continuing]. But you'll have a chance tomorrow to 

vote on a substitute that's even better, and it's the President's own 
bill, and I speak for him on this issue, and he supports it, he sup­
ports both. He wants a bill to get to the Senate because you can't 
have a bill that doesn't start in the House. 

Mr. RANGEL. He supports the other--
Mr. KEMP. Well, no, he wants one or the other, but he wants the 

best bill he can get. So, if he can't-­
Mr. RANGEL. You support both? 
Mr. KEMP. I support both . 
Mr. RANGEL. Very good. OK. 
Mr. KEMP. Will you support both? 
Mr. RANGEL. I'm supporting the one that's going to pass, Mr. Sec-

retary, you know that. [Laughter.] 
Mr. KEMP. You heard it here first. 
Mr. GILMAN. Would the chairman yield? 
Mr. KEMP. How can you be pragmatic at a moment of crisis like 

this? Where is the Charlie Rangel we used to know, full of fire and 
brimstone about poverty and drugs--

Mr. RANGEL. I'll tell you where he is. As long as you're doing 
business with--

Mr. KEMP [continuing]. Talking about trying to save money-­
Mr. RANGEL. As long as you're doing business with OMB, then 

that's what put the restrictions on what we can do in the Congress. 
And-

Mr. KEMP. That's the first time I've ever heard Charlie 
Rangel--

Mr. RANGEL [continuing]. Immediately fall short--
Mr. KEMP [continuing]. First time I've ever heard you, Mr. Chair­

man, restricted by OMB. Don't tell the folks in Harlem that you're 
restricted by OMB, they're going to be sadly disappointed in you. 

Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Secretary, you know, you're talking as though 
these restrictions on the deficit, the restrictions on taxes-it wasn't 
me who said "Read my lips," it's someone who is much closer to 
you. (Laughter.] 

~,.d I'm telling you that you let the President say that he's­
first of all, you know, and I know, this committee knows, that the 
President hasn't said one fraction of the things that you've said. 
And it's only because of your credibility in the House that I assume 
that he said some nice things about people to you, but he certainly 
hasn't said publicly that he has the slightest bit of concern about 
what's happening in these inner cities, except one trip to Los Ange­
les. 
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Now, you've dedicated yourself to being concerned about the 
urban communities and created your own reputation. Now, if you 
want to put this reputation on the line based on what the Presi­
dent mayor may not do, then you can go ahead and do it, but the 
President's leadership in this case-if we meet and there is a re­
stI'iction and they give us a lousy $10 billion-and I agree with you 
100 percent-and then they come in with HUD representation and 
say that half of that is going to be rural, as though there were riots 
on some farm or something, then what are you going to do when 
your people are sitting at the table? 

You know, you can't win this battle alone, but you have-
Mr. KEMP. I thought I had you with me. I thought I had you with 

me. 
Mr. RANGEL. You've got me, but you haven't got one ally in the 

Cabinet. 
Mr. KEMP. Yes, I do. My bill, the President's bill, is on the floor 

tomorrow as a Republican substitute that doesn't have little zones 
in rural America and little zones in urban America, it has zones in 
every community in the country that are needed and deserve it 
and could qualify; they would have it under the President's bill . 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, now, you're coming out with--
Mr. KEMP. Now, he may not say it the way I say it, but I say it 

for him today. 
Mr. RANGEL. Yes, OK. 
Mr. KEMP. So, if you vote for both bills, you'll be doing yourself a 

favor. 
Mr. RANGEL. OK. Let me tell you this, now you're coming up 

with the President's alternative and, as a lawyer, I don't know the 
answer to this question, but I'll take a risk just based on you. Who 
is your best friend on enterprise zones, Secretary Kemp? 

Mr. KEMP. Well, you have been over the past 10 years [laughter] 
until I lost you last week. 

Mr. RANGEL. To the President's bill, right? 
Mr. KEMP. When you got a laugh out of the crowd behind me, 

you got it on the basis of zones for rural America, and to the Bush 
plan. Under the administration enterprise zone plan that I helped 
fashion, every zone in America would be a needy area, and 70 per­
cent of 300 zones would go to urban America, that would be 6 or 7 
zones in New York, 3 or 4 in Detroit, several in Seattle. I didn't 
know about Tampa, but there would be one in Tampa. 

The question is, do we want to try entrepreneurial capitalism to 
create some jobs? Now, let me tell you a shocking fact. You cannot 
create employees without first creating an employer. There's never 
been a place in recorded history in which you could create lots of 
employees without lots of entrepreneurs. Now, if you want to 
create black employees and minority entrepreneurship, you've got 
to do something to change the incentive structure of redlined 
inner-city America, and the way to do it is to greenline it and say 
no tax-now, let me just tell you what it does-no tax on the cap­
ital gain-none, zero; no alternative minimum tax; no tax on any­
body that invests their stock in an enterprise zone enterprise, so 
that a black businessman or woman, or a Hispanic, can get some 
capital for his or her idea. 

• 

., 

• 
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And, third, no tax on the wages of the worker up to about 
$24,000 of gross income for a family of four, so that a woman who 
leaves welfare sees her income go up instead of down when she 
takes a job, and an unemployed father has the same experience. 
There's a wage-based incentive, venture capital-based incentive, 
and an entrepreneurial-based incentive, and we can change the 
inner cities. 

It's not the only answer. I told the mayors it's not the only 
answer. There are many other things that have to be done-infra­
structure, education, Weed and Seed, transportation, health care­
but I'm not the health care Secretary, I'm the HUD, economic de­
velopment Secretary, and I know there's a problem, and it defies 
imagination for the chairman of the committee to bewail, as he 
does sincerely and I support him in this, the $300 billion of lost 
youths, and lost lives, and lost resources to America, he puts in a 
budget framework, and not do something radical and entrepreneur­
ial to cut it down because it costs $2.5 billion and we don't know 
how we're going to pay for it, it is an excuse-not yours, Charlie­
but it's an excuse by some not to vote for it. 

Mr. GILMAN. Mr. Chairman, would you yield? 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Coughlin has been trying to inquire, and he 

might yield to you. 
Mr. COUGHLIN. I just want to commend the Secretary on his ef­

forts to bring some new ideas and new approaches to minority busi­
ness ownership and minority home ownership. He's been pushing 
this for a long time. He's been out there and seen what needs to be 
done. I'd like to just ask a question in another field if I might, for 
just a moment. 

My question is directed to the Public Housing Drug Elimination 
Grant Program, which has increased from about $8.2 million in 
1989 to $165 million requested in 1992. Can you tell us something 
about how that program is working to get drugs out of public hous­
ing in particular, and how are you finding the leadership in that 
housing? \ 

Mr. KEMP. Well, we've had tremendous cooperation from mayors, 
tremendous cooperation from public housing authorities, and the 
$165 million in drug elimination grants is well spent. Julie Fagan, 
who heads up that office, is right behind me on my. left. These 
moneys are to bring security, to bring help to Richard Allen Public 
Housing in North Philly, so that we can get an onsite presence of 
police and public housing police and resident patrols. The ClAP 
moneys, the $2.8 billion that you helped fund for modernization 
can be used to bring security and lighting and better opportunities 
for people to get some minority opportunities that live within the 
community. That's why I was so pleased, Larry, that at Parkside 
Homes and Paradise and Mayflower Mansions, I've seen a demon­
strable change in the neighborhood where people are given owner­
ship opportunities and resident management opportunities and job 
opportunities. It's an amazing thing. 

So, is it working? You bet. Do we need more money? You bet. 
Are we doing a pretty good job? I think we're doing a pretty good 
job, and every time-I know I'm doing a good job when I get sued 
by the ACLU for violating-I mean, I'm not anxious to violate 
someone's civil liberties, but you can't believe the process it takes 
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to get someone who is using drugs out of public housing. We need 
an all-out effort to put them in housing, but not public housing­
well, maybe public housing, but a different type of public housing. 
But there's got to be a better answer even than that, ultimately, 
and that is to give the young people a choice other than the streets. 

And, right now, if you read Alex Kotlowitz' book, ;lThere Are No 
Children Here," about Henry Horner Public Housing out near the 
Bulls Stadium, it tears your heart out to go to Henry Horner. 
There are just no jobs. And a drug elimination grant alone will not 
change the conditions at Henry Horner. There's only one way to do 
it-more education, more jobs, and give the residents a chance to 
begin to manage and control and ultimately 0'"""11 if it's their choice. 

Mr. COUGHLIN. In our hearings with the various community or­
ganizations, one of the key things was fInding someone who had 
the leadership in the various housing units to really pull the pieces 
of that together. How do you go about fInding leadership? 

Mr. KEMP. Larry, let me say something to you. You and I are 
both Republicans, and probably neither one of us has spent a great 
deal of our lives in those communities. But I'll tell you, in the 3 
years that I've spent at HUD, I've been places where no other Re­
publican perhaps has ever been. And I can tell you, as a Republi­
can, a member of your party, Mr. Lincoln's party, there's unbeliev­
able leadership in those communities. There are entrepreneurs 
waiting to become entrepreneurs with some help. There are young 
children that could grow up to be engineers. 

How do we explain Heime Escolante, in east LA, taking kids out 
of a gang in a barrio, and turning them into engineers at Ford, and 
GM, and maybe Toyota, for all I know. He did it because he in­
spired them. The principal in a public housing community in Hous­
ton-I'm trying to think of his name-Thaddeus Lott, on 1/60 Min­
utes" the other night, taking children from dysfunctional families 
according to some, part of the underclass according to elitists, and 
turning his school in Houston-and I think of Mickey Leland, how 
proud he would be to see what these kids are doing. They are lead­
ing, in Texas, the test scores for elementary school kids. 

I was in North Londale in Chicago and visited the Better Boys 
Foundation, and the school-is that right, Dave, North Londale? I 
think it's North Londale. But, anyway, taking kids, and they're get­
ting high test scores. They've all got computers. It inspires you. 
There's tremendous leadership, Larry. They've never been tapped 
before because they've been treated as if they are living on some­
one else's property. 

Mr. Chairman, I know you've got a lot of witnesses-I hope I'm 
not being too-there's a time to be emotional and there's a time to 
be very prudent and cautious, and I think that time is passed-­

Mr. COUGHLIN. Let me yield to other members. 
Mr. KEMP. I just want to say, Larry, there is tremendous poten­

tial among public housing residents. They've never been recognized 
before. 

Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Shays, would you yield to Mr. Gilman? 
Mr. SHAYS. Yes. 
Mr. GILMAN. I just want to ask one question. First of all, I want 

to commend the Secretary, Mr. Kemp, for the great work he's 

• 
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doing in trying to alleviate our Nation's housing needs and his con­
structive approach to the narcotics problem. 

One question on the Kemp-Bush measure that will be on the 
floor tomorrow. Do your measure and the Archer measure both 
have the same funding, the same dollars? 

Mr. KEMP. They are both $2.5 billion. The Joint Tax Committee 
says that our bill would cost $6 billion. They assume-they 
assume-that cutting the capital g£\ins tax on a businessman or 
woman that doesn't exist is going to cost the Treasury revenue. 

Let me ask you a question, former mayors. How much revenue 
do you raise from taxing businesses that don't exist? I'll tell you 
what, if it doesn't work, it won't lose a penny; if it works, you help 
the tax base of Seattle and Tampa and your cities. 

Mr. RANGEL. Where do you think. these rules come from? They 
don't come from us, they come from your side. Ask Darman. Do 
you know Darman? 

Mr. KEMP. Why do you want to get me into an argument with 
Dick Darman? 

Mr. RANGEL. Because these rules that-the man asked how many 
times do you want to divide into a lousy $2.5 billion, and you 
said--

Mr. KEMP. I think it's a good investment. 
Mr. RANGEL. We are restricted by someone who says "Read my 

lips, decrease the deficit, and no emergency." 
Mr. KEMP. You can't hide behind George Bush on this, Mr. 

Rangel. 
Mr. RANGEL. Is that who I was talking about? 
Mr. KEMP. You've got to decide-well, he's the only one who said 

"Read my lips." 
Mr. GILMAN. If the chairman would yield just one more time. 
Mr. RANGEL. OK. 
Mr. KEMP. I'm not going to let you hide behind--
Mr. GILMAN. Mr. Secretary, who will make the determination of 

which communities will be-
Mr. KEMP. I don't want to make it, and I don't want Lynn 

Martin to make it, and I don't want you to make it, Ben, I want it 
to be based on obiective criteria, so that when Norm Rice, the 
mayor of Seattle, comes to Kemp, he doesn't have to say, "Well, 
I'm sorry, Mr. Kemp, I happen to be a Democrat, but I still would 
like one." I don't want it to go to Republicans or Democrats, or 
based on color, or based on who you know and how much power 
you have at HUD, or a phone call to a stupid lawyer to make a 
phone call to HUD and make influence. 

The way to take it out of influence-peddling is to make it based 
on objective criteria around which you can define the zone that has 
been redlined so that you can now begin to greenline it and take it 
out of politics, take it out of Congress, and that's why some people 
don't like it, Charlie. That's why some people don't like it. 

Mr. RANGEL. You know, Mr. Secretary, I'm reading Republican 
language here, and the question was asked by a Republican, but 
using your language it says that "all urban and rural areas meet­
ing criteria are eligible" -beautiful. "Designated as they are identi­
fied" -beautiful. But "limited to an overall cost cap of :ji2.5 billion." 

Mr. KEMP. We had to put that in because-
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Mr. RANGEL. So, to be eligible--
Mr. KEMP. We had to put that in to cover the same thing you're 

talking, the combination of your--
Mr. RANGEL. Oh, you're listening to those other people. 
Mr. KEMP. No, no, no, no, no, wait a minute--Iet me answer. 
Mr. RANGEL. What difference does it make if you're eligible, if 

you have no money? 
Mr. KEMP. Wait, wait, wait-this is good theater, but let me give 

you an answer. 
Mr. RA..~GEL. If you're eligible and you have no money, what good 

is it, Mr. Kemp? 
Mr. KEMP. What do you mean, you have no money? 
Mr. RANGEL. It says-
Mr. KEMP. $2.5 billion is a good investment in 300 zones. 
Mr. RANGEL. I'm only asking one question. 
Mr. KEMP. Well, what is it? 
Mr. RANGEL. It says that "All urban and rural areas meeting cri­

teria are eligible and designated as they are identified." Now, how 
many would that be--200, we'll say-we'll guess. 

Mr. KEMP. I think in the first year it would be close to maybe 
150, I think at the-

Mr. RANGEL. All right, 150. I don't care­
Mr. KEMP. Take 150. 
Mr. RANGEL. OK. Now, you and I know that right now we're 

talking about two things, we're talking about $500 million a year 
in seed money, resourcelil to assist the mayors in creating the at­
mosphere for investment, and we're talking about roughly $500 
million in terms of tax incentives. This is what we're talking about, 
this very conservative legislative program. 

What you are saying is that, hey, there may be 150 of them. 
Would not that 150 have to be divided into the $500 million as it 
relates to seed resources, and what does that come out to for the 
mayors? How many resources would they get--

Mr. KEMP. What do you think is the most important part of the 
enterprise zone, the-

Mr. RANGEL. That's where we differ. 
Mr. KEMP. Well, OK. 
Mr. RANGEL. I really think the resources-
Mr. KEMP. I think you've got to get capital investment into the 

inner city. 
Mr. RANGEL. I just don't believe-
Mr. KEMP. I know you don't, see, that's the difference between 

you and me. 
Mr. RANGEL. I don't think investors are going to go into commu­

nities that are crime infested, where there are no homes for the 
employees, where there are no health facilities, where the job mar­
kets are ex-cons and ex-addicts, and run around with a pocket full 
of tax credits saying, "Where can I start my business?" 

Mr. KEMP. No, no, no, don't be disingenuous. Don't be disingen­
uous. It's not like you to be--

Mr. RANGEL. No, I'm just saying that I do believe that if you put 
the money in, assist the educators, alternatives to jails, have drug 
treatment--

Mr. KEMP. I know you don't believe-

.. 

• 

• 

• 



. it 

• 

• 

• 

17 

Mr. RANGEL [continuing]. Create an atmosphere that you need 
the incentives for busin.ess, and I agree, and I think you need both, 
Mr. Secretary, and I think you do--

Mr. KEMP. I agree. I do agree. 
Mr. RANGEL [continuing]. And all I'm saying is­
Mr. KEMP. You need both. 
Mr. RANGEL [continuing). We don't have enough money--
Mr. KEMP. Yes, we do. Yes, we do. If we've got $300 billion in lost 

productivity in America because of drugs, if we have to spend $150 
billion to bail out the thrifts, we can certainly spend the money 
necessary to put an enterprise zone in Newark, and an enterprise 
zone in Harlem, and an enterprise zone in North Philly . 

Mr. RANGEL. Would you put me down on your bill, and also put 
me down on the revenue raiser. Count me in. 

Mr. KEMP. Well, now, wait a minute. What bill-­
Mr. RANGEL. Put Bill Archer's name-
Mr. KEMP [continuing]. Let me ask you a question. 
Mr. RANGEL. Put Bill Archer's name not just on the President's 

bill, on ways to raise the revenue. 
Mr. KEMP. You raise revenue by creating new businesses and 

new jobs where none existed . 
Mr. RANGEL. Now, you know, as I do, it's not--­
Mr. KEMP. It's a shocking statistic to you. 
Mr. RANGEL. It's not that this administration has the slightest 

bit of concern in investing in people, reducing the deficit, creating 
jobs-

Mr. KEMP. You know what, you can't get by with that any longer 
because we now have the most attractive inner-city economic devel­
opment tool that has already worked in Trenton, already worked in 
Newark thanks to Governor Kean, has worked in other States, and 
if we put a zero alternative minimum tax, a zero capital gains tax, 
a zero tax on the venture capitalist who puts his or her money into 
a minority enterprise and allows any worker to take a job, not to 
pay the tax, come off welfare and take a job, what you've done is 
create a taxpayer instead of a tax consumer. What you've done is 
create wealth where no wealth existed. What you create is the 
property tax revenues that will help the city of Seattle fund its 
schools. 

Unless you create a better tax base in the inner cities of Amer­
ica, you're not going to have any inner cities in America. 

Mr. RANGEL. Can you share with me where the Secretary is get­
ting this money, Mr. Shays? He's a Republican. I'm assuming 
there's a different book you guys read. 

Mr. GILMAN. Chairman, I yield back to Mr. Shays, deducting the 
time of your debate. 

Mr. SHAYS. My time is ended. I yield back the floor. [Laughter.] 
Mr. Chairman, I would like to make some points. The first point 

I'd like to make is that my own party acts like the cities don't even 
exist, except for a few, and the other party has really mouthed alle­
giance to concerns about the cit~, and very few really have come 
up with any creative ideas. That s why I'm loving the dialog that's 
going back between the two of you. Both of you candidly are right 
and, in some ways, I think I disagree with both of you, but if the 
end result is-
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Mr. KEMP. Well, there's a great moral stand on principle. Some 
of my friends are for it, some are against, and I'm with my friends. 
[Laughter .J 

I congratulate you, Chris Shays, for a powerful statement of-­
Mr. SHAYS. Jack, you know what's funny? I have listened for a 

whole hour to you speak, and speak, and speak, and speak, and I 
think I should be entitled to finish one sentence, just one sentence. 
Do I have that opportunity, Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. RANGEL. I yield to the gentleman. 
Mr. SHAYs. I was just going to say that in my judgment, there 

are very few that have really spoken about this issue, and I think 
it's very creative. But, yes, I do take a big disagreement, if I might, 
assuming that something happens without our paying for it. So, I 
just happen to disagree. Now, if you don't think that's a moral 
stand or not, I just think that as I listen to the dialog, there was 
someone saying we have to abide by this $2.5 billion, you said it 
was irrelevant, but it's in our own bill. 

Mr. KEMP. Chris, what does it cost--
Mr. SH.A.Ys. No, I'm going to finish. I'm going to finish. 
Mr. KEMP. What does it cost to cut a tax that no one is paying? 
Mr. SHAYS. I'm going to finish a sentence. I'm going to at least 

have that opportunity. And I'm just making the point that it seems 
to me that even our own bill has a limit of $2.5 billion. And the 
answer to your question, Mr. Chairman, is that, in fact, is the 
limit. But I also happen to agree that in this way that we score, 
that a lot of businesses are going to create new opportunities that 
don't exist and, therefore, have a tremendous problem with the 
way that we're scoring and the way that we're limiting. And I just 
wish that both sides could get together. 

The bottom line, though, and the one thing I want to say-I 
know this is a hearing on drugs and the cities, and I apologize to 
the mayors but, basically, the best antidote to drugs is a job. The 
best antidote to welfare is a job, it seems to me. And the bottom 
line, though, is that it seems that we've got to get manufacturers 
back into our urban areas, and the way we do that is to expense for 
new plant and equipment. They build a new plant, they build new 
equipment, and they get to expense it. 

No, I'm not new to this issue-I've spent 9 months researching 
this issue, and every businessman I've spoken to said, "If you want 
to create jobs, you've got to pay in manufacturing expens~ and new 
plant equipment." It's not capital gains as much as it is those other 
things. 

Mr. KEMP. It's both. 
Mr. SHAYS. Maybe it's both. 
Mr. KEMP. Our bill allows for that, Chris. 
Mr. SHAYS. Pardon me? 
Mr. KEMP. Our bill allows for expenses. 
Mr. SHAYS. But it is absolutely essential that it-­
Mr. KEMP. It's in there. 
Mr. SHAYS. OK, well, there are a lot of things that are in there. 

It just seems to me that the bottom line, though, is that this coun­
try-and I'll just finish here, and I thank you for your patience­
this country has lost its industrial base. We know that even if they 
are not going to be in our inner cities, we are going to have to give 
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tax advantages to manufacturers. And, so, we can do two things at 
the same time, we give tax advantages to the manufacturers and 
we have them in the cities where we need this opportunity. And I 
really believe that we're going to get at a lot of the drug problem 
when we get jobs back into the cities. 

I'm sorry if my Secretary thinks that I'm ambivalent on this 
issue. I'm not ambivalent, but I do believe that both of you have a 
good point to make, I just don't happen to agree with all you say. 

Mr. KEMP. Well, that's fine. I apologize to you, Chris, you're a 
dedicated person, and I let my feelings on this issue-I'm getting 
hammered from the right who say, "We are the suburbs and we 
shouldn't do anything about the cities," and then I hear criticism 
from the left that we can't spend enough money, or make enough 
of an investment. 

I think it's a point of irony in history that there's more entrepre­
neurial spirit in Warsaw, Poland, than there is in the United 
States of America, and it disappoints me. 

I don't know if I want to stay at HUD any longer and not have 
an economic development tool that will really drive some entrepre­
neurial incentives into the city. 

So, I don't disagree with you, Chris, I'm just frustrated that if we 
lose-I think if we go into July and the Democrats have their con­
vention, we go to August and the Republicans have their conven­
tion, it's allover, and I'm going to go to my final reward with 
"RIP, he lost on enterprise zones." And don't think you're doing it 
for me. It has nothing to do with Jack Kemp or George Bush. It 
has nothing to do with personality. 

Mr. SHAYS. I yield back the balance of my time. 
Mr. KEMP. It wasn't even my idea. I got it from Luis Munoz, the 

Governor of Puerto Rico. Bobby Kennedy talked about this. 
They have an enterprise zone in China called the Pearl River 

Delta. It's about 10 percent of the population and 10 percent of the 
geography of China. Ninety percent of what is produced in China is 
produced in an enterprise zone. They don't tax any profit on any 
entrepreneur who lives in the Pearl River Delta-none, zero-and 
we are debating whether or not we're going to try it not just in 25 
little urban areas of America-excuse me, I'm not being disrespect­
ful of urban America, but what bothers me is they tried it in China 
under a Communist regime; they're trying it in Moscow and St. Pe­
tersburg under a former Socialist regime; they're trying it in 
Warsaw; they're trying it in Czechoslovakia; and I'm just begging 
you to try it in urban America and let's turn urban America into 
democratic capitalism. 

Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Secretary, you are overlooking Argentina and 
Mexico and some of the other places that are trying it also. 

Mr. KEMP. Mexico, maquilladora is an enterprise zone. 
Mr. RANGEL. Let me just say--
Mr. MFUME. Mr. Chairman, point of order. 
Mr. RANGEL. The Chair recognizes Mr. Mfume. 
Mr. MFUME. Mr. Chairman, a member of the Democratic side of 

this hearing has yet to be recognized during this hearing. With all 
due respect to my colleagues on the other side of the aisle, we have 
some questions also, and I would insist on a point of order that we 
would be recognized in a fashion that allows equal time. 
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Mr. RANGEL. Well, the Chair was recognizing the members as 
they appeared before the committee, and it's unfortunate that the 
Democratic members appeared after the Republicans did. 

Mr. MFUME. Well, Mr. Chairman, I accept the Chair's ruling on 
that, it's just that I--

Mr. RANGEL. On the list, you follow Mr. Inhofe, then Mr. Towns, 
then Mr. Gilman, and then Mr. Dornan, Ms. Lowey, Mr. Ramstad, 
and Mr. Payne, and this list was prepared by staff as the members 
arrived. This is the rule that the Chair normally follows. 

Mr. MFUME. I yield back to the Chair. 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Inhofe. 
Mr. INHOFE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just want to make this 

one comment. Jack, it's been what, 12 years since you, our friend, 
Bob Garcia, and the chairman initially did this. I was on the board 
of directors, Mr. Althaus, of the U.S. Conference of Mayors at that 
time. I rejoiced-we had a meeting about this. 

At that time, there was unanimity that it was going to work. We 
were talking about not just a handful of cities, but if it's good for a 
handful of cities, let's try it throughout America. I'm looking at a 
list right now on which there are some cities-three cities in Okla­
homa. One of them is Tulsa, OK. Certainly, there's every reason it 
should fit the criteria. 

My point is that we've been sitting around talking about this for 
12 years now, the opportunity is here, and I think this meeting is 
doing a lot in bringing this together so that we can come up with 
something constructive this week, and I would encourage us to do 
it. 

Second, a lot of the motivations that are built into even talking 
about it, Mr. Secretary, are things that were done to us in the sim­
plification bill of 1986, the tax bill. And I'm beginning to think that 
if we could just repeal that and make that all the way across the 
board, not just in enterprise zones, we'd do a lot to get this Nation 
moving again. I applaud you for what you are doing in this, but 
let's get it done this week. 

Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Mfume. 
Mr. MFUME. Mr. Secretary, a lot of us have been working on and 

off this committee, and really on and off the issue of enterprise 
zones, quite frankly, specifically on the issue of minority business 
development. 

I've spent an awful lot of time dealing with that. Just yesterday, 
we had 75 major businesses from around the country, minority 
businesses, convene here for an economic brain trust, to discuss 
what is absolutely crucial to development of businesses in the mi­
nority community, and that is capital formation. I can't underline 
that enough. 

You said earlier that capital investment into these zones is a pri­
ority. I wonder if I might just ask you if you would comment on the 
concept of MESBIC's, minority enterprise small business invest­
ment companies, that were created by the Congress of the United 
States to provide equity and debt capital to minority business con­
cerns. They are a valuable tool. I would argue strenuously that any 
concept of any enterprise zone should not have absent as a part of 
that concept some sort of way to guarantee not only tax incentives, 
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but to make sure also that there is some effort to promote minority 
business development. 

Now, the chairman said, and I agree with him, that I don't think 
it's fair to assume that we can expect people to run around with 
tax breaks and say, HOh, I'm going to locate my company there." 

Having said that, however, minority businesses that are African­
American, Hispanic, Asian, that have an affmity toward the area 
in many instances, that are looking to develop in or about an area 
like that, would benefit significantly from the MESBIC concept, 
given the fact also that the idea of no tax on capital gains, no tax 
on employees' salary up to a certain level, deferred taxes on prop­
erty taxes to the ] Dcal municipality, and other things are in place. 

So, I haven't heard, and I would appreciate it if you would take 
the remainder of my time, quite frankly, and talk, if you will, as to 
whether or not there is a reluctance or an acceptance on the part 
of HUD, and perhaps even the administration, to have included as 
a part of the concept that I think I hear you're talking about in 
terms of enterprise zones, a role for MESBIC's, minority enterprise 
small business investment companies, that have been doing the job 
all along. 

Mr. KEMP. I agree, I really do. I agree with everything you've 
said, that MESBIC's don't come under the jurisdiction of HUD, 
they come under, I think, the jurisdiction of SBA, but I think that 
was why you helped pass an emergency supplemental for the Small 
Business Administration, but you are absolutely right. 

I agree with your premise. I agree with your conclusion. I would 
also agree with the original Rangel amendment. When Charlie 
came to me and said that, "I'm having trouble selling this to mi­
nority entrepreneurs without an incentive for someone to put some 
capital, that is, seed corn, venture capital, into minority enter­
prises," because the biggest problem of black and Hispanic and 
female-owned businesses is raising the venture capital. 

So, the original Rangel amendment was a $100,000 expense that 
you could write off in 1 year the investment in the enterprise, 
many of which, I believe, will be minority. So, I think MESBIC is 
one way to micromanage it, and I support it, but a better way, or 
as good a way, or an expanded way, is to accept the Rangel amend­
ment, which I accepted, fought for-fought for, Charlie-kept in 
the President's bill because of my commitment to you and my com­
mitment to Earl Graves, of Black Enterprise magazine and the 
black publishers to whom I spoke in your city last week, and it is 
strongly supported by the administration. 

So, I think MESBIC's are important. I think the expensing of the 
investment in a minority enterprise in an enterprise zone is impor­
tant, and getting access to capital is important, but you also have 
to have a reward for the man or woman, no matter their color, who 
actUally takes a risk and puts their capital into a small business in 
the zone. And, so, there is an entrepreneurial incentive, there is a 
venture capital incentive to drive capital into these minority enter­
prises, and then there is an incentive for the worker who takes-­
and, incidentally, in the Rostenkowski bill, there is no incentive for 
the worker. 

Talk about trickle-down economics--I don't want to sit here and 
drop any poison on the effort that the chairman of the Ways and 
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Means Committee is making because I'm very grateful to him for 
his support of the concept but, in effect, he gives an incentive to 
the company to hire the employee in the zone. I favor that. I think 
that's a good idea. . 

But you've got to go one step further. You've got to create a 
greater reward for working than remaining on welfare in the zone. 
You've got to offset the payroll tax, and the payroll tax is a terrible 
burden on a woman. who is on welfare or AFDC, or a father who is 
unemployed. 

Mr. MFUME. Mr. Secretary, let me go back to the other side of 
this. I want to stay with capital formation, if I might. How do you 
see that occurring on the front side of the equation? I understand 
and I agree with your concepts about how we reward and provide 
incentives on the second half of this but, initially, before even the 
location of the business into these zones, do you have some ideas 
perhaps on capital formation that you could offer here to this com­
mittee and the minority business community? 

Mr. KEMP. Well, you gave us one for minority enterprises, that 
is, MESBIC. I think the Rangel amendment to expense was a good 
investment incentive to form capital. I think eliminating the tax 
on the capital gains and the alternative minimum tax-let me tell 
you, you may not believe in it, Charlie, but I'll guarantee you that 
is an incentive. That is a tremendous incentive. 

Mr. RANGEL. You know there is going to be an amendment to the 
Rostenkowski bill? 

Mr. KEMP. Right. 
Mr. RANGEL. And that amendment, Mr. Mfume, will include 

some $10 million a year--
Mr. KEMP. For expensing. 
Mr. RANGEL [continuing]. Additional moneys for MESBIC's in the 

enterprise zones. In addition to that, at the insistence-and to give 
full credit to the Secretary-at. the insistence of the Secretary, it is 
going to relax the capital gains provision. This will be an amend-
ment. . 

Mr. KEMP. That's a good start. 
Mr. RANGEL. And I also would like to say that there's $2.5 billion 

here that will be an amendment to the enterprise zones, that 
would be targeted to the 50 enterprise zones---. 

Mr. KEMP. Half of which are in rural America. 
Mr. RANGEL [continuing]. At the insistence of the administration. 
Mr. KEMP. No, no, no, Charles. You've got a lot of press here. 

Don'tbe-
Mr. RANGEL. Well, I'll tell you one thing, unless--
Mr. KEMP. That was the Rostenkowski bill. Rostenkowski's first 

enterprise zone bill had two-thirds for rural and one-third for 
urban America. 

Mr. RANGEL. You know, you and I are going to have a press con­
ference when we leave here because I'm telling you that the ad­
ministration says that this is their bill, and that they wanted it to 
be a rural and urban bill. 

Mr. KEMP. Ours is, it's 70 percent urban and 30 percent rural. 
Mr. RANGEL. And I tell you, I will back off this bill as soon as the 

administration says they don't want the rural-I mean, if they 
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insist that the rural be a part of it, and you're telling me that you 
didn't want the rural there, right? 

Mr. KEMP. Charles, I said--
Mr. RANGEL. Should we drop the rural? 
Mr. KEMP [continuing]. Of the 300 zones, one-third are in rural 

.America and two-thirds in urban America. 
Mr. RANGEL. I wish you could stay for some of the mayors that 

are going to come because the question I'm going to raise to them; 
if we have 300 enterprise zones, and you know we are restricted to 
$2.5 billion over a 5-year period, how much are the mayors going to 
get? 

Mr. KEMP. Do you know what a mayor is going to get? 
Mr. RANGEL. Yes. . 
Mr. KEMP. In every area with endemic poverty and chronic un­

employment, he or she will get carved out of those redlined areas, 
a zone that is now greenlined that qualifies for the Federal tax in­
centives that I have addressed here, and one-third-one-third, 
Charlie-one-third will go to rural America. That's more than the 
Rostenkowski bill. 

Now, I'm doing to you what you guys do to Republicans when 
you bring a spending bill on the floor and you pass out all the goo­
dies and then ask guys to vote against the goodies for their district. 

I'm telling you that tomorrow I'm going to tell every Member of 
Congress that if you want an enterprise zone in your city, and if 
you want to support urban America, and rural America, and fight­
ing poverty with jobs, you can get 300 zones under the Bush admin­
istration's proposal and 50 zones under the Rostenkowski proposal. 
So, I'm turning the tables on you, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. RANGEL. Sure, ~ou're bringing everything except the money. 
Mr. KEMP. It doesn t cost money to eliminate a tax on an entre­

preneur that does not yet exist. Once he or she makes a decision to 
start a company, to start a business, to start an enterprise, to in­
crease an asset, or to create wealth ill an inner-city envi~onment, 
you help the tax base of the inner city, and you add to the wealth 
of America, and you create tax payers instead of tax consumers. 
Now, if we don't understand that, we don't understand how to 
create a tax base for a city. 

Mr. RANGEL. There are two parts to this bill; one is tax, and I 
think you are blinded by the other side, which HUD will have ju­
risdiction over, which is called "seed." These are the resources­
this is what we're talking about-Head Start, education, drug 
abuse, housing, and community policing. Have you no concern at 
all that we provide enough services for these enterprise zones, of 
which you are the author, the father, don't you want these to be 
successful? 

Mr. KEMP. Wait a minute. Let me explain this to you. I'm not 
the author and the father of it, I am just the-

Mr. RANGEL. Well, you're the prime mover. 
Mr. KEMP. I'm just a lonely, Indiana Jones going through the 

Valley of Doom, with tarantulas and poison darts at every step of 
the way, for 12 years. [Laughter.] 

Mr. RANGEL. Well, it's unfortunate that you cannot persuade 
some of your Republican friends to support you--

Mr. KEMP. Hey, that bothers me-
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Mr. RANGEL [continuing]. But you've got me, Jack. 
Mr. KEMP [continuing]. That bothers me. Charlie-­
Mr. RANGEL. Go ahead, Mr. Gilman. 
Mr. GILMAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My only concern is that 

your criteria seem to be awfully tight for the smaller cities, and 
while I recognize the need in the larger cities, and I recognize the 
need in the poverty area, and I recognize the need for unemploy­
ment--

Mr. KEMP. Look at the number, though, Ben, look at the number. 
Look at the cities. Clarksdale, M~larksdale, MS-Mayor Henry 
Espy, the president ·ryf the National Conference of Black Mayors, 
most of which are in small rural towns, and villages, and cities, is a 
strong supporter of the enterprise zone. 

Mr. GILMAN. Well, Jack, I support--
Mr. KEMP. I mean, it is designed for Colonials in Texas, and-­
Mr. GILMAN. Some of ou!' smaller areas that meet your criteria 

are not going to be included, and I've asked my staff to check some 
of our other areas. 

Let me ask you one other thing; you did a lot of work in clearing 
up some of the drug problems in our housing projects, but yet there 
are a lot of our housing projects laying out there that are vacant, 
and we haven't provided the funds to rehabilitate them. What are 
you doing in that direction? 

Mr. KEMP. We're spending $2.8 billion in ClAP, the Comprehen­
sive Improvement Assistance Program money, ClAP money, mod­
ernization moneys. There are $2.8 billion. There are another sever­
al billion in the pipeline. There are 105,000 vacant units. Those 
moneys that you appropriate should be spent, ih my view, taking 
the boards off and putting families in. But, unfortunately, both 
ClAP and rental public housing operating subsidies are predicated 
upon the number of units, whether they are vacant or occupied. 
And I asked the Congress to give me an antidrug tool to say to a 
public housing authority in a city, whether it's Los Angeles or De­
troit, we will subsidize the modernization, rehabilitation, and pull­
ing the boards off that unit, putting a family in, but let us use the 
incentive of only subsidizing occupancy instead of subsidizing va­
cancy, and the Congress turned me down. 

I would beg you, if you want a good antidrug effort, allow us at 
HUD to use our operating subsidies in such a way as to encourage 
the public housing authorities to get a family in and to get the 
boards off, as Mayor Sharon Pratt Kelly is doing in DC. We will 
spend $2.8 billion in ClAP modernization money, we'll spend $2.4 
billion in operating subsidies, we'll spend $3 billion on CDBG, we'll 
spend $165 million on antidrug efforts, give us an enterprise zone 
and some tools to get the public housing authorities to put families 
into those 105,000 vacant units, I'll guarantee you those jobs and 
those occupied units will do more to stop drug trafficking, with 
some good weeding and seeding, than all of-we can cut down that 
$300 billion, I believe that, but we've got to change the rules of the 
game. 

The rules of the game are predicated on empowering public hous­
ing authorities instead of empowering the residents themselves, 
and therein lies the secret to whatever success we're going to have 
in these communities. 

---------------_._--------- -
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Mr. GILMAN. Is that included in the proposal that is before 
us-

Mr. KEMP. It was in "Operation Perestroika," our radical reform 
of the welfare and public housing authority PHA in troubled public 
housing around the country, yes, sir. 
Mr.G~LMAN. Will those proposals be in the measure before-­
Mr. KEMP. They will be in every year as long as I'm there. 
Mr. GILMAN [continuing]. That will be before us tomorrow in the 

Bush--
Mr. KEMP. No, tomorrow you just have the tax side of it. 
Mr. GILMAN. What is before us that we can work on to do what 

you've just reviewed? 
Mr. KEMP. It's in the National Affordable Housing Act, the au­

thorization. We need to amend it on the floor. The bill doesn't re­
quire public housing authorities in troubled public housing cities to 
engage in pulling off the boards and only getting subsidies for occu­
pied, not vacant units. 

You ask Virginia Wilkes in north Philly, at Richard Allen Public 
Housing, what she thinks is the most important program to get the 
drugs out, other than police on the premises and tenant manage­
ment, it would be getting the boards off and getting families in 
there and getting the crack doer out. 

Mr. GILMAN. Many of us agree with that. Where is that measure 
now? 

Mr. KEMP. It will be in the National Affordable Housing Act au­
thorization that comes before the House, I assume, this summer. . 

Mr. GILMAN. Thank yon, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. The next speakers in order are Mr. Dornan, Ms. 

Lowey, Mr. Ramstad, and Mr. Payne. The Chair recognizes Mr. 
Dornan. 

Mr. DORNAN. Thank you, Mt. Chairman. Mr. Secretary, what's 
going to happen, again to go over this ground, to the Weed and 
Seed Program? We read in some of the accounts that it's just going 
to go by the boards. My largest city, Santa Ana, has all of the 
crime problems in microcosm of New York, Chicago, or south cen­
tral Los Angeles, and it was picked as one of the designated Weed 
and Seed areas. And it seems to me in the first 3 months, an abso­
lutely dazzling success. 

Now, how important to enterprise zones is weeding out the crime 
in the area where you intend to create jobs, and working on the 
positive seed side? 

Mr. KEMP. I think it's important, so important that I have 
strongly supported Chairman Rangel's efforts to work with OMB­
and Dick Darman has been very cooperative, I think, with the 
chairman, as he would acknowledge-in trying to make sure that 
the Weed and Seed Program, by and large, is targeted to the enter­
prise zone. And I give the chairman credit, and I give Dick Darman 
at OMB some credit, because he was sensitive to the chairman's ar­
gument that it doesn't make any sense just to create a zone for en­
terprise and not do something to make sure that there are targeted 
efforts to weed out crime and seed it with opportunity, seed it with 
social services. 

But I was only making the point earlier, Bob, that ultimately 
social services, as important as they are, are part of the safety net, 
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and what I'm trying to create, and what we should be creating, 
through an enterprise zone, is a ladder of opportunity out of pover­
ty upon which people can climb. 

So, both fighting crime and fighting drugs, in my view, requires a 
greater effort to create more jobs for our inner city youths than-I 
don't want to sound like an economic determinist, but I am pretty 
close to it, in the sense that I believe that the best anticrime pro­
gram, antidrug program, antiwelfare program, is a more energetic 
national commitment to reduce the unemployment level of the 
country to about 3 or 4 percent and bring down minority unem­
ployment by 50 percent in the next 2 or 3 years-by 50 percent. 

We really have to radically alter the inner city economy in order 
to create more jobs. So, weeding and seeding is important. I consid­
er the job element of this and the incentive element of this the 
most important part of it~ but Weed and Seed is as critical to it as 
Chairman Rangel pointed out. 

Mr. DORNAN. With your seniority, Jack, of 13 years on this issue, 
what did you think when you analyzed Chris Cox', or my colleague 
from Orange County, his idea of turbo enterprise zones, the word 
Uturbo" just meaning--

Mr. KEMP. Supercharged. 
Mr. DORNAN [continuing]. That people are so desperate in south 

central LA, where you worked as a kid, that maybe we had to just 
fork over every single we could probably think of, to turn a part of 
south central LA into one big duty-free shop with manufacturing. 

Mr. KEMP. You know, it's interesting you say that. When Henry 
Nowak was Congressman of Buffalo and I was Congressman from 
the suburbs, we had a free-trade zone in the Buffalo Harbor, and I 
was from the suburbs, and everybody asked me, uWh~ did you sup­
port a free-trade zone for Buffalo's harbor?" I said, 'Well, because 
anything that comes into the Buffalo Harbor in terms of trade ulti­
mately rebounds to the benefit of the city, the suburbs, the farm 
community, the rural community, the State of New York, the COUil­
try. I'm for free trade. I happen to be liberal on trade." 

Now, having said that, that's where I got the idea. Why not 
create a free-enterprise zone along with the free-trade zone? Excuse 
me for waxing poetic about my memories about how long we've 
been talking about this, but a turbocharged, supercharged-Chris 
Hayes, from Connecticut, let me pay him a compliment, after tear­
ing his head off a few moments ago--

Mr. SHAYS. You've got to get my name right first, Jack, it's 
Shays. . 

Mr. KEMP. What did I say, Hayes or Shays? I apologize, Chris. 
Mr. PAYNE. I think Hayes is from Chicago. [Laughter.] 
Mr. KEMP. Thanks, Payne. Thanks, Wayne. [Lau9hter.] 
But, seriously, I tore my good friend Chris Shays head off a little 

bit earlier, for something I thought he was saying, and I apologize 
to him and hope he accepts it in the spirit that I give it, but he has 
ideas, good ideas. The chairman has good ideas. There are a lot of 
good ideas. Traficant had a good idea. Mfume has good ideas. There 
isn't a man or woman on this committee that doesn't have a good 
idea, but, you know, don't let perfection stand in the way of the 
good. We've got to vote tomorrow up or down, on a supercharged, 
turbo enterprise zone. It's the administration's bill. I'm sorry it's 
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called the administration's bill. I wish I could have lured, enticed, 
mesmerized, hypnotized myoid comrade-in-arms in this battle, 
Charlie Rangel, to support it, but he decided that he had to stick 
with the leadership of-you know, people are out of work, people 
are hurting, and Charlie is worried about the cost of our enterprise 
zone bill, but we'll get it back. 

Mr. DORNAN. Jack, let me ask a closing question here. Coming 
full circle to one of your opening remarks--

Mr. KEMP. Sorry you invited me, Charlie? 
Mr. RANGEL. No, you're welcome. We always need another point 

of view. 
Mr. DORNAN. This is the Narcotics Committee, and you said in 

one of your opening remarks that the news media just seem to con­
stitutionally be unable to cover anything positive. The theme of 
"good news is no news,r has really become a destructive force in 
America that it has an obligation--

Mr. KEMP. Well, I don't want to turn this from drugs into bash­
ing the press, but I was disappointed, Bob, yesterday, here's an 80-
year-old black woman who finally gets her first home in her life to 
own, and is in tears to get a new home, with property that she 
owns, in a former HUD-assisted 221(d)(3) program in which she 
would have been a renter, now she's an owner-she's in tears, and 
there were 50 cameras there, and it was nowhere to be found. 

I don't want the picture on me; it should have been on her, and 
there was not a word, not a sentence in the newspaper, it wasn't on 
evening news, and it's a shame because homesteading is alive in 
America, and it's working. 

Mr. DORNAN. Well, there must be something you're doing right, 
Mr. Secretary, in your criticism of the media, because I saw some 
survey the other day where the media, at some conference, said 
that you rank higher in esteem, with all of the brothers and sisters 
in support of the State, than anybody else in public life. 

Mr. KEMP. I doubt that. I fmd that hard to believe. 
Mr. DORNAN. I don't know how you can put the whip to them 

and still have them love you, and I think it may be because you 
have found a voice for the party, on how to shift from the cold war 
struggle, the desperate struggle where the key word was "free­
dom," to the struggle internally in our own Nation where I think 
the equivalent word to freedom is "entrepreneurship," and because 
you found that voice for the party, I'm recommending that you be 
the keynoter at the convention in July--

Mr. KEMP. Well, that will kill it. [Laughter.] 
Whatever chances I had have now been thrown out the window. 
Mr. DORNAN. Well, start looki.ng for those Shakespearean flour-

ishes and--
Mr. KEMP. Before Dornan said that, my chances were slim and 

none. Now, they are slim, none, and zero. I'm teasing you, Bob, 
you're a good friend. I appreciate it. No, I'm going to go on vaca­
tion during the Republican Convention. 

Mr. DORNAN [continuing]. Your whole life for the next 126 days 
until the election, 1-2-6 from today, Mr. Secretary, so I just want 
to thank you for finding a voice for the party because it seems to 
be lost in the cloakroom because I don't know anybody on the right 
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who is attacking or disagrees with you, it's just a lot of people can't 
seem to find the voice that you have found inside yourself. 

Mr. KEMP. That's kind of you to say, Bob. I appreciate it. I hope 
it's not a party voice because there are a lot of people on the left 
and the right who want to find solutions, and I'm just trying to 
find some solutions. 

Mr. RANGEL. Ms. Lowey. 
Ms. LOWEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And I want to thank you, 

Mr. Secretary, for coming before us and, in listening to your elo­
quence, I find I agree with a good deal of what you are saying, but 
I do have a couple of questions and a couple of points that I want 
to make. 

First of all, I think it's very important as we look at these crite­
ria and the qualifications for an enterprise zone, that we don't 
forget those hard-hit suburbs, the Mount Vernons and the Yonkers 
of the world, that really took part in the boom of the 1980's and 
the bust of the 1980's, so I think that's very important. 

Second, and I could give an example, Yonkers. Representative 
Gilman mentioned the hard-hit suburbs before, and Yonkers, NY, 
has been the beneficiary of a New York State enterprise zone pro­
gram, but following up on what Congressman Rangel said, in addi­
tion to all the tax benefits, it also pro"ides for child care, job train­
ing, and some dealing with the problems of troubled youth. 

I represent Mount Vernon. I represent Yonkers. And you men­
tioned before that you, and I believe Mr. Coughlin, don't have the 
opportunity to go into some of these areas-I'm there all the time 
as a Democrat. I'm in those areas. I met just last week with a 
group of 45 minority business owners in Mount Vernon. They can't 
get a loan from this administration, from SBA. They can't get 
money from the banks, there's a credit crunch. They can't open a 
shop because of the crime. They are in trouble. 

Mr. KEMP. Sure they are. 
Ms. LOWEY. So, I think the enterprise zones are a great idea, but 

I can't understand, No.1, how you want to expand it to 300 with 
the same amount of money. V\t11at's it going to give us? Unless we 
really make a push, like in Yonkers where they created 1,000 new 
jobs-l,OOO new jobs-41 new businesses, providing all that assist­
ance, dealing vvith the social ills, really providing the support for 
the new businesses, just all the tax breaks-I can't believe-you 
know, we lived with the 1980's, with the trickle-down economics. It 
seems to me that we have to really deal with it seriously. 

You know, when I heard that Nassau in Suffolk was declared a 
high-intensity drug area, Congressman Gilman and I fought to get 
Westchester County declared a high intensity drug area. We 
weren'I; thrilled with that, but we figured if we have the problem of 
drugs in our community, we might as well have the money that 
goes along with it to address our problem. 

So, perhaps you could address two pointe. No.1, the qualifica­
tions, how are distressed suburbs, places like Mount Vernon and 
Yonkers that are suffering, going to benefit? No.2, how, if we're 
going to expand to 300 with the same $2.5 billion cap, I don't un­
derstand how all that is irrelevant, how the dollars are irrelevant. 

Mr. KEMP. Let me take the second part of the question first, the 
$2.5 billion. Look, this is subjective. It is subjective. It is subjective 
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for the tax committee that writes them in the Senate. It's subjec­
tive for the Treasury that thinks it will cost $2.5 billion. It is sub­
jective for CBO. It is a subjective dEltermination that if you elimi­
nate a tax on something that doesn't exist and comes into being 
because of the carrot/reward/incentive, you will add to the tax 
base and reduce the cost of the social welfare conditions that are 
plaguing our Nation's inner cities. 

Now, I can't quantify it, Nita, because it is something that is-­
it's indefinable. 

Ms. LOWEY. OK. Let me ask the question a different way, Mr. 
Secretary, because I know I'm going to be--

Mr. KEMP. But do you understand what I'm saying? 
Ms. LoWEY. I don't understand what you are saying. How do 

you--
Mr. KEMP. Ask the mayors when they come up here. I've got a 

good question for you. Ask the mayors themselves, and they are 
not RepUblican. Don't worry, nobody is going to give you false in­
formation. 

Ms. LOWEY. No, no. Some of my best friends, like Chris Shays, 
are Republican--

Mr. KEMP. You just don't want them in the neighborhood. 
Ms. LOWEY [continuing]. And Congressman Gilman. No. Let 

me--
Mr. KEMP. Ask the mayors how much revenue they are raising 

from taxing entities that don't now exist. Now, that's not a stupid 
question. The cities of America are starved for a better tax base. 
And if you could create a better tax base in the inner city, the so­
called $2.5 billion will evaporate-will evaporate. 

Ms. LoWEY. I understand. Perhaps you could address another 
point. You talked about capital formation. You want to get all 
these business people to take risks and invest in our inner cities. I 
am telling you, in talking to my minority business owners, they 
can't get the capital. They would love to take a risk. They can't get 
it from SBA. They can't get it from the banks. 

Mr. KEMP. Nita, please, please, we've been over this five times. 
Ms. LOWEY. Well, excuse me--
Mr. KEMP. I am not asking General Motors to move to Yonkers. 

There's nothing in this for General Motors. 
Ms. LOWEY. I am talking about Carol Morris, Mr. Secretary, how 

is she going to get the capital under this program--
Mr. KEMP. Let me explain it to you. If she's got a good idea for 

making widgets, or building a better mousetrap, and she can sell it 
to a venture capitalist, he can write off up to $250,000 of his or her 
investment in Carol's new widget idea. 

Ms. LOWEY. But she has to go to the big guy. She's a small busi­
ness----

Mr. KEMP. She's got to go to somebody. How do you get capital in 
America? 

Ms. LOWEY. But the banks in our area are saying there are too 
many drugs, there's too much crime, there aren't enough police on 
the street, and I'm not going to invest there. So, we have to deal 
with the SBA. We have to make sure--

Mr. KEMP. SBA finances one-tenth of 1 percent of the total small 
business development in the United States of America. With all 
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due respect to SBA, where you get formation of capital is from sav­
ings, from relatives, from friends, from venture capitalists, from in­
centives that will encourage people to invest in Carol's business. I 
don't want a battle between suburbs and the city; I don't want a 
battle between urban and rural America. The bill is designed in 
such a way as to say tomorrow on the floor that if you have an 
area with certain criteria, that is, endemic poverty, chronic unem­
ployment, shrinking tax bases, then you can qualify, whether it's 
Yonkers or York, or whether it's Harlem or east LA. And I don't 
want to pick the zones. It ought to be done on objective criteria. 

Ms. LOWEY. Mr. Secretary, my time is up, so let me just conclude 
by saying I support the concept of enterprise zones. I support .. 
almost everything you're saying. But I think we have to do this se-
riously. We have to really invest in these seriously, by doing the 
support services to make it possible for these businesses to survive 
in the drug-infested areas. ~ 

Mr. KEMP. I agree with that. I agree with that. Excuse me, Mr. 
Chairman, I am frustrated. I've got to go catch a plane to Chica­
go-I've got to come back tonight, I've got to .go back to San Anto­
nio for a meeting on Thursday, come back Thursday night. I was in 
South Bronx with the president of the Bronx, Freddie Ferrara. I'm • 
not spending my time, Nita, sitting in the 10th floor at HUn, but 
I'm telling you, to tell me to get serious is like telling--

Ms. LoWEY. No, no, no, pleac,;e, I don't mean-this is a proposal of 
yours that you have been selling. You are serious. I'm saying that 
we have to get serious and invest to support your enterprise zone 
initiative-

Mr. KEMP. I agree with that. You'll get a chance tomorrow to 
prove how serious we are-

Ms. LOWEY [continuing]. With $2.5 billion for 300 cities? 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Ramstad. 
Mr. RAMSTAD. Mr. Chairman. Mr. Secretary, given the interest of 

time, I'm going to be very brief. I know our distinguished Secretary 
is anxious to get his can of Ultra SlimFast down by noon. By the 
way, I took your lead, Mr. Secretary, and it was a good one. 

I do want to make two points. I was sitting in the doctor's office 
last week reading a Newsweek magazine, and a woman from Tren­
ton, NJ, when commenting on the Weed and Seed pilot program in 
that city said, and I'm quoting Nina Ford, a florist in Trenton. She 
said, "We're coming together as a neighborhood because of Weed 
and Seed." That's the strongest possible endorsement any program 
of this nature can receive. And I commend you, Mr. Secretary, for • 
all you've done not only to promote Weed and Seed, but to promote 
enterprise zones to revive our cities and create jobs as well as all of 
your efforts on behalf of the HOPE Program. Only with a compre-
hensive approach will we begin to address the serious problems ~ 
facing our cities, and it seems the ultimate irony would be that we 
can afford to free the Communist world and, as you put it, Mr. Sec-
retary, in your testimony, and lose our soul at home. We simply 
can't afford to lose the war on drugs nor the battle for competitive-
ness, both of which are so essential to this country. So, hang in 
there, Mr. Secretary. • 

Mr. KEMP. I will. Thank you, Jim. 
Mr. RAMSTAD. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
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Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Payne. 
Mr. PAYNE. Thank you. Let me, Mr. Secretary, not hold you up. I 

just would also like to say that it's really good to see you. We en­
joyed your trip to Newark, NJ, when we opened up one of the first 
supermarkets in Newark since 1967, Father Lender--

Mr. KEMP. How's it doing? 
Mr. PAYNE. It's going really well, fantastic. 
Mr. KEMP. Good. Tell Monsignor Lender hello. 
Mr. PAYNE. And also the visit to Hyde Park Gardens. It was only 

1 week ago when I mentioned to one of your Assistant Secretaries 
that you were probably a breath of fresh air to your party--

Mr. KEMP. Hot air, maybe. 
Mr. PAYNE. I don't know what they think about you, but I think 

that some of the programs that you have advocated are good, and 
when the urban crisis developed and exploded in Los Angeles, I'm 
glad you were there, because I don't think anybody else in the Cab­
inet knew there were problems in our cities. So, in that regard, we 
are thankful. 

Mr. KEMP. Thank you. 
Mr. PAYNE. I would ask you about the requirements for this en­

terprise zone moving from 50 to 300, but it seems to frustrate you. I 
won't ask you again, but we do have problems with the fact that it 
does seem to be seriously underfunded. 

We also would like to see some of the other agencies do their job. 
You mentioned redlining in your talk a little while ago, and if 
some of the Federal agencies that are responsible for breaking 
down disinvestment on your side, would regulate like they are sup­
posed to, then some of the problems endemic to these areas that 
should be designated enterprise zones would not exist. 

Mr. KEMP. Such as? 
Mr. PAYNE. Well, if they would lend money to people who are 

qualified applicants, and, for example, they even have this new 
thing where several occurrences of the same situation proves noth­
ing statistically. You know, it's a good thing you're not playing 
football now, because they say statistics don't count. You could 
throw 10 passes and they could all be caught, but that doesn't say 
that you're a good passer. They say these occurrences, on their 
own, make no difference. 

They did some surveys, as you know, where they took black men, 
college graduates, with an income of about $40,000, who applied for 
a loan. A white man, who is a high school graduate, with an 
income of $20,000, gets the loan, the black man is denied the loan. 
They say statistics cannot prove anything. 

Now, when I see a guy throw 10 passes and 10 get caught, I say 
he must be pretty accurate. They say these studies do not demon­
strate redlining because an empirical case study must be done for 
each individual. 

Mr. KEMP. You're right, Don. 
Mr. PAYNE. So, you play in a lot of games, and if people would 

simply enforce some of the regulations that ban these practices, 
like you attempt to do 'With the area that you have, this would 
stop. 

I agree with you, the Government-taxpayers-should not be 
paying for vacant apartments. That makes no sense. What is the 
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incentive for fIlling them up? And I think that if you laid it out, 
you'd find that there's a lot more support out there for something 
that makes sense like that. 

Mr. KEMP. Lay it out'? I've been laying it out for 3 years. It's 
been in the budget for 3 years. 

Mr. PAYNE. No, you've been talking about--
Mr. KEMP. You keep beating up on the President, and I've put it 

in his budget for 3 years. 
Mr. PAYNE. No, you've been talking about HOME and HOPE 

Programs. I'm talking about--
Mr. KEMP. No, I'm talking about-Operation Occupancy was in­

troduced to the Congress 2 years ago. 
Mr. PAYNE. Well, that makes sense. 
Mr. KEMP. We asked for $1 billion in HOPE, and the authorizing 

committee cut it to $361 million. The one p'rogram that is demon­
strably working in the inner city, to give people a chance to 
manage and control their own public housing community, and ulti­
mately own if they choose-if they choose-with no net loss of 
public housing because you've got to replace it one-for-one-with 
total choice for the residents-I'm looking at Mayor Rice because 
he and I had a friendly discussion over this in Seattle-and they 
took a $1 billion program, the President begged for it, every resi­
dent management council in America begs for it, and it was cut to 
$361 million by the authorizing committee. I'm frustrated. I'm frus­
trated, guys. My frustration takes strange formations at times. 

Mr. PAYNE. He's a good man, though, Congressman Shays. 
Mr. KEMP. He's a great guy, Chris Shays-I wouldn't have 

cleaned up HUD without Chris Shays and Tommy Lantos. 
Mr. PAYNE. Let me just say with Weed and Seed, I'm hoping that 

you get more emphasis on the seed side. I read somewhere that 
Mayor Rice-you've been referring to him-wanted to move into a 
little more seeding, but they wanted to just deal with the weeding. 

Now, there need to be those things that build up a community. 
We know we've got to take out the bad guys, but if you don't 
commit the resources to help the good guys, then once again, the 
weeds are going to come back. 

Mr. KEMP. I agree. There's a third way, too. There is seeding 
with social services. There is weeding out crime. And then there's 
giving those young men and women, particularly minority men 
and women living in the center city, a chance to get an education, 
a chance to get a job, a chance to live in a home that's owned by 
mom and pop, or whoever is head of the family, be it a single 
parent 01' two-parent family. 

I know this is an anticrime task force subcommittee, but I'm 
only here to talk about the job side of it. I'm not Weed and Seed, 
that's the Justice Department. I'm not Secretary Sullivan, who I 
think has done an outstanding job at HHS. I'm the lonely, crusad­
ing, indefatigable czar of housing and urban economic develop­
ment, and I've got one task before me in the next 24 hours-and I 
apologize to the mayor of Tampa, apologize to the mayors of York 
and Seattle, and apologize to my friends who I have probably tres­
passed upon so roundly-but we have one task, we've got 24 hours 
to pass a bill and give some hope to Los Angeles, but also to Comp­
ton, and not just to Compton in LA, but to Boyle Heights and to 
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Inglewood, and to Harlem, and Trenton, and Newark, and Yonkers, 
and Clarksdale-don't leave out Clarksdale, MS, where Henry 
Espy, chairman of the Conference of U.S. Mayors, wants an enter­
prise zone. Don't leave him out. Why pass an enterprise zone that 
only gives one to one State and that's it? 

Do we have to prove once again, after 200 years, that a job is 
. better than a welfare check,. that an enterprise is better than 
public expenditure of funds? I'm for public expenditures of funds, 
but we've got to bring equilibrium between the public and the pri­
vate sector. And everybody talks about pUblic-private partnerships, 
and everybody forgets the private side of it. How do you get public­
private partnerships without encouraging private enterprise? And 
why is private enterprise popular in China and Moscow, and so un­
popular in the U.S. Congress? 

Mr. PAYNE.·I have been told my time has expired, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. Mr. Secretary, on behalf of the committee and the 

Congress and, indeed, the Nation, let me thank you for the leader­
ship that you've provided. One question. The so-called Presidential 
amendmEmt, or the- Republican amendment, tomorrow, would that 
relate itself only to the tax part of the enterprise zone? Because if 
it does, count me in. And it's unfortunate that whoever is putting 
that in has not shared it with anyone. 

Mr. KEMP. I gave it to you last week. 
Mr. RANGEL. If you're not talking about the seed money-­
Mr. KEMP. I gave it to you last week. 
Mr. RANGEL. Please, they are two different things. If you're not 

talking about the seed money and you are talking about the tax 
aspects of it, I would want you to know that you can count on my 
support on the floor, and vocally, for that part. There will be an 
amendment tomorrow, as you well know, that will try to take the 
capital gains and the seed part and mesh it in one vote. 

Mr. KEMP. That's good. I approve of that. I like that. I strongly 
endorse it. 

Mr. RANGEL. But I don't know what you're talking about with 
the so-called Presidential amendment in terms---

Mr. KEMP. Charlie, you've got all the cameras focused on you 
and me here, and let me just tell you once again. I want to say on 
behalf of the administration that we strongly support the effort 
that you and Chairman Rostenkowski and Majority Leader Gep­
hardt have made to try to fashion a compromise and. to bring in a 
bill that at least will get us into the House and up on the floor and 
get a vote and get something over to the Senate, and then confer­
ence will take place, and hopefully the President can sign it and 
we can feel good that we made something happen before July 4. So, 
I say that on behalf of the administration. 

There will be a substitute tomorrow, to try to improve it on the 
floor, and we will do the best we can. I told the same thing to 
Traficaut, the same thing to Shays, the same thing to Mfume, and 
the same thing to any other Members who ask me-Tony Hall has 
asked me about his ideas-we have a chance to get it from the 
House to the Senate and improve it, but if we lose it on the floor of 
the House, it's the last chance we have this year on having enter­
prise zones. 



34 

Mr. RANGEL. You have my support to expand the tax part, as 
well as whatever help I can give on the Senate side. 

Mr. KEMP. Thank you. 
Mr. RANGEL. And thank you for hanging around. 
Mr. KEMP. Thank you for your patience. You are a dear friend 

and a great patriot, and I hope I have not offended anybody on the 
committee. 

Mr. RANGEL. The next 24 hours are going to be crucial and, as 
Mr. Payne said, it was helpful to know when we had that unfortu­
nate tragedy in Los Angeles, that at least somebody in the adminis­
tration knew what caused it, and someone is trying to ease the 
pain to prevent that from happening in any part of America. You 
did a great job, and we've got a lot of work to do. 

Mr. KEMP. You're right. Peter Uberroth said Friday in LA, that 
there are 100 investors ready and willing to invest, for every $1 of 
tax break he can leverage it against $100 of private investment, 
but they are not going to invest unless the Congress sends a signal 
right now to south central LA or Santa Ana, or to Compton, or to 
any other area of the country. Put some teeth into the Tax Code to 
encourage the private sector to invest and raise some capital and 
credit for those redlined areas, which I frnd as objectionable, Nita, 
as do you. I think it is un-Arnerican-un-American-but the whole 
country has been redlined by the credit crunch. 

Mr. GILMAN. Jack, we want to support the measure. Our offices 
haven't received anything on the new measure yet. 

Mr. KEMP. You know, Ben-do me a favor, check your office. 
Mr. GILMAN. I just checked with my--
Mr. KEMP. I've sent the bill. I have sent my testimony. I have 

sent the cities. I have sent your office an.d every Member of the 
Congress. 

Mr. GILMAN. I've checked with my colleagues. I think you ought 
to make certain that we have the information we need by tomor­
row. 

Mr. RANGEL. It will work out, don't you worry. 
Mr. COUGHLIN. Thanks for your efforts, Mr. Secretary, you've 

done a tremendous job. 
Mr. KEMP. Thank you. 
Mr. GILMAN. We'll be in the trenches, at any rate. 
Mr. KEMP. Don't do it for me, do it for the people. 
Mr. RANGEL. Well, let me thank the mayors-you know that all 

of the mayors have a friend with Jack Kemp, so I know that you 
understand how important it is for us to have heard his testimony, 
and we call now the mayor of York, PA, the Honorable Williru:n 
Althaus, president of the U.S. Conference of Mayors, your testimo­
ny is going to be very important on this subject matter; the Honor­
able Maryann Mahaffey, president of the Detroit City Council; 
Hon. Norman Rice, mayor of Seattle, WA; and, of course, the first 
introduced, the mayor of Tampa, Sandra Freedman. 
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STATEMENT OF HON. WILLIAM ALTHAUS, MAYOR OF YORK, PA, 
PRESIDENT, U.S. CONFERENCE OF MAYORS, ACCOMPANIED BY 
HON. MARYANN MAHAFFEY, PRESIDENT, DETROIT CITY COUN­
CIL, CHAIR, HUMAN DEVELOPMENT POLICY COMMITl'EE, NA­
TIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES; HON. NORMAN B. RICE, MAYOR OF 
SEATTLE" WA; AND BON. SANDRA FREEDMAN, MAYOR OF 
TAMPA, FL 

STATEMENT OF HON. WILUAM ALTHAUS 

Mr. ALTHAUS. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I have pre­
pared testimony, and I haven't the slightest intention of reading a 
word of it. 

It is nice to be welcomed by a friend from Pennsylvania, and on 
behalf of Pennsylvania, we are sorry that you are leaving us, but 
we wish you the very best-I'm used to this because I have fol­
lowed Jack Kemp before-and I guess on behalf of the U.S. Confer­
ence of Mayors. 

It's worth noting that I am an urban Republican, and each of us 
can figure out what on Earth that may mBan, but I am new to the 
subject of enterprise zones because I have only been before this 
Congress arguing, begging, pleading, and testifying, for the last 
10% years on the subject, and some people go back a little farther 
than that, and on behalf of the U.S. Conference of Mayors,our po­
sition on that subject is very, very simple-pass something. It has 
been 12 or 14 years since enterprise zones were introduced. It has 
been 30 or 40 years since the problems began developing seriously 
in this country. It has been 8 weeks since Los Angeles. Pass some­
thing this month, please. 

Now, this is the Select Committee on Narcotics, so I guess the 
subject is drugs, and specifically the Weed and Seed Program. The 
Conference of Mayors strongly supports the Weed and Seed con­
cept. We have several specific concerns about it that I'd like to enu­
merate. 

First of all, the Conference of Mayors believes that the money in­
volved in-the Weed and Seed Program, the seed money, should be 
new money. The admimstration's current proposal is about $500 
million, of which about 60 percent is new money and the rest is 
not. We would like to see all new money. If it is not so, a small city 
like York, PA, will see some of its community development block 
grant money go to solve the problems of Philadelphia. Now, I'm 
very close to the people of Philadelphia and the mayor of Philadel­
phia, but it shouldn't be the money I need in York, PA, that solves 
that problem. 

Mr. RANGEL. Let me interrupt only for the purpose of making 
sure that we all are reading from the same scorecard. The Secre­
tary was right in terms that a lot of this is smoke and mirrors. And 
even though, forgetting the tax portion which is even scored in a 
more bizarre way, but forgetting the $2.5 billion as relates to the 
tax benefits, you don't have to worry about the $2.5 billion with the 
seed money or the $500 million a year, coming out of any of your 
existing programs . 

Now, don't ask me where OMB found the money-­
Mr. ALTHAUS. Never ask. 
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Mr. RANGEL [continuing]. And it can't be called new money, but 
it has nothing to do with the programs that you're talking about. 
So, for all practical purposes, whether there's enough for 50-and 
strike out 50 because in the formula in which this is going-gang 
intervention, community youth, Job Corps, vocational and adult 
education, substance abuse, public housing-I don't know what's 
going to happen with the rural areas, but the formula is an urban 
formula for the seed money. 

So, whether that's enough or not, you can direct yourself to it, 
but I hope that in some way the Conference of Mayors could see its 
way clear, to say that this is a pilot project, it's not enough, it 
doesn't meet the need, but it's the first time in 12 years that at 
least the drug problem was looked upon as a human problem, and 
that jails are not the solution. It would be very helpful to this 
Member. So, I only interrupted to say that the $500 million, the 
$2.5 billion, where you have a menu of programs to choose from, 
will be there for you. And I'm sorry for the interruption. 

Mr. ALTHAUS. No, no, if you want to interrupt with telling me 
it's all new money, you can make that interruption anytime you 
want, Mr. Chairman, I appreciate that. 

The Conference of Mayors has taken the position you described, 
and you have been a good friend of the conference wd have met 
with us many times, and I think we agree on this. 

Second, one of the concerns we have in the Weed and Seed Pro­
gram is the administration, through the U.S. attorney's offices­
and my mamma ate all her dumb children, I'm not going to criti­
cize U.S. attorneys-but mayors are the people most critically on 
the streets of our cities, and just as we have said for years, that 
some of the money in the drug effort should go directly to cities, we 
believe that a lot of the decisionmaking and convening and leader­
ship in this must come from the mayors of our cities. 

The third point on Weed and Seed from our standpoint is that 
the weeding and the seeding must be done concurrently. You can't 
go in with a massive enforcement effort that doesn't give any 
promise or hope to the people you're trying to help, that something 
is going to be planted and something will flower thereafter. They 
must be done concurrently, and I think there is starting to be con­
sensus on that issue. 

On the broader subject of the drug issue, as you well know, Mr. 
Chairman, the Conference of Mayors has been asking for years 
that some of the money go directly to cities. My city has this year 
received a modest grant. It is the first time we have ever received 
any money from the Federal Government. We got it through the 
State in a program which has increasing local match, 25-50-75 per­
cent over 3 years and a declining pass-through contribution from 
the Federal Government to the locality. Now, that's a decision 
that's made in the Governor's mansion. Frankly, I think the 
mayors of the cities of this country know more about what's going 
on in the streets of this country than the Governors do. God bless 
Governors. If I ever become one, I will change my position on that, 
hut as of today, the mayors are the people out in the streets of the 
cities. And we feel very strongly about that. 

I'm going to yield the balance of my time, simply out of exhaus­
tion of hearing Mr. Kemp and this committee. [Laughter.] 

• 

• 
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And I would like to say, finally, that I agree with everything that 
was said. 

Mr. COUGHLIN. It's called vicarious exhaustion. [Laughter.] 
Mr. ALTHAUS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. RANGEL. Thank you. I look forward to working with you. We 

may have even better news after this. 
Ms. Mahaffey, president of the Detroit City Council. 

STATEMENT OF HON. MARYANN MAHAFFEY 

Ms. M..AHAFFEY. Thank you, sir. I will also only touch lightly on 
my testimony. I am here to represent the National League of 
Cities, though I must admit it's a little hard not to put on my De­
troit hat, but I will try to stick to the National League of Cities. 

There is no question that as far as we are concerned, we have to 
have direct Federal assistance to cities and towns, and it has to be 
money that supplements rather than supplants. 

We've seen enough in our town, and in the towns across the 
country, of the results of giving tax credits and tax abatements, 
and then when the tax abatement period runs out the company 
moves somewhere else. So, we're interested in supplemental 
money. We need it desperately. We need it directly to the cities, as 
my colleague to my left has stated eloquently. 

As far as we are concerned, we have to have health care for both 
the victims of violence and substance abusers because this is creat­
ing an incredible problem for cities. We are the last resort for the 
citizens. When they don't have health care coverage and they come 
into our hospitals, either our hospitals go under or, if they are 
public hospitals, they reach the point where they are in such defi­
cit that there is a drive for them to go out of business. Then people 
come to our public health clinics. We are already having trouble 
financing them. We do need desperately some health care for 
people. We also need to have more money for some of the innova­
tive programs. For example-I will speak of Detroit-we have only 
one program that really serves pregnant women who are delivering 
infants. cocaine-addicted women delivering infants. We need more 
than one. 

At the same time we are working on prevention, we have to have 
more treatment programs. At the moment we don't have enough. 
We're no different from other cities. We have a wait of up to 6 
weeks for an appointment to get drug treatment-an appointment 
to get screened to get into drug treatment. 

Across this country we are seeing an increase in AIDS, and that 
means the need for treatment facilities. Nearly half of the cases 
are IV drug use-related, which brings us right back to the inlpor­
tance of the drug and narcotics interdiction programs. /rhere have 
to be treatment programs along with the effort to stop the traffic 
all together. 

We believe very strongly that the quality of life has a direct 
impact on the revitalization of any community. When we try to at­
tract business and industry, we find that they are now saying it 
isn't a question of high taxes, it's a question of what's the quality 
of life. The quality of life, yes, is schools, it is also security, which 
means safety, which means what is being done about the drug traf-
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fic and the treatment. It also means transportation. Right now, in 
many cities, the jobs are in the suburbs. The transportation doesn't 
exist to get people to and from the jobs. 

Yes, enterprise zones could help, but we would say very strongly, 
from the National League of Cities, that there has to be enough 
money in there for it to be more than a flyspeck on the hide of an 
elephant. There has to be enough money so that you can see the 
results. 

Many cities have people who own buildings, commercial build­
ings, who are paying minimal taxes, and if there were an enter­
prise zone some of them would participate, but some of them would 
use it as an opportunity to grab the money and run. Consequently, 
the National League of Cities has trouble with not taxing capital 
gains. We have seen people who once they get their rooney out of 
it, aren't interested in remaining and helping us. 

We look to you because you are the only ones that can make the 
difference, who can help us. We are struggling with little programs 
in our neighborhoods, but we must have supplemental money to 
help us put them together so they work. Thank you. 

Mr. RANGEL. Thank you, Madam President. 
Mayor Norman Rice, Seattle. 

STATEMENT OF HON. NORMAN B. RICE 

Mr. RICE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I think by nature of coming 
so far, I will speak just a little bit longer, but I come to you as 
mayor of the city of Seattle, from two perspectives-as a city 
chosen as a demonstration city, and one, I think, as a mayor view­
ing some of the events of the last 8 weeks, and wondering a little 
bit about what's happening in this country and what we are going 
to do about it. 

I think there's a growing feeling all across this Nation, and·espe­
cially among young people and people of color, that the system is 
stacked against them and that they will n,ever get a fair shake 
from our legal system or our system of government. 

At the same time, there is a growing sense that the doors to eco­
nomic opportunity have been slammed shut on far too many of 
them. And, once again, this frustration and anger is partiCUlarly 
intense among young people and people of color. 

I really think, though, that when we assess what has happened 
in Los Angeles and the attendant demonstrations across this COW1-

• 

try, it really boils down to two things, fairness and economic oppor- !! 

tunity. And, clearly, the enterprise zones and Weed and Seed try to 
address those concepts. 

I think that enterprise zones can be a good tool, and I think they 
can work. The current, though, enterprise. zones will not reach 
enough cities and, given the expansion of cities and the amount of 
money, we are concerned about how much really will get to where 
we need to see it. 

Enterprise zones, though, would not do anything for existing 
businesses that are already in distressed areas, providing jobs and 
economic activity. In addition, the incentives they would provide • 
would most likely not be sufficient to address the needs of small 
business. 
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In addition, unless there are safeguards built into the program, 
enterprise zones could simply shift jobs and economic opportunities 
from adjacent neighborhoods, rather than create new jobs and op­
portunities. 

Enterprise zones could be a useful tool, however, if they were ex­
panded to address the needs of all cities, and if they were a compo­
nent of a truly comprehensive urban aid package. Simply providing 
tax incentives for new businesses to locate in depressed neighbor­
hoods will accomplish little unless we also invest in improving the 
public infrastructure and developing job skills of the people in 
those areas. 

So, I think that if we look at the enterprise zones in the sense of 
a comprehensive infrastructure bill, I think we would see more 
that could be provided because I think that that infrastructure bill 
would also provide jobs for residents who would shop in the busi­
nesses, and would also think about locating in the areas where 
businesses were also returning and, too, I think upgrading the 
roads, sewers, sidewalks, bridges, and other economic infrastruc­
ture 'can attract even more development. 

Weed and Seed. Despite its offensive and dehumanizing name, I 
believe this program has the potential to make a significant impact 
in the years ahead, by increasing community development and 
combating drugs and violence. 

The concept behind the program is very real and very important. 
I think, for the first time, to see law enforcement make the strong 
statement of social services together is really very good, but I think 
there are some things I would like to share with you, having gotten 
the brunt of a negative community feeling about Weed and Seed, 
and tell you what I think really needs to be stressed. 

First, Congress and the administration must take whatever steps 
are necessary to eliminate any doubt about who is actually in 
charge of this program at the local level. There exists throughout 
most urban cities a real fear and mistrust of Federal law enforce­
ment, and I think, despite the fact that Seattle's .grant proposal 
clearly was not in any way to expand Federal authority, a lot of 
people felt that that is just what it would do, and this misconcep­
tion is not just shared in Seattle, it's shared by a lot of communi­
ties throughout the Nation. 

My understanding of the grant process in the meetings with a 
wide variety of Federal officials, has clearly indicated that no one 
wants to expand Federal authority, and I think that given the 
widespread misconceptions, Congress and the administration need 
to take explicit action to confirm this point. 

I also would urge that you put specific language into the law 
clarifying that the Federal role is limited to that of grantor of 
funds, and that all day-to-day policy decisions and implementation 
will be controlled by local authorities. 

I think the second most important issue is that social programs 
allowed under the so-called Weed and Seed initiative must be ex­
panded for maximum flexibility for local governments to address 
the individual needs. If the dollars come to the local communities 
with all kinds of redtape-which services we can use, which serv­
ices we can't use-I think we're going to have a very difficult time 
in creating the trust that we need within the communities. 

----------
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And I think last, but not least, that funding for this year's dem­
onstration program comes from essentially two funding sources 
from the Department of Justice, and I think it's going to be impor­
tant that we not look at the shifting sands of one program to an­
other to make that happen for 1993. I would strongly urge the com­
mittee to remove any undue restrictions and redtape from the 
social service dollars provided under the so-called Weed and Seed. 

And, third, in the years ahead, Weed and Seed must be funded 
through new money, and not simply by reprogramming. 

And last, but not least, Mr. Chairman, I would urge you to 
change the name of this program. The very name, Weed and Seed, 
sends a very divisive and distorting message about the true nature 
and intent of this program. It seems to imply that the Federal Gov­
ernment and, by implication, any participating local government 
has a very narrowminded view of what's going on in urban commu­
nities. We're not talking about plants here, we're talking about 
human beings, and it all boils down to trust and fear. And as 
mayors, we understand that the only way to eliminate fear is by 
building the bonds of trust in the community, not by playing on 
people's fears in a misguided attempt to generate trust. When you 
look at a name like Weed and Seed and when you look at all the • 
chest-beating and the rhetoric on public safety, it's easy to see why 
communities might harbor some distrust. 

So, to recap, I think there are no easy answers when it comes to 
drugs, but local communities are doing a lot of things, and my tes­
timony shows the kinds of innovative things we're doing at the 
local level. 

I think we really do have a good opportunity to make a strong 
statement to all of our cities across America, and I think there's an 
opportunity to recognize that maybe a true partnership is return­
ing, and I wish you well in your deliberations, and I hope that we 
can have a program that all of us endorse. Thank you. 

Mr. RANGEL. Thank you very much. 
Mayor Freedman, let me apologize for you being the first intro­

duced and the last to testify. 
Ms. FREEDMAN. That's fme. I think I can recap a little bit, and I 

hope that you'll take the time to read the remarks that have been 
entered into the record. I also have some remarks which I was 
going to read this morning to summarize, but I don't think I'm 
going to do that. 

STATEMENT OF HON. SANDRA FREEDMAN 

Ms. FREEDMAN. All of you have heard from all of us and a great 
deal from the Secretary. I was delighted when I got the invitation, 
when the topic was the drug crisis as opposed to the was on drugs, 
because we haven't been fighting a war from the very beginning, in 
my estimation, and it caused a great deal of frustration among 
many of us that when you fight a war you use all the tools at your 
disposal, and we certainly have not done that from the beginning 
of this time. 

You've heard about drug treatment, drug education, which I • 
don't think we've spoken enough about, and how we deal with this, 
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as well as the community-oriented policing, and Weed and Seed­
and I share Mayor Rice's concern about the name. 

We've been weeding and seeding in my community-we never 
called it that, we just went out and did it. We've been doing it for 5 
years or so. In fact, this month in the Brookings Report, it talks 
about Tampa's program, the Quad Progranl, which has become 
known around the country, because it does just that. It goes into a 
community and it really deals with it in a comprehensive way, as 
opposed to just the policing side. 

People have to get involved in this effort, along with law enforce­
ment and with those on the social service provider side. The entire 
community has to be mobilized to attack the problem. 

Certainly, housing is one very large aspect of it, and we talked 
about 10 da;ys or 2 weeks ago in another committee about that 
aspect of it. I am a strong believer that housing is totally tied to 
the jobs component and the entire component in a comprehensive 
approach. 

There is no simplistic answer to this. And to say that it is going 
to be enterprise zones, which seems to have been the thrust over 
these last couple of weeks since Los Angeles, I think is a very sim­
plistic approach., Yes, we ought to try that approach, but I don't 
think an~body ought to think that that is going to be the panacea 
for what s needed in the cities. It must be a comprehensive ap­
proach, and it's got to be a sustained effort. 

When all of this, hopefully, has passed in terms of a lot of the 
rhetoric and the heat from the summer, there won't be as much 
interest. And, so, the sustaining of the interest in the cities has got 
to continue not for a month, not for a couple of months, but for 
many, many years because it has occurred over many, many years. 
It's been allowed to occur. 

People have to get jobs in the inner cities. They have to be able 
to understand that they do have a role to play and that there is a 
great deal of self-worth involved in this, and we have to make them 
understand that through a whole host of programs. 

And, finally, I would say to you that there is one thing which I 
said to the committee 2 weeks ago that I think I have to illustrate 
today because it seems so right on point. 

We've spent the bulk of the morning talking about enterprise 
zones, and hopefully something will happen very soon about enter­
prise zones, and we will begin to see whether or not they really do 
work. But I would point out to you that 12 days or so ago you 
passed an emergency summer jobs bill. 

My community is set to get more from that jobs bill than we an­
ticipated,. $1.2 million. But now we are seeing the problems that 
have occurred, or that will occur, as a result of what you have done 
for us. 

First of all, in Florida, our kids go back to school mid to late 
August, and we are well into the summer. By the time we get the 
kids going and the jobs produced, they are going to have just a 
couple of weeks of work. 

Second, as a result of the regulations 'With the bill, only public 
employers and private nonprofit can provide the jgbs. The largest 
producer of jobs, the private sector, is kept out of it. So, who do we 
go to? Government that has been strapped for years and years and 
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has produced less jobs? We, in my community, have reduced by 
hundreds of jobs and we don't have the supervisory positions any­
more, and the people to maintain it, with the summer jobs kids, Or 
the private nonprofits, who are equally strapped? 

Second of all, these kids in my community-and I suspect every­
where else, the rules have been written for all of us-they have to 
produce for us before they can get a job, and we have hundreds 
waiting, 17 different pieces of paper, from proof of residency be­
cause they have to live in Tampa, to prove that they qualify from 
an economically disadvantaged standpoint, to their birth certificate 
because of their age, and by the time we go through that whole bit 
of rigmarole and process the kids, where will we be? I don't think 
we're going to be able to take the $1.2 million for the kids who des­
perately need it in my community because of the way the rules 
have been written surrounding the program, 

And, so, I would urge you that in this whole effort of enterprise 
zones, and Weed and Seed, and everything else that you do for us 
and with us, that you make it very easy for the cities to be able to 
implement the programs, and not tie us up, Provide the flexibil­
ity-each one of us resides in different communities and our needs 
are very different-provide us with the flexibility to meet the • 
needs of our constituents so that we can better serve the cities of 
this community, and we will do our jobs, and we ask you to do 
yours, and streamline the process for us so that we can get on 
about the business of helping the cities of this country. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. RANGEL, Thank you. With regard to the emergency supple­
mental appropriation bill, there was a political problem in compro­
mising the amounts of moneys that would be available, and there 
is no question that for many communities the money came far too 
late for it to be used as effectively as it could. It was a question of 
amount, a question of the President's veto, a question of bargaining 
during an election year, and a question of nothing being done. And, 
so, there's no question that the Congress and the White House 
have to take responsibility for that. 

Ms. FREEDMAN. Don't get me wrong, Mr. Chairman, we appreci­
ate what you have done for us, but more could have been done had 
I;lll that not been placed on us, 

Mr. RANGEL. No question about it. No question about that. Let 
me briefly tell you why we're talking about enterprise zones today 
at a Select Narcotics hearing [laughter]. What happened.last year 
is that Dick Darman finally testified in front of the Ways and 
Means Committee as to what the drug problem was costing us. 
Then came the question as to what we were going to do about it. 
And when we met with Dick Darman, we knew that there were 
certain things that we could not do. We could not talk entitlement. 
We could not talk national programs. We could not talk anything 
new. 

And, so, what we did was to find out where the hemorrhage was 
coming from for the $300 billion. And we looked at the map and 
found out where you had unemployment, where you had addiction, 
where you had alcoholism, teenage pregnancy, high crime, drop- • 
outs, unemployme'llt, and homelessness; this is where the hemor-
rhage was. Believe it or not, with the Gingriches and other people 
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who said that they wanted to target money to the poor without 
starting any overall program so that it would get directly to where 
you're having your major problems, and to get us away from this 
idea of building more jails every time we have a problem and put­
ting more people just in hospitals with addiction instead of pre­
venting it, the names were selected because they were Republican­
sounding names. 

Enterprise zones have never really been the priority with me 
that. Jack Kemp thinks. It only became the vehicle to bring re­
sources to those areas. Weed and Seed is an obnoxious thing, but 
for people who are very sensitive that they not be viewed as trying 
to help people, they like it. And for some people, they have a big 
problem. So, Weed and Seed-a lot of people think it's a rural pro­
gram. [Laughter.] 

In any event, we then had to make certain that we worked out a 
formula, and we reversed what you know in terms of being 80 per­
cent seed, and it's really resources-and I've given you a sheet that 
you have in front of you that lists the menu of programs from 
which the mayors in the local communities would be allowed to 
select what they can use. And even when you get to the so-called 
weed part of it, it's working with soft alternatives rather than hard 
enforcement. 

The down side is this. This is only a pilot demonstration project. 
And I really, truly believe that if we have enough seed there to 
make the darn thing work, then maybe conservatives, for the first 
time, would not feel shameful of saying that jails are not the 
answer to this problem, and that we can keep kids out of jail, we 
can keep kids off drugs, if we can give them the hope and the new 
life that they can get jobs in their community. Then the enterprise 
zone concept works, when someone can come in and say this 
sounds like a super neighborhood. The mayor is sending us more 
cops, we are getting more doctors, more health care, even the 
teachers, maybe they are getting a little more juice for the over­
time, but it does seem as though the kids are learning more, and 
the employers are getting incentives even for teaching. 

I just hope-and I'm not asking-if the mayors could see their 
way clear to say, as. I am saying as a Member, maybe we won't get 
an enterprise zone where we want it, but if we can make certain 
that these things work, it will be easier to come back to an even 
more conservative Congress and say "We're talking about not just 
saving lives, but saving money," and you know that's exactly what 
we're talking about. 

A kid born addicted to drugs can cost us a million bucks before 
that kid dies or ends up in jail, just in social services. 

So, I want to thank you for taking the time to make the trip 
here, but this is history because this bill C8.me out of the taxwriting 
committee. If you don't think that's history-that's history. 

An amendment has to come on the floor tomorrow to make it 
one vote-hey, taxes and social services, unheard of. Then it goes 
to the Senate, and Mr. Chairman of the Conference of Mayors, 
that's where we're going to need some help, because the problem is 
that they don't know what we're talking about. They think it's 
Weed and Seed, and you're seeing behind all of that, and they may 
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want to make just a national program out of it without the pilot 
demonstration aspects. 

Mr. ALTHAUS. Mr. Chairman, let me tell you real quickly where. 
the Conference of Mayors is. At our meeting last week in Houston, 
we had a resolution before us in support of the administration's 
Enterprise Zone Program and another one from Dave Dinkins in 
support of your bill from last year, so we did the bold thing and 
combined the two and said "Pass an Enterprise Zone Program." 
That's really where the mayors are on either formulation. 

Mr. RANGEL. I'd like to come back to the mayors. 
Mr. ALTHAUS. We love it when you come to us. 
Mr. RANGEL. If we hoodwink them and get this thing started, I 

don't think we should have to wait 5 years to start other enterprise 
zones. We'll call it something else, distressed areas, but if it's work­
ing, saving money, saving lives, keeping kids out of jail, starting do­
mestic peace corps, bringing back our abandoned buildings, what 
the heck do we care what we call it? 

Larry. 
Mr. COUGHLIN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have some questions, 

but we are going to run out of time. Let me just make one com­
ment from the perspective of someone from the Philadelphia area . 

One of the biggest difficulties we're going to have, as I see it, in 
whether you call it the Weed and Seed Program or enterprise 
zones, or what have you, is trying to target the money. You know, 
Congress, and even you within your own jurisdictions, have a tend­
ency to want to spread the funds out. 

As I look at Philadelphia, and I spend a lot of time there-we 
have an area called the Badlands; it's a very tough drug center in 
Philadelphia, but it's only an area about 40 by 40 blocks, and that 
is not an impossible problem. It shouldn't be an impossible problem 
with the resources of this great country and the resources of our 
States and our cities themselves. 

So, if we can just make sure that as we work through enterprise 
zones, and work through, however misnomered you call it, Weed 
and Seed, that we try and target the funds with a rifle shot rather 
than try and slug them with a buckshot. I think it, is a possible 
thing to do. 

Ms. MAHAFFEY. Mr. Chairman, may I? I agree that there needs 
to be targeting. I think the local people have to be involved in de­
termining that target because we know the people. As a member of 
the city council, I'm out there every day, morning, noon, and night. 
I know every organization in my city, strange as that may seem. 
We know what people are facing, and we have to be a part of that 
decisionmaking. 

The other point I'd like to make is that there are two life forces 
in young people, one toward life and one toward death; the ques­
tion is, what are the barriers in their force toward life that shifts 
them over into the negative, if you will, death track. We find today 
that, unfortunately, the drug traffic is one way to earn a living­
not a good way, and most of them will admit it's not a good way­
but we're finding that it's spreading. It comes from the suburbs, be­
lieve it or not, into a section of Detroit, and it may go from a sec­
tion of another city into the suburbs. It's working both ways. That's 
why we have to have the resources to be able to put together the 

• 
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local people in their communities, to tackle the problem utilizing 
social services and the help from the Federal Government in stop­
ping the flow of drugs. 

Mr. RANGEL. We have to go vote, but the New York City office 
will be working with you and the Conference of Mayors to get your 
view. I'm going to stay in touch with Congressman Gibbons, I hope 
you will with him, so that we can get your guidance on what's hap­
pening in the Senate. 

You're going to have to tell me, or a staffer, if not now, then at 
least by tomorrow, who to work with that understands what you're 
talking about from Detroit, so that you can bring in the council's 
thinking, and I guess with you Dave Obey might be the best 
person, but you have to educate Obey as to-I don't mean edu­
cate-but advise him as to your experience, so that I can be guided 
by him in working with the Senate. This could really be a turna­
round if we can get it through the Senate the way it will be in the 
House. 

Thank you very much. 
[Whereupon, at 2:02 p.m., the committee was adjourned.] 
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Today, the Select Committee examines the impact of drugs 

on our nation's cities and the Federal response to this crisis. To talk 

with us about these issues, we are very pleased to welcome Jack 

Kemp, the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, and 

distinguished panel of local elected officials -- Mayor William 

Althaus of York, Pennsylvania, the newly installed President of the 

United States Conference of Mayors; Detroit City Council 

President Maryann Mahaffey, who also chairs the ND,tional 

League of Cities' Human Development Committee and is here 

representing the League; Mayor Norman Rice of Seattle, 

Washington; and Mayor Sandra Freeman of Tampa, Florida, 

Recent events in Los Angeles have once again focused the 

nation's attention on the plight of our urban areas. The unrest in 

Los Angeles was not directly attributable to drugs. But drugs are 

an inseparable part of the volatile mixture of urban problems that 

exploded with such fury in Los Angeles. Drugs are both cause and 

effect of the alienation, despair and frustration that grips our inner 

cities and that erupted in violence in the wake of the Rodney King 

verdict. 

Drug abuse, drug trafficking and related violence continues 

to plague our urban areas. Some surveys may show that casual 

use of illegal drugs is down, but those same surveys also show that 

the hardcore use of illegal drugs is up, drug-related emergency 

room visits are up, and rates of drug use among urban residents, 
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minorities, high school dropouts, and the unemployed continue at 

levels far in excess of the national average. 

Drugs are cheaper, purer, and more available than ever 

before. Drug abuse is fueling the AIDS epidemic and endangering 

the health, development, and productivity of the entire nation. 

Drug abuse and drug trafficking are adversely affecting the public 

health and safety of those living in urban areas, overburdening the 

criminal justice system and social services networks, weakening 

our schools and contributing to child abuse and the wholesale 

disintegration of families and entire neighborhoods. 

Dick Darman, Director of the President's Office of 

Management a.nd Budget, estimates that the epidemic of drug use 

and the ripple effect it is having through our society is costing our 

nation nearly $300 billion a year in lost productivity, lost revenue, 

and added domestic expenditures for prisons, jails, law 

enforcement, health care and related services. 

Attl:!-cking drug abuse, drug trafficking and associated ills 

must be a central part of any effort to address urban problems. 

Last Ja.nuary, the President rel.eased his fourth National Drug 

Control Strategy. In the aftermath of Los Angeles, Congress and 

the Administration h:ave been trying to work out a long-term 

package of urban aid to revitalize our cities. Among the proposals 

that have been discussed are enterprise zones and "Weed and 

Seed." 

'" 

• 
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The House will soon consider legislation to establish 

enterprise zones and provide other tax incentives for eC<lnomic 

development in depressed urban and rural areas. Despite my 

support for enterprise zones legislation over the years, I have 

always readily admitted that enterprise zones alone cannot solve 

the complex problems of urban America. Businesses are not going 

to set up shop in enterprise zones just for the tax incentives. Who 

would want to invest time and money in an unstable community 

rife with drugs and crime? For that reason, we need a broader 

commitment to the cities. I sincerely hope that the package that 

comes before the House includes a serious commitment of 

additional resources earmarked for the urban enterprise zones for 

jobs, job training and a vast array of community development and 

social services including comprehensive drug abuse treatment and 

prevention programs. 

We look forward to hearing from Jack Kemp who will 

discuss the Administration's agenda for the cities and HUD's role 

in the President's drug control strategy and "Weed and Seed." He 

has been one of the true leaders in efforts to revitalize America's 

cities, and it is always a pleasure to welcome him back to the House 

of Representatives where he served with such distinction for 1:1'1 

many years. 

Since we are talking about cities, we especially look fOl\''(~"ard 

to the testimony of the local elected officials joining us toda;ii, y~\~ 

----------.~,~"'-~ .. -
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are on the frontlines of the War on Drugs, and we greatly 

appreciate the job you are attempting to do with limited resources. 

We want to know how you are addressing the web of urban 

problems -- like unemployment, homelessness, teen pregnancies, 

violent crime, high school dropouts and economic development -­

which are so often intertwined with drug abuse and drug 

trafficking. 

We are interested in your view of the President's drug 

strategy. Is it responsive to your needs? What is working? What • 

is not working? 

We also want to hear your assessment of the 

Administration's urban initiatives, such as enterprise zones and 

"Weed and Seed." How useful are these proposals in helping local 

governments revitalize inner-city neighborhoods beset by drugs 

and crime? What resources can local governments commit to 

make these initiatives successful? What would you need from 

state government? The private sector? The Federal Government? 

What advice do you have for Congress as we consider these 

p~oposals? 

At this time, I'd like to recognize our Ranking Minority 

Member, Congressman Coughlin, for any comments he may 

have. 

• 
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STATEMENT OF SECRETARY JACK KEMP 

SELECT COMMITTEE ON NARCOTICS ABUSE AND CONTROL 

HOUSE OF REPRESEllTATIVES 

JUNE 30, 1992 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, thank you for 

this opportunity to te~tify concerning what we have accomplished 

and what remains to bOI done in the war on drugs. I am confident 

you would agree with me that the war on drugs is just a part of a 

larger war on poverty -- a fight over the very soul of this 

nation. 

Let me say at the outset that I appreciate your leadership 

in dealing with one of the most devastating symbols of the 

hopelessness and despair in our inner cities from East Harlem to 

East St. Louis to East Los Angeles. 

I think it is impor~ant that the focus of this hearing is 

not just on anti-drug programs, but on the urban problem~ that 

have helped to create the drug crisis, and on the programs --

like Enterprise Zones 

address those problems. 

that you and I agree are needed to 

When I first becam~ Secretary of HUO, President Bush asked 

me to go to the inner cities across the country to see the 

challenges thnt we faced in working to help create jobs, 

opportunity, and decent, drug-free housing for every American 

family. Nothing touched me more deeply than the plight of public 

housing residents terrorized by drug abusers and drug traffickers 

who have taken over their communities • 
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I first witnessed the drug presence in the Richard Allen 

Public Housing Community in Philadelphia, where I saw a group of 

men dealing drugs no more than 100 feet from the door of a Head 

Start center where four and five year old children were striving 

to learn and achieve and gain opportunity. Virginia Wilkes, the 

tenant manager pleaded, "Please Mr. Kemp, get the drug dealers 

out of Richard Allen and we can turn this community around." 

What I've realized is that the vast majority of public 

housing residents are decent, law abiding citizens who share the 

profound des~re for peace in their communities. We've got to 

target law enforcement on the hard core criminal element, coupled 

with strong enforcement of lease provisions to evict dealers and 

doers. 

As I have gone from city to city, I have seen more of the 

dreadful effects of the drug trade. But I have also met public 

housing leaders and tenant groups and aspiring entrepreneurs who 

have taken up the challenge to regain control of their homes and 

neighborhoods. Wherever I have gone, I have seen, in the midst 

of a drastic shortage of opportunity, a supply of wealth and 

talent waiting to be empowered. They deserve the strongest 

support we can give them. 

Earlier this month I participated ~n the Nickerson Gardens 

Youth Summit in South Central Los Angeles. I met with melnbers of 

the Cripps and Bloods gangs, and saw first hand the yearning of 

young people to participate in the mainstream economy and other 

positive alternatives to the dead end of gangs and the drug 

• 

• 
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trade. If these youth are talented enough to run street markets 

they are also talented enough to participate in our economic 

markets if given a chance and some training. We've got to offer 

more than summer jobs. We've got to empower and involve young 

people in creating long-term solutions, and build an economic 

base to offer long term hope. 

Your letter of invitation cited a statement by an official 

of the Bush Administration that it is not unreasonable to place 

the cost of substance abuse in our nation at $300 billion 

annually in lost productivity, lost revenue and added 

governmental expenditures for prisons, jails, law enforcement, 

health care and other services. 

We cannot allow these conditions to stand. As of 1986, 

according to the Sentencing Project, there were more black men 

between the ages of 20 and 29 incarcerated, on probation or 

parole than there were enrolled in colleges and universities. 

This is an absolute tragedy. Mr. Chairman, this is a generation 

of Americans that we are losing to the hopelessness and despair 

that are born of poverty and a lack of opportunity. You have 

often said that the one-year upkeep cost of a juvenile offender 

is $38,000, more than it costs to go to Harvard for a year. While 

I know we all agree that law enforcement must be a high priority, 

we must also recognize that an investment in jobs and opportunity 

will have a far more lasting, far more positive effect on our 

society than a similar expenditure to contain an individual in 

our correctional system. 
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As you have noted, Mr. Chairman, drugs are a part of the 

volatile mixture of urban problems that contributed to the unrest 

in Los Angeles. They are part of the same mixture of problems -­

lack of jobs, lack of education and lack of ownership of property 

that are endemic to neighborhoods across America. 

Mr. Chairman, I have talked frequently about the second 

economy that predominates~in pockets of poverty throughout urban 

and rural America. This economy has incredible barriers to 

productive economic activity, and a virtual lack of incentives, 

rewards or private property'. As I have heard you say, Mr. 

Chairman, in these communities, the sale and acquisition of 

illegal substances are the only signs of a local economy. 

The second economy is the antithesis of the mainstream, 

democratic capitalist economy that is market oriented, 

entrepreneurial, and based on private property. In the 

mainstream economy, incentives abound for working, saving, 

investing, getting an education, starting a family and starting a 

business. 

When people lack jobs, opportunity and ownership of 

property, they have little stake in their communities, an no 

respect for other people's property as well. When people have 

nothing to lose but the shirt off their backs, it undermines 

self-esteem and resPect for the law, and respect for property. 

We can accept nothing less than a full-scale assault on the 

barriers to economic growth and equality of opportunity for low­

income Americ&ns. Impoverished, embattled and drug-scarred 

• 
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communities are a problem not only for the people who live there, 

but for all of us. We as a society have nothing less than a 

moral obligation to tap the pCI •• ~ntial of every person, and to 

replace joblessness, drugs, crimi, and hopelessness with new 

opportunities for jobs, education, «'Jmeownership and up' .... ard 

mobility. 

As Kimi Gray, Irene ,Johnson, Bertha Gilkey, and clther 

resident management leaders have indicated, resident empowerment 

initiatives are restoring the moral authority of parents over 

their community, rebuilding the fabric of family and. neighborhood 

that has been steadily eroded. 

We must embark on this dramatic ef.fort to refltore growth and 

opportunity, not 'through "trickle-down" governmen.t, but through 

individual empowerment, expanding privatization and tenant 

ownership of public housing, minority entrepreneurship, and true 

welfare reform that liberates people rather than entraps them. 

As the President said in Los Angeles recently, "We are one 

family, one people, one Nation under God." We all have a stake 

in each other's welfare. 

Mr. Chairman, if there is a positive result from the tragedy 

in Los Angeles, it is that a great debate has been stimulated 

over how to restore prosperity and stability, hope and 

opportunity for all the people in our cities. It would compound 

the tragedy if this debate fails to produce tangible, meaningful 

results • 
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As I told the u.s. Conference of Mayors last week, we must 

embark on an audacious, dramatic effort to restore economic 

gr~'wth, educational opportunity and homeownership for poor 
1 

people. 

There is no one answer that will cure the problems of urban 

America. We need a bipartisan and broad-based program. The 

Administration has proposed an urban agenda that will help to 

transform America's cities into models of entrepreneurial 

capitalisnl and equality of opportunity where people can start 

families, raise their children and build a better life. 

The centerpiece of the Administration's urban agenda is 

Enterprise Zones. We made o~r first Enterprise Zone proposal 

three years ago, and I have been working with you on this issue 

much longer than that. We cannot change the fact that Enterprise 

Zones have not yet been enacted -- but we can enact a bill now. 

And as the President has said, we should broaden and deepen our 

incentives. 

Mr. Chairman, I am bitterly disappointed by the Enterprise 

Zones proposal adopted last week by the Ways and Means Committee. 

We have what may be a once in a lifetime opportunity to provide 

pathbreaking incentives for entrepreneurship, job creation and 

economic growth in the most distressed communities of this 

Nation. And Mr. Chairman, we are about to squander that 

opportunity. The Committee-passed bill, by failing to provide 

those incentives raises hopes it can never fulfill. 

• 
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Earlier this month, the Preoident announced a dramatic 

expansion of the enterprise zone initiative. As the President 

said: " ••• here's an open invitation to the mayors of America's 

cities and a challenge to the Congress: If you meet the 

criteria, instead of 50 Enterprise Zones for America, every 

deserving neighborhood will become one." The President realizes 

the great need and demand that exists for Enterprise Zones in 

severely distressed neighborhoods. Setting arbitrary limits on 

the number of Zones to be created assures that otherwise eligible 

neighborhoods will be excluded. Mr. Chairman, we will never have 

full economic recovery in our distressed urban and rural 

communities if the Enterprise Zone selection process becomes a 

zero-sum game pitting mayor against mayor, city against city, 

community against community. 

Instead of asking cities to compete for a fixed pool of 

federal benefits, we are asking them to compete to create the 

most dynamic entrepreneurial economies. 

But expanding the number of Enterprise Zones becomes 

critical only if the incentives for entrepreneurship and job 

creation are meaningful, and the President proposed a broad-based 

package of incentives. 

Most important, the President realized that the first and 

essential step in freeing people from the rules that now prevent 

prosperity from appearing in urban and rural areas of poverty is 

the complete elimination of the capital gains tax on investing, 

working and living in Enterprise Zones. The President's' proposal 
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expanded the Administration's previous initiative by extending 

the capital gains exclusion to most intangible, as well as 

tangible, assets. These capital gains in Enterprise Zones would 

n~t be subject to the alternative minimum tax. In addition, any 

losses in an Enterprise Zone business may be treated as an 

ordinary income loss as opposed to a capital loss. 

The Administration has other incentives targeted for 

entrepreneurs and workers in enterprise zones. Small businesses 

in Enterprise Zones would be able to expense up to $50,000 a year 

in equipment.investment as long as the area retains its 

enterprise zone designation. In addition, the proposal would 

permit the use of tax exempt (IDB) financing for loans to almost 

any Enterprise zone business, ~uch as retail stores. 

The Administration also proposed providing an earned income 

tax credit to all low-income workers in an enterprise zone as ~n 

immediate and direct step to offset the disincentives of the high 

payroll tax. Currently, workers without children -- frequently 

those who are in the greatest need of help -- are not eligible 

for the $1,800 earned income tax credit. Allc~ing these workers 

to realize more of the benefits of their hard work will also give 

them the economic security they need to begin to raise stable 

families. 

This Administration is anxious to work with Congress to 

develop a bipartisan Enterprise Zone bill, and we welcome all 

suggestions that meet the standard of helping poor people regain 

control of their lives and liberate themselves from poverty. But 

• 
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we will not tolerate a defense of the status quo, nor accept 

efforts to undermine the potential success of the Enterprise Zone 

program. 

The President's Enterprise Zone proposal was a bold and 

audacious, visionary, and far-reaching response to the urgent 

problems of urban America. With all due respect to you Mr. 

Chairman, what the Ways and Means Committee approved last week 

was a timid, short-sighted and half-hearted response to those 

problems. 

The Committee's Enterprise Zone bill gives the illusion of 

having done something to address the high rates of unemployment, 

poverty and despair gripping our inner cities. In reality it 

barely departs from the status quo. It is an enterprise zone 

package that is designed for failure. 

As you clearly understand, Mr. Chairman, the designation of 

only 50 Enterprise Zones -- only 25 of them urban -- is an 

inadequate response to the need for the incentives Enterprise 

Zones can create. A program of 50 Enterprise Zones puts it on 

the level of a demonstration program. Mr. Chairman, what do we 

have to demonstrate? That economic independence is better than 

government dependence? That a payroll check is better than a 

welfare check? 

Mr. Chairman, under the Administration criteria some 200 

cities would automatically qualify for enterprise zone 

designation, and would be able to have zones as soon as they 

submitted acceptable applications. In addition, more than 100 
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impoverished rural areas could have enterprise zones. The 

Committee's bill will effectively make HUD determine whether 

Harlem is more deserving of an Enterprise Zone than Bedford­

Stuyvesant; whether watts is more deserving that South Central 

L.A.; whether Clarksdale, Mississippi, in the Mississippi Delta 

is more deserving than Brownsville, Texas, along the Rio Grande. 

But Mr. Chairman, the principal failure of the Ways and 

Means bill is that it does not provide the incentives that 

President Bush believes are necessary to revive economic, growth, 

job creation and entrepreneurship in inner city neighborhoods. 

The heart of the Administration's Enterprise Zone proposal 

is elimination of the capital gains tax. The reason is that the 

generation of capital gains goes to the very heart of the wealth 

creation that is central to a entrepreneurial capitalist economy. 

You cannot have democratic capitalism without capital. Every 

time a business is created or expands, a capital gain is created. 

Taxing those gains is a direct tax on the increase in jobs, 

incomes, opportunity, wealth and the expanding tax base that new 

and growing businesses create. 

Because the capital gains tax is targeted at economic 

growth, it stands as a major barrier to the revival of our inner 

cities. It keeps capital locked up in mature assets and out of 

reach of the poor, especially minorities who have most of their 

capital gains ahead of them. According to recent surveys of 

black entrepr~neurs by Black Enterprise Magazine, the primary 

obstacle to black entrepreneurship is lack of access to start-up 

• 
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capital. Seventy-five percent of black entrepreneurs had to 

start their businesses, relying entirely on their own savings, 

versus just 25 percent for all entrepreneurs. The capital gains 

tax favors the sure bet over the long shot, it favors eXisting 

wealth over new wealth, and frankly, it favors the suburbs over 

the inner cities. 

What was the Ways and Means Committee's response to the 

Administration's capital gains proposal? The Committee does not 

eli.minate the tax. It merely "defers" capital gains taxes for 

inner city investment. Mr. Chairman, how much longer can we 

afford to defer the American dream? 

There is a persistent view bordering on paranoia among some 

in the Hous~ Democratic leadership that capital gains reduction 

is unfair. Mr. Chairman, the capital gains e:(clusion in 

Enterprise Zones is fair. Today, there are no capital gains 

being created in our inner cities. There is no benefit to anyone 

unless wealth is created. What is unfair, Mr. Chairman is to 

stifle productive investment that will create jobs, income, 

opportunity and wealth for people who today have none. And that 

is just what the committee has done. 

Mr. Chairman, you cannot create employees without first 

creating employers. It does little good to train unemployed 

people to perform jobs that do not exist. The Admini6trat~on's 

incentives for enterprise zone business creation are based on a 

requirement of long-term involvement in creating wealth and jobs 

in the zone: A third of all employees must live in the zonel 80 

58-586 - 92 - 3 
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percent of the zone business's income must be derived from 

enterprise zone business activity; and substantially all of an 

Enterprise Zone business's employees and, property xaust be 

directly involved with the active conduct of business within the 

zone. 

The feal: that someone will make monel" from an Enterprise 

Zone and leave the Zone, thus weakening the community, is 

groundless. There is a capital gain for the original en'trepreneur 

only if someone else buys the business. When that happens, the 

investment stays in the zone. The entrepreneur is equally likely 

to maintain the business in the zone, for the same reason. If the 

business is moved out of the zone, the owner loses the capital 

gains exclusion. 

Merely providing a capital gains rollover will not increase 

a business's commitment to improving the community; this 

commitment is already required under the law. What it does 

provide is less flexibility for the investor. If investing in an 

enterprise zone business provides less flexibility and equal 

capital gains treatment versus other communities, why would an 

investor choose a more riSky investment in a zone over a business 

in another community? Regrettably, Mr. Chairman, this isn't 

gOing to increase investment in enterprise zones to any 

Significant extent. 

The rollover provision is a thinly veiled disguise for a tal~ 

on the creation of wealth. It creates the illusion of having 

done something, which is worse than doing nothing. 

• 
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The Administration's proposal and the committee's bill 

differ on other key points. 

For example, the Administration would provide for 

"expensing" of up to $50,000 per year of individual purchases of 

stock in an Enterprise Zone business, with a lifetime limit of 

$250,000. The committee's bill limits the annual up-front 

deduction to $25,000, with the same lifetime limit. While I am 

pleased that the Committee approved investment expensing, Mr. 

Chairman, the effect of this proposal is to place greater 

restrictions on the ability of new Enterprise Zone businesses to 

obtain adequate seed capital. For a small, start-up enterprise, 

even a small injection of capital can make the difference between 

success and failure. Thus, in the long run, this proposal could 

jeopardize the chances of success of Enterprise Zone businesses 

that rely heavily on investors for start-up capital. 

In addition, instead of providing an expanded refundable 

earned income tax credit, the committee provides a wage credi1; of 

15 percent on the first $20,000 \.,f f'1.11 or part-time employees 

for employees who live and wor!. j n ,.'. ~nterprise Zone. l'lr. 

Chairman, instead of eliminating 6. ·::l,iiSincentive for employees to 

come off welfare and obtain employment, the committee provides 

instead an additional incentive to employers that is not even 

targeted to low-income workeI."a. 

Mr. Chairman, I am ci:mazeci that in a package of urban aid 

measures costing more than $14 billion, the Majority on the ways 

and Means Committee limited the scope of Enterprise Zones in part 
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because of a fear they would cost too much. Unfortunately, wha't 

the Committee calls a limit on resources is actually a limit on 

vision. You cannot fix the budget without fixing the economy. 

You cannot balance the budget without getting the nation back to 

work. You cannot create wealth by stifling the forces that 

create it. 

But as you have said, Mr. Chairman, Enterprise Zones are not 

the whole answer. Just as Enterprise Zones are an important 

strategy for reviving our cities and creating safe and stable 

communities, ,so, too is expanding ownership of private property. 

When people are denied ownership of property and access to 

capital, they have little regard and respect for the property of 

others. When they have the opportunity to own their own home, 

start a business and have access to capital and assets, they 

instantly defend their own property rights, and the rights of 

others. Nowhere was that more apparent recently than during the 

rioting ill Los Angeles. In those areas where people had a stake 

in the community, pride in their neighborhoods, and high degrees 

of homeowners hip and resident management of public housing, there 

was very little rioting or violence. 

Thus, Mr. Chairman, the Administration's agenda includes 

funding of the HOPE Grants program at $1 billion, ,to provide 

access to assets, priv'ate property and opportunity and help low­

income people to recapt:ure the American Dream of homeowners hip by 

managing their own communities and ultimately owning their own 

homes. 

• 
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This year, HOPE will give thousands of poor families control 

over their lives by creating thousands of first-time homebuyers 

in public housing, and starting tens of thousands more along the 

road to independence. 

In addition, the Administration has proposed $500 million 

earmarked for a neigliliorhood-focused, two-part strategy to 

control vio1e:lt crime by "weeding" gang leaders, violent 

criminals and drug dea1,ers from neighborhoods, and "seeding" 

those neighborhoods with public and private services -- such as 

job training, health care, education assistance and housing and 

community development assistance -- and the tax incentives of 

Enterprise Zones. 

Mr. Chairman, I am pleased that Weed and Seed is a prominent 

component of your own Enterprise Communities Act. I agree with 

you that enhanced social services in distressed areas is 

essential to the success of Enterprise Zones. You said in 'this 

month's Northeast-Midwest Economic Review that entrepreneurs 

creating Enterprise Zone businesses want to know: "Are the 

streets safe? Is there a decent place for my employees to live? 

Is the job market going to include more than ex-cons and ex­

addicts?" 

Finally, Mr. Chairman, let me briefly address several 

actions that the Department of Housing and Urban Development has 

taken over the past three years to deal directly with the drug 

problem in areas under its direct jurisdiction. 
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Most significantly, since 1989 we have provided 

approximately one-half billion dollars for drug prevention and 

control activities to almost 900 Public and Indian Housing 

Authorities through the Public House Drug Elimination Grants 

program. We have requested another $165 million for this purpose 

in 1993. A portion of these funds is now earmarked to providing 

positive sports and other activities for youth. 

Housing authorities report in all 10 HUD regions that there 

has been a reduction in criminal activity since receiving 

antidrug grant funding and implementing comprehensive antidrug 

strategies utilizing residents, police and commu~ity 

representatives. 

In addition, HUD is proceeding with granting waivers of 

unnecessary Lease and Grievance rules to evict public housing 

tenants engaged in illegal drug activities. HUD does not require 

duplicative administrative lease and grievance hearings in states 

where due process protection are fully afforded under State or 

local law. 

These steps, and indeed all efforts to increa,se the supply 

of decent, safe and affordable housing, and to provide direct 

assistance to local authorities and residents for drug 

elimination activities, are important and beneficial. They help 

to reduce one of the worst conditions of poverty, and promote 

drug-free neighborhoods. Helping make public housing drug free 

remains on of President Bush's and my priorities for the 

Department. I pledge the continued support of my Department in 

.' 
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expanding and improving the anti-drug programs under its 

jurisdiction. 

Mr. Chairman, two weeks ago we heard the first 

democratically elected leader of Russia in a millennium tell 

Members of Congress and the American people: "It is in Russia 

that the future of freedom in the 21st Century is being decided. 

We are upholding your freedom as well as ours." 

President Yeltsin is right about freedom -- it's 

indivisible. But I would add that our mission here at home is no 

less historic than Yeltsin's, and just as morally profound. 

We must demonstrate to the whole world -- but more 

especially to those who have been left out and left behind 

that we can rebuild our cities. It does not profit America to 

gain freedom and democracy for the rest of the world if we lose 

our soul at home. 

As we approach the celebration of our Nation's independence, 

let us begin ·to give every poor person in America the opportunity 

to achieve the i:ndependence we too often take for granted. We 

can do that by pclssing an effective and truly bipartisan 

Enterprise Zone bill • 
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MR. RANGEL, MR. COUGHLIN, MEMBERS OFTHE COMMITTEE. I AM WILLIAM 

ALTHAUS, MAYOR OF YORK AND PRESIDENT OF THE U.S. CONFERENCE OF 

MAYORS. I AM PLEASED TO HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO DISCUSS WITH YOU THE 

FOURTH NATIONAL DRUG CONTROL STRATEGY AND OUR ASSESSMENT OF THE 

EFFECT IT WILL HAVE ON THE PROBLEMS OF CRIME AND DRUGS IN THE NATION'S 

CITIES. IN PARTICULAR, I AM PLEASED TO HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO DISCUSS 

WITH YOU THE ADMINISTRATION'S "WEED AND SEED' INITIATIVE, AN INITIATIVE 

WHICH HAS PROVOKED MUCH DISCUSSION AND WHICH, WE FEEL, HAS 

TREMENDOUS POTENTIAL. 

FIRST OF ALL, LET ME SAY THAT IF IT WERE NOT FOR THE HARD WORK OF 

• THIS COMMITTEE -. THE EXTRAORDINARY WORK OF YOUR CHAIRMAN, YOUR 

MINORITY LEADERS AND MANY OF YOUR MEMBERS -- THERE WOULD LIKELY BE 

NO NATIONAL DRUG CONTROL STRATEGY FOR US TO BE DISCUSSING TODAY AND 

THERE LIKELY WOULD BE NO NATIONAL ANTI-DRUG EFFORT OF THE MAGNITUDE 

WHICH WE HAVE TODAY. WE BEGAN OUR JOINT EFFORTS ON THIS ISSUE IN 1986, 

AND IT HAS BEEN A PRODUCTIVE, BIPARTISAN PARTNERSHIP EVER SINCE. 

• 

THE FOURTH NATIONAL DRUG CONTROL STRATEGY FOLLOWS THE 

DIRECTION OF THE PREVIOUS ONES, AND BUILDS ON IT. IT CONTAINS SEVERAL 

POSITIVE ELEMENTS, AND IT CONTAINS SOME OF THE SAME OLD PROBLEMS. 

PROBABLY THE MOST EXCITING PROPOSAL IS THE NEW WEED AND SEED 
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INITIATIVE INCLUDED IN THE STRATEGY. THIS ELEMENT REPRESENTS AN 

IMPORTANT DEPARTURE FROM PREVIOUS POLICIES BECAUSE IT RECOGNIZES THE 

INTER-RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN CRIME AND DRUG PROBLEMS AND POOR 

ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL CONDITIONS IN NEIGHBORHOODS. 

UNDER WEED AND SEED OUR NATIONAL GOVERNMENT WOULD TARGET 

NEIGHBORHOODS HARD HIT BY DRUGS AND CRIME, TO THE EXTENT POSSIBLE 

ELIMINATE THE DRUG DEALERS THROUGH COORDINATED, INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

CONCENTRATED ENFORCEMENT EFFORTS, AND THEN PROVIDE A HOST OF SOCIAL 

AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SUPPORTS TO THESE NEIGHBORHOODS. THE 

INITIATIVE BEGAN ON A DEMONSTRATION BASIS IN THREE CITIES -- TRENTON, 

KANSAS CITY AND OMAHA. SIMILAR EFFORTS HAVE RECENTLY BEEN FUNDED IN 

ANOTHER 16 CITIES. THE PROGRAM, WE HOPE, WILL BE EXTENDED TO MANY 

MORE IN 1993. IN ADDITION TO USING PROVEN, EXISTING FEDERAL PROGRAMS 

AS FUNDING VEHICLES THE INITIATIVE CALLS FOR THE PASSAGE OF ENTERPRISE 

ZONE LEGISLATION WHICH WOULD PROVIDE A SERIES OF CRITICAL TAX 

ADVANTAGES INTENDED TO SPUR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN THE TARGET 

NEIGHBORHOODS. 

THIS APPROACH IS SIMILAR TO THAT ADVOCATED BY YOU, MR. RANGEL, IN 

THE ENTERPRISE ZONE LEGISLATION WHICH YOU HAVE INTRODUCED AND WHICH 

YOU DISCUSSED WITH THE CONFERENCE OF MAYORS TASK FORCE ON DRUG 
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CONTROL IN JANUARY. AND IT IS ENTIRELY CONSISTENT WITH WHAT THE 

MAYORS HAVE BEEN CALLING FOR: THE PROVISION OF FUNDING AND 

RESOURCES AND OTHER FORMS OF SUPPORT DIRECTLY TO CITIES TO ATTACK 

THE PROBLEMS OF CRIME AND DRUGS: NOT JUST TO ARREST THE CRIMINALS, 

BUT TO ADDRESS THE ROOT CAUSES OF THESE PROBLEMS. 

LAST WEEK WE HELD THE 60TH ANNUAL CONFERENCE OF MAYORS IN 

HOUSTON. AT THAT MEETING WE ADOPTED POLICY POSITIONS ON VARIOUS 

URBAN ISSUES, INCLUDING, WEED AND SEED AND ENTERPRISE ZONES. OUR 

RESOLUTIONS ON THESE TWO ISSUES ARE ATTACHED TO MY STATEMENT. 

• WE SUPPORT PASSAGE AND FUNDING OF A NEW ENTERPRISE ZONE 

• 

INITIATIVE FOR URBAN AND RURAL COMMUNITIES, AND WE FEEL STRONGLY THAT 

FUNDING FOR THIS PROGRAM SHOULD NOT BE PROVIDED BY REDUCING OTHER 

DOMESTIC PROGRAMS. WHILE WE ARE PLEASED THAT THE HOUSE WAYS AND 

MEANS COMMITTEE REPORTED OUT AN ENTERPRISE ZONE BILL LAST WEEK, WE 

FEEL THAT IT DOES NOT EVEN BEGIN TO ADDRESS THE NEED. FIFTY ZONES -- 25 

RURAL AND 25 URBAN -- WITH ONLY TAX INCENTIVES AND NO ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT OR SOCIAL SUPPORTS IS BARELY A DROP IN THE BUCKET. WE 

SUPPORT YOUR AMENDMENT, MR. RANGEL, TO PROVIDE THAT ECONOMIC AND 

SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE THROUGH THE WEED AND SEED INITIATIVE. 

3 
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WE ARE CONCERNED, HOWEVER, THAT THAT FUNDING WOULD ONLY BE 

AVAILABLE TO THOSE FEW COMMUNITIES DESIGNATED AS ENTERPRISE ZONES. 

AT OUR MEETING WE ALSO REGISTERED SUPPORT FOR THE WEED AND 

SEED INITIATIVE, BUT WITH YHE FOLLOWING PROVISOS: 

1. ALL OF THE FUNDS ALLOCATED TO THE PROGRAM SHOULD BE "NEW' 

MONEY. WHILE THE PRESIDENT'S FY93 BUDGET PROPOSAL INCLUDES NEW 

FUNDING FOR SEVERAL OF THE PROGRAMS THAT WOULD PROVIDE THE SOCIAL 

AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SUPPORTS, IT EARMARKS FUNDS IN OTHER 

PROGRAMS, SUCH AS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT AND PUBLIC 

HOUSING MODERNIZATION, FOR WHICH THE ADMINISTRATION HAS PROPOSED • 

CUTS. THE CONFERENCE OF MAYORS NOT ONLY OPPOSES THE CUTS IN THESE 

PROGRAMS, BUT IS CONCERNED ABOUT THE INCREASED DEMAND THAT WOULD 

BE MADE ON THE LIMITED FUNDS THAT WOULD BE AVAILABLE. THESE FUNDING 

SOURCES, AND OTHERS INCLUDED IN THE WEED AND SEED PROPOSAL, PROVIDE 

CRITICAL ASSISTANCE IN COMMUNITIES THROUGHOUT THE NATION. THESE 

EFFORTS SHOULD NOT BE DIMINISHED. 

ANY FUNDS COMMITTED TO THE WEED AND SEED INITIATIVE MUST BE NEW 

AND MUST NOT TAKE FUNDS FROM THOSE COMMUNITIES WHICH DO NOT 

RECEIVE FUNDS UNDER WEED AND SEED. CITIES LIKE MINE, WHICH ARE NOT 
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LIKELY TO BE TARGETED FOR FUNDING UNDER THIS PROPOSAL YET HAVE 

SERIOUS AND GROWING PROB~EMS RELATING TO CRIME AND DRUGS AND TO 

DETERIORATING SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC CONDITIONS, SHOULD NOT SEE THE 

MEAGER FEDERAL RESOURCES WE RECEIVE CUT TO FINANCE THE PROGRAM IN 

OTHER CITIES. 

2. THE MAYOR MUST BE INVOLVED IN EVERY ASPECT OF THE WEEDING AND 

SEEDING OPERATIONS. WE KNOW THAT THE PROGRAM WAS INITIATED THROUGH 

THE U.S. ATTORNEYS AND UNDERSTAND THE REASONS FOR THIS. WHILE THE U.S. 

ATTORNEY HAS A KEY ROLE TO PLAY IN THE IMPLEMENTATION OFTHIS INITIATIVE, 

ALONG WITH OTHERS IN THE LAW ENFORCEMENT COMMUNITY, THE MAYOR MUST 

BE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS EFFORT AND PLAY A LEAD ROLE IN IT. THE MAYOR 

SHOULD BE IN A POSITION TO PULL ALL OF THE DIFFERENT COMPONENTS OF THE 

EFFORT TOGETHER AND IS LIKELY TO BE THE MOST EFFECTIVE LINK TO THE 

TARGETED COMMUNllY. 

3. THE WEEDING AND SEEDING OPERATIONS SHOULD TAKE PLACE AT THE 

SAME TIME. THIS IS IMPORTANT BOTH TO THE SUCCESS OF THE PROGRAM AND 

TO THE WAY IN WHICH IT IS RECEIVED BY THE AFFECTED COMMUNITY. THERE 

HAS BEEN SKEPTICISM AND EVEN HOSTILITY TOWARD THE PROGRAM IN SOME 

TARGET COMMUNITIES. PROVIDING THE NEEDED SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC 

SUPPORTS AT THE SAME TIME THAT ARRESTS ARE MADE WILL MAKE IT CLEAR 

5 
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THAT THIS IS NOT JUST ANOTHER STEPPED UP ENFORCEMENT EFFORT AND THAT 

THE NEIGHBORHOOD AND ITS RESIDENTS CAN EXPECT SOME REAL HELP. 

WEED AND SEED, OF COURSE, WAS JUST ONE PART OF THE NATIONAL 

DRUG CONTROL STRATEGY. WE MUST GIVE OTHER PARTS OF THE STRATEGY 

MIXED REVIEWS, HOWEVER: 

1) WHILE THE STRATEGY INCLUDES INCREASED FUNDING FOR PREVENTION 

AND TREATMENT, THE BALANCE BETWEEN THE DEMAND REDUCTION 

COMPONENTS AND SUPPLY REDUCTION COMPONENTS HAS NOT SHIFrED 

SIGNIFICANTLY SINCE THE FIRST STRATEGY WAS PUBLISHED. SINCE 1989 

FEDERAL ANTI·DRUG SPENDING HAS NEARLY DOUBLED, FR'OM $6.6 BILLION THAT 

YEAR TO $12.7 BILLION PROPOSED FOR NEXT YEAR. DURING THAT SAME PERIOD, 

HOWEVER, THE PERCENTAGE OF THE FUNDING USED FOR DEMAND REDUCTION 

HAS REMAINED ABOUT THE SAME •• 31 PERCENT IN 1989, 32 PERCENT PROPOSED 

FOR 1993. THIS PERIOD OF TREMENDOUS EXPANSION WOULD HAVE BEEN AN 

EXCELLENT TIME TO READJUST OUR NATIONAL PRIORITIES: TO SHIFT MORE 

FUNDS TOWARD DEMAND REDUCTION. BUT, UNFORTUNATELY THAT HAS NOT 

OCCURRED. MY POLICE CHIEF AND POLICE EXECUTIVES ACROSS THE COUNTRY 

HAVE RECOGNIZED THAT LAW ENFORCEMENT ALONE CANNOT SOLVE THE DRUG 

PROBLEM IN THIS NATION. WHEN IS OUR NATIONAL GOVERNMENT GOING TO 

REALIZE THIS WHEN IT ESTABLISHES ITS BUDGET PRIORITIES? 
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2) AS MEMBERS OF THIS COMMITTEE ARE WELL AWARE, A KEY PROBLEM 

IN THE FEDERAL PROGRAMS HAS BEEN THE STATE BLOCK GRANT SYSTEM. 

MAYORS HAVE TESTiFIED BEFORE YOU ON MANY OCCASIONS REGARDING THIS: 

THE MONEY IS JUST NOT GETTING TO THE CITIES WHERE IT IS NEEDED MOST. 

THIS PAST YEAR FOR THE FIRST TIME MY CITY RECEIVED FUNDING UNDER THE 

BYRNE PROGRAM TO EXPAND OUR COMMUNITY POLICING EFFORTS. 

YORK IS A CITY OF 44,000 PEOPLE WHICH HAS HAD ITS SHARE OF CRIME 

AND DRUG PROBLEMS. WE WERE FIRST INVADED BY GANGS FROM CALIFORNIA, 

THEN BY JAMAICAN POSSES. NOW GANGS FROM NEW YORK AND CONNECTICUT 

ARE TRYING TO GET A FOOTHOLD. DURING THE LAST YEAR WE SAW A 25 

• PERCENT INCREASE IN ROBBERIES, A 22 PERCENT INCREASE IN VANDALISM AND 

A 34 PERCENT INCREASE IN DRUG OFFENSES. WE HAVE NOT BEEN IMMUNE TO 

THE PROBLEM, BUT WE HAVE BEEN IMMUNE TO THE FUNDING UNTIL THIS YEAR. 

• 

I MUST MENTION, AS WELL, THAT THE STATE IS PLACING LOCAL MATCH 

REQUIREMENTS ON OUR CITY THAT GO WELL BEYOND THOSE INCLUDED IN THE 

FEDERAL STATUTE. THE AMOUNT OF THE GRANT, $102,000 THIS YEAR, WILL BE 

REDUCED IN THE SECOND AND THIRD YEARS WHILE THE LOCAL MATCH WILL BE 

INCREASED, FROM 25 PERCENT IN THE FIRST YEAR, TO 50 PERCENT IN THE 

SECOND YEAR, TO 75 PERCENT IN THE THIRD YEAR. 

7 
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WE ARE DISAPPOINTED THAT THE NATIONAL DRUG CONTROL STRATEGY 

STILL FAILS TO RECOGNIZE THE PROBLEMS WHICH CITIES ARE HAVING WITH THIS 

PROGRAM AND STIl.L FAILS TO ADDRESS IT. WHILE IT FOCUSES ON THE STREET 

DEALERS IN ITS PRIORITIES, IT SENDS THE MONEY NOT TO THE STREETS, BUT TO 

THE GOVERNORS' MANSIONS. 

WE APPRECIATE THE EFFORT WHICH YOU, MR. RANGEL, AND WHICH 

MEMBERS OF If HIS COMMITTEE HAVE MADE TO CHANGE THE PROGRAM SO THAT 

A PORTION OF' THE FUNDS WOULD GO TO LOCAL GOVERNMENTS. MAYORS 

WORKED HARD TO TRY TO GET THAT LEGISLATION PASSED, BUT THE DEBATE ON 

THE FLOOR OF THE HOUSE SHOWED, I AM AFRAID, THAT THERE WAS AN 

UNFOUNDED FE!AR THAT THE LEGISLATION WOULD SHIFT MONEY FROM RURAL 

AREAS AND THAT THE RURAL DRUG PROBLEM HAD MANY MORE VOTES THAN THE 

URBAN DRUG PROBLEM. 

3) WHILE THE STRATEGY CALLS FOR INTENSIFIED PROSECUTION OF 

CRIMINALS WHO USE FIREARMS IN THE COURSE OF DRUG TRAFFICKING, IT 

INCLUDES NO PROPOSALS THAT WOULD STRENGTHEN GUN CONTROL STATUTES 

AND DECREASE THE AVAILABILITY OFTHE FIREARMS THAT ARE CONTRIBUTING TO 

THE GROWING VIOL.ENCE ON OUR STREETS. CONGRESS AND THE 

ADMINISTRATION MUST STOP BOWING TO THE PRO-GUN INTERESTS AND ENACT 
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MEANINGFUL GUN CONTROL LEGISLATION, INCLUDING THE BRADY BILL AND A 

BAN ON SEMIAUTOMATIC ASSAULT WEAPONS. 

4) THE STRATEGY INDICATES THAT WHILE THERE ARE APPROXIMATELY 2.7 

I MILLION DRUG USERS WHO NEED AND CAN BENEFIT FROM DRUG TREATMENT, 

THE TREATMENT SYSTEM HAS THE CAPACITY TO SERVE ONLY 1.7 M!LLlON 

PERSONS, A 39 PERCENT SHORTFALL. STILL, THE STRATEGY CALLS FOR ONLY A 

15 PERCENT INCREASE IN FEDERAL TRE=.ATMENT DOLLARS NEXTYEAR, FAR BELOW 

THE INCREASE NEEDED IN THE FACE OF THE SHORTFALL. AMERICA'S MAYORS 

STRONGLY BELIEVETHATTREATMENTON DEMAND MUST BECOME OUR NATIONAL 

POLICY. THE STRATEGY SHOULD ESTABLISH TREATMENT ON DEMAND AS A 

• NATIONAL GOAL AND ESTABLISH A TIMETABLE FOR ACHIEVING THAT GOAL. 

• 

OUR NATION HAS MADE TREMENDOUS PROGRESS IN ITS EFFORTS TO 

CONTROL THE DRUG PROBLEM -- BUT MOST OF THAT PROGRESS HAS BEEN 

AMONG CASUAL USERS. THE CRIME AND DRUG PROBLEMS IN OUR CITIES 

CONTINUE TO GROW. WEED AND FEED IS A START, BUT THE NATIONAL DRUG 

CONTROL STRATEGY MUST DIRECT A GREATER PORTION OF ITS RESOURCES TO 

ADDRESSING THESE SEEMINGLY INTRACTABLE PROBLEMS. 

9 
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Resolution No. 27 

Submitted By: 

The Honorable Paul soglin 
Mayor of Madison 

The Honorable Paul Helmke 
Mayor of Fort Wayne 

The Honorable Richard M. Daley 
Mayor of Chicago 

1) 

2) 

3) 

WEED AND SEED 

WHEREAS, the Attorney General has begun implementation of the 
Weed and Seed demonstration to "weed out" crime from targeted 
neighborhoods and then "seed" the targeted sites with a wide 
range of crime and drug prevention programs and human service 
agency resources to prevent crime from reoccurring; and 

WHEREAS, the Attorney General is to be commended for 
undertaking the Weed and Seed demollstration because it 
recognizes the linkages between ~rime and a community's social 
and economic conditions and provides funds directly to cities 
to address local problems; and 

WHEREAS, it is critical that weeding and seeding operations 
take place simultaneously so that the human and physical needs 
of residents are addressed while the weeding occurs and that 
the mayor direct the efforts so that they address local 
concerns and reflect local needs; and 

4) WHEREAS, the Attorney General has proposed that some of the 
federal funds for Weed and Seed come out of current program 
funding levels, thus reducing funds to communities not 
receiving Weed and seed funds, . 

5) NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that 'rhe U. S. Conference of 
Mayors commends the Attorney General for its Weed and Seed 
initiative with the following provisos: 

• All funding provided for Weed and Seed should be "new" 
money above current appropriation levels and communities 
not designated to receive Weed and seed funds should not 
be penalized in receiving other federal funding; 

• The mayor should be responsible for development of the 
local Weed and Seed plan to ensure that all segments of 
the community are involved and determine how all of the 
funds will be spent: 

• The weeding and seeding operations should take place 
simultaneously and not consecutivelyr 

• 
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6) BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that while Weed and Seed is no 
sUbstitute for a comprehensive urban policy, it constitutes an 
important demonstration of how crime problems can be 
addressed. 

PROJECTED COST: $500 million 



Resolution No. 11 

Submitted By: 

The Honorable Raymond L. Flynn 
Mayor of Boston 

The Honorable David Dinkins 
Mayor of New York 

The Honorable William Althaus 
Mayor of York, PA 
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ENTERPRISB ZONES 

1) WHEREAS, Amer ica I s 
problems including 
activity; and 

urban centers are plagued by daunting 
poverty, crime, drug abuse and gang 

2) WHEREAS, to be successful in breaking the cycle of poverty any 
effort to cope with the root causes must have as its goal the 
creation of a stable and secure environment so that economic 
success and upward mopility become the norm; and 

3) WHEREAS, new approaches must be applied to the stagnant 
problems of our cities; and 

4) WHEREAS, the current lack of economic growth and activity in 
these communities results in part from the breakdown of 
traditional capital markets; and 

5) WHERlllAS, the normal operation of the capital markets in 
troubled areas has failed to provide the capital needed to 
stimulate growth; and 

6) WHEREAS, any Enterprise Zone legislation must recognize that 
business incentives alone will not rebuild communities; and 

7) WHEREAS, enterprise zone legislation must include programs 
that will create ~conomic revitalization and which will 
provide a safe and st.able environment; and 

8) WHEREAS, congressman Charles Rangel has introduced H.R. 4022, 
The Enterprise communities Act; and 

9) WHEREAS, The Enterprise communities Act would provide $300 
million in direct aid to local jurisdictions to put 
experienced officers on the streets and to concentrate new 
resources on hard core criminals and violent gangs, including 
funds for community-based prevention programs; and 

10) WHEaEAS, The Enterprise communities A~t would provide $615 
million to developers of low-cost housing, local non-profit 
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lenders, and others engaged in the creation of housing and 
commercial development and essential community services; and 

11) WHEREAS, The Enterprise communities Act includes initiatives 
to meet the special needs of school systems coping with the 
massive influx of children exposed to drugs in utero, the lack 
of residential drug treatment facilities, the lack of 
personnel in major drug centers, and the need for treatment of 
pregnant addicts not presently covered by Medicaid; 

12) WHEREAS, tax incentives such as those proposed in President 
Bush's and secretary Jack Kemp's Enterprise Zone legislation, 
are targeted to encourage equity ownership by local residents, 
increase the availability of local goods and services, employ 
disadvantaged individuals, and stimulate meaningful 
entrepreneurial activity in these areas; and 

13) WHEREAS, the Enterprise Zone program was first successfully 
used in Great Britain, and has since been operating on a 
modest scale by over 37 state governments; and extensive 
research has demonstrated that Enterprise Zone programs have 
been successful in spurring private investment and job 
creation, 

14) NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that The U.s. Conference of 
Mayors strongly urges congress to enact this session a new 
Enterprise Zone initiative for urban and rural communities; 
and 

15) BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that The united states Conference of 
Mayors urges congress to fund an Enterprise Zone Initiative; 
and 

lS} BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funding for this program should 
not be provided by reducing other domestic programs. 

projected Cost: Unknown 
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1. INTRODUCTION 

Good Afternoon. Mr. Chairman, I am Maryann Mahaffey, President of the 
Detroit City Council and Chair of the National League of Cities (NLC) Human 
Development Committee. I am testifying today on behalf of the National League 
of Cities, the largest and oldest national organization representing the nation's 
cities and towns. 

Before I begin, I would like to express our appreciation to you Mr. Chairman and, 
the members of this committee for your tireless efforts on behalf of the children 
and families of A.merica who are currently engaged in the struggle to take back 
their neighborhoods. The work of this committee has been invaluable. 

We are particularly pleased to have this opportunity to speak to an issue which 
municipal officials nationwide have, for the fourth year in a row, identified as a 
municipal priority. That is, methods of addressing the damage crime, violence and 
drugs have wrought in our communities . 

II. CONGRESS NEEDS TO TAKE IMMEDIATE ACTION TO ADOPT A 
NATIONAL DRUG STRATEGY THAT PROVIDES DIRECT FEDERAL 
A$SISTANCE TO CITIES AND TOWNS. 

Detroit, like urban communities across the country, has a significant unlawful drug 
problem. While it is true that unlawful drugs are not the only cause of Detroit's 
economic decline, they have surely eroded the quality of life for our residents and 
are a major obstacle to reversal of the downward economic spiral Detroit is 
experiencing. 

Drug abuse touches every aspect of community life, including the availability and 
affordabiJity of health care, the ability of our educational system to provide a 
meaningfullearoing experience for our young people and, our efforts to revitalize 
our community through economic development. 

Detroit has enacted many programs which we believe make sense for our 
community. I have included examples of those programs in the appendix of my 
testimony (See Attachment A). As the success rate of these' programs attest, our 
citizens are fighting back on every front. However, as successful as these 
programs have beer, .. we cannot do it alone . 
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Over the past four years, the evolving nature of the National Drug Control 
Strategy has resulted in a recognition of the integral role local governments play 
in winning the war on drugs. Although we commend the Administration for 
recognizing the importance of municipalities to any" national drug strategy," NLC 
believes that this war will not be won until there is direct federal assistance to 
cities and towns which supplement. rather than supplant, the current municipal 
fiscal contribution. 

m. CRIME AND VIOLENCE AMONG CHILDREN HAS ESCALATED. 
CONGRESS MUST TAKE ACTION TO ASSIST MUNICIPAL 
EFFORTS TO ASSURE THE SAFETY AND FUTURE OF OUR 
CHILDREN. 

I have good news and bad news to report today. The good news is that the Detroit 
homicide rate has qeclined. In 1989, 624 homicides resulted in Detroit being 
awarded the dubious- honor of having the third highest homicide rate in the 
country. In 1990, Detroit dropped to fifth place with 582 deaths. 

The bad news is that despite the overall decline in Detroit's homicide rate, the 
number of teenagers involved in homicides (as both victims and perpetrators) has 
increased. IMurder is the second leading cause of death for children aged 1-14 
years. Murder is the leading cause of death for individuals aged 15-34 years. 

The violence that began with the advent of crack cocaine has accelerated and taken 
an a life of its own. Gangs are emerging in small towns. Guns that were once 
associated with drug trafficking have now flooded the market and are easily 
available to children who are not involved in drugs. As a result, children are 
killing each other over girlfriends, clothing and verbal slights. Some are innocent 
bystanders. Some are children finding a handgun and someone is accidentally 
killed. 

Again, municipalities across the country have responded to this alarming new 
phenomenon. Again, we cannot do it alone. Therefore, NLC is asking that 
Congress take action to assist municipal efforts in assuring the safety and future 

Of the 58l homicide victims in 1990, 414 died of gunshot 
wounds. Of that number, 300 victims were between the 
ages of 15 and 34. Although the overall number of 
murders committed with guns fell from 424 in 989 to 414 
in 1990, victims between the ages of 15 and 19 increased 
from 69 in 1989 to 84 in 1990. 

• 
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of America's children by providing direct funding to cities and towns for use in 
creative (and locally determined) methods of addressing this issue head on. 

IV. THE AV All.,ABILITY OF HEALTH CARE FOR BOTH VICTIMS OF 
VIOLENCE AND SUBSTANCE ABUSERS HAS PLACED A 
SIGNIFICANT STRAIN ON MUNICIPALITIES NATIONWIDE. 
CONGRESS MUST TAKE IMMEDIATE ACTION TO ASSURE THAT 
ALL AMERICANS HAVE ACCESS TO HEALTH CARE COVERAGE 
BY ENACTING HEALTH CARE BENEFIT LEGISLATION. 

Although the National Institute of Drug Abuse recently reported that cocaine and 
heroin use among Detroit residents is on the decline, there is an increase in dual 
diagnosis - drugs and alcohol. This data also reflects the refusal of many local 

. hospitals to treat u$sured individuals.2 

Emergency room visits to southeast Michigan hospitals rose from approximately 
1.5 million in 1985 to 1.725 million in 1990. According to the Southeast 
Michigan Hospital Council, this increase is attributable to a combination of factors. 
That is, an increase in injuries from drug~related violence, a decrease in the 
number of private physicians in urban communities, and an expanding elderly 
popUlation. The elimination of General Assistance and with it a reduction in 
health care availability adds to the problem. 

Basic emergency care in Detroit costs approximately $1200 per day. Because a 
majority of violent crime victims do not have basic health care insurance, the cost 
of care must ultimately be borne by local taxpayers. In that regard, the Michigan 
Hospital Association attributes the closure of hospitals across Michigan3 to the fact 
that our hospitals provide over $1 million per year in uncompensated health care 
to individuals with no health care insurance coverage or who are on diminished 
government assistance programs. 

Based on the percentage o~ drug-related hospital 
emergency room visits in DetroL~ area hospitals, the Drug 
Abuse Harning Network of the National Institute on Drug 
Abuse reported that cocaine u~e in Detroit rose gradually 
during the early 1980's, escalated sharply in 1986 and 
1987 and, is currently declining. 

During the 1980's. 23 hospitals closed in the state of 
Michigan. In 1991, 3 hospitals closed in the City of 
Detroit alone. 

58-586 - 92 - 4 
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At the current time, public health care clinics in Detroit are reporting that the 
reduced staffing and clinic downsizing occasioned by both an increased patient load 
and diminished federal/state assistance has resulted in a wait of up to 6 weeks for 
an appointment; (the wait is 4-6 weeks for residential substance abuse treatment 
often longer for women).4 This situation undermines our ability to provide 
effective preventative care to our most needy residents and increases medical 
system costs by forcing these individuals to use hospital emergency rooms to treat 
illnesses in the advanced stage. 

Perhaps one of the most loathsome consequences of cocaine (including crack 
cocaine) use is its effect on pregnant women and the children born to them. In 
Detroit, the number of cocaine addicted women delivering infants doubled between 
the period 1977 through 1987.5 The cost of these children to society, in terms of 
both loss of productive life and fiscal costs, cannot be calculatc0. 

Finally, Detroit conlinues to lead Michigan cities in the number of individuals 
diagnosed with HIV infection. In 1991, the Center for Disease Control stated that 
of the 2,179 Michigan residents reported to have tested positive for the HIV 
infection, nearly half (941 cases) were residents of Detroit. Of those, nearly 50 • 
percent were LV. drug use related. . 

IV. UNLAWFUL SALE AND USE OF DRUGS, CRIME A!~D VIOLENCE 
IMPACT AND UNDERMINE THE EFFECTIVENESS OF U.S. 
ECONOMIC COMPETITIVENESS. 

Over the course of the past decade, political and business leaders across the 
country have expressed a significant amount of concern about the deterioration in 
the quality of life in communities and its effect on both domestic and foreign 
investments. NLC believes these influences deserve our immediate attention. That 
is, if we are to attract domestic and foreign investors, our local communities must 

Detroit's neighborhood service organization has the only 
pre-treatment substance abuse program in the county. 
This combined with their drug treatment program has an 80 
percent success rate. 

'In 1977, cocaine addicted women accounted for over 
II percent of all live births in Detroit. By 1987, this 
percentage had increased to over 23 percent. The results 
of a study conducted at Detroit's Hutzel Hospital in 1990 
revealed that 42 percent of the infants participating in 
the study showed traces of at least one of the drugs 
tested (cocaine, heroin and other opiates). 

• 
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be a place people want to live and, our workforce must be both skilled and reliable 
and there must be domestic security and liveability in the nation's cities and towns. 

Our experience in Detroit suggests that the quality of life has a direct impact on 
the revitalization of any community. Large and small communities across the 
nation which are plagued by the drug trade, crim~ and violence are unable to 
compete for new plants or corporate headquarters. 

Again, Mr. Chairman, I appreciate this opportunity to update you on the drug, 
crime and violence troubles plaguing American cities and towns. I would happy 
at this time to respond to any questions. 



Scope of the Problem 
DetroiL like other major U.s. metropolitan 

areas. has ; substantial problem with illegal drugs. 
Although people throughout the mewpolitan area 
5I1ffer from \he consequences of drug abuse, mar· 
tallty related to use of addictive substances 15 more 
common among tity residents, with blac~.s and the 
urban poor significantly more likely than others to 
,ufigr the mo<l severe consequences from addk· 
tiOJ'l·nilated health problems. 

• City residents ale three times as likely ~s sub­
urban resld~fI\$ to .,i.it ho.pital emergency 

'. : rooms for drug·related causes. and more likely 
.. :.;,t,~'to die of addiction-related causes. 
',:.".' Residents of the city suffer tobacco-related 
. ;';~.;·mortality at rates 1.5 times as high'asthose for 

'< residents 01 the r'lSt of the metropolitan alea. 

n 
Cocaine and Crack 

As In other major dtles. the renewed concern 
. about drug use in the Detroit metropolitan area 
largely is due to a sudden increase in the use of 
COcai",.. especially In its smokable form known as 
·crack." Although the visibility of the increase In 

88 

cocaine use in the late 1980s is more apparent In 
the city of Det."ClIL no part ofthe metropolitan alea 
C::Co'Ip9d unlOuc:ned. Other areas reporting hil<h 
rales of cocaine use include portions of Macomb 
County. Pontlac/ ~d Oearbo~.,,' ,t.~~i;.;:": ' 

Dat.1 coller.ted frem hospital emergency 
repms (E,Rs) by the Drug Abuse Warning Network 
(DAWN) of the National Institute on Drug Abuse 
showed that. paralleling national trends. hospItal 
ER mentions of cocaIne use in Detroit rose gradu. 
ally aurlns the ~rly 1980;; ,hot up sn.,rply In 19a~ 
and 19B7. and haw since begun to decline: During 
~ one-year period from 19a~ ttl 1990/ D~WN' ' 
showed.; 1.7 percent diop In drus·rc!ated ho~pltal 
emergency room visits In Detroit area hospitals -
from 14/789 In 1989 to 10.70S In 1990. Some of 
the decrease. however. may be attributed to re­
duced willingness of hospitals to treat IndIVIduals 
whn I~ck health insurance. Analysis of the quar­
terly figures {or 1989 and the tim three quarters 
of 1990 show the percent.1ge declines {or both 
COCAine Gnd hgroln mention~ to be similar for !,he 
city of Detroit and the remainderof the metro­
politan alea. 

Table 1 
Drugs Mentioned In Emerg~"cy Room Records: Dctrolt, eniOlgo, Md Np.w York. 1989 

l'el'cent of all 
ER drug epl.odos 
which mentioned: 

Cacalne 
, Heroin. morphine. IIli!thadone 
Mari/lla~ hashW! 
AmphNmines. methamphetamine 
Phencyclidine (PCP) 
t::riuepam 
Baroiturate1\ 
Cod"; .. e.nd codeine comblnotion 
Alcohol In combj~tion with other drugs 

'Detroit 
41% 
12'1'. 

7% 
0.3% 
0.30/. 

3% 
1% 
3% 

35% 

Chicago 

44% 
140/. 
8% 

0.4% 
60/. 
3% 
1% 
2% 

36% 
NoI.: TOIOli do ncllcmllClO". boc:.UM! 0/ emitted drugs and mUltiple dru,s d9l«:led Inane epl5Dde. 
SolIta: NIDII VInInIal \I.oU, ,toIIatiul Mtloll • 

Source- Exsc:utive Smtnary . ' " 
R3nd.~tion Study ~verby~,~~~ 1990 ~ Spring 1991 ............ ,= Fourxjation of !lichigan 

Naw)'ork 

" 

46% 
23% 
6% 

0.2% 
2% 
2% 

0.70/. 
0.6% 
270/. 

I 

• 

• 
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Although cocaine use Is common throughout 
tho mqttopolit;tn ar~a. its health ccnseq1.lences 

• are found disproportionately in the city of Detroit. 
With iust over onfH1uaner of the metropolitan 
area'~ population, the city accounts for about 
three.quar!ers of the cocaine-related ER visits in 
the area. 

• In 1989, two-thlrds of the peoplt: involved In 
hospital ER cocaine mentions in Detroit were 
males; threfH1uarters were black. 

• During the ;9805, the aW!rage age of cocaine 
users also increaS4!d, In 1989, S6 percent of 
cocaine FR mentions involved people age 30 
and over; in 1965, iust under half were over 
age 30. The data also suggest that fewer young 
poople arro starting cocaine use in the late 
1980.; fewer than two pencenl of the cocaine 
ER mentions in 19B9 involved persons under 
as·18. 

• During tile 19505, crack use also increased 
dramatically in the city of Detro!t. Although 
only tilree percent oi c~iM ER mentions In 
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1983 were recorded as smoking (with freebase 
as the only method· for extra.:ting .:ocaine 
through cmok.l by 1989 the proportion of 
cocain~ mentions for which the route of 
administration was smoking had risen to 
,,, pen;.nt Dllrin~ the same period, the 
total numbf:r of cocaine ER mentions per 
year had quadrupled. 

One of the area$ of gr~a\>:)\ public health co .... 
cern involves the consequences of cocaine use 
in young women and its effects on childbearing. 
Women who use cocaine have greater r"l"" of 
miscarriage and premature delivery, and the fetus 
expoced tn ~ocalne is at risk for tetal growth retar­
dation and neon~tal seizures. Maternal cocaine 
use also has been associated with behavioral and 
ueveiopme"t~1 problems of inf~nts and children. 

Public health oit\cials report that the cocaine 
epidp.mic has seriou~ly worsened the situation of 
Infant health in the city of Detroit. 

Figure 1 
Cocaine-Related /:mergency Rt:~m Mentions, Datrolt Metropolitan Area: 1983·1989 
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Figure 2 
Index of Cocaine-Related Emergency lloom Mentions, Tulal DAWN System: 1983-1989 
(First half1983 .100) 
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Source: NIDA. Drug AbU>!! Waming Network 

• The number of addicted womp.n delivering 
infants has increased from '1.9 per 1.000 live 
births In 1977 to 23.S per 1,000 In 191)7. In a 
1990 .tudy ofl,OOO infant~ or Hutzel Hospital. 
42 percent showed traces of at least one of the 
drugs tested (cocaine, heroin or other opiates, 
and marijuana~ Cecaln .. was found in 21 oer­
cent of the infants. opiates in 24 percent, and 
marijuana in 12 percent . 

• Admlssll:ms to the nw,latal.lnton.lve COlT., unit 
at Hutzel Hospital rose by more than 50 per. 
cent in three yaars, from 691 In 1987 to 1,063 
in 1989. 

Heroin 
AI1noullh the dQ~ S"therlHi from hospital ERs in 

the Detroit metropolitan area by DAWN as well as 
reportS (rom Detroit area medica! examiners sug­
gest that herOin U)" hAS been declining .lncQ 1987. 

1986 1967 1985 1989 

this i. counter to trends seen in data collected by 
the Detroit Health Department's Central DlagnO! 
tic; and Referral Service (CDRSt Analysis of the 
cnR.~ data showed that: 

• The number of client> who staled that heroin \ 
their primary substance of abuse increased by 
75 percent between 19BNI!! and 1989-90. F~ 
,988·69 to 1989-90, the increase was 29 perc 

• Although cubst'lnC'.e abuse admissions In 19a~ 
were down by two percent. the number of hel 
idmissions was up; heroin was the cause of 
27 pgrc:ent of admlllSions. and the secondary 
cause of three percent of admissions. 

The CDRS data also showed an ominous lrenl 
oi increasing numbers at youth experimenting \' 
heroin. From 1987 to 1988, 338 clients aged 16 
to 20 stated that they had used herOin for the fir 
time. Between 1989 and 1990, that number hac 
creased to SS6. Reports during the past year tho 
chea,,-r. smokable form of heroin is Circulating 

• 

• 
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Figure 3 
Heroin-Related Emergency Room Mentions, Detroit MtHropolitan Mel:": 1983-19119 
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several large citIes Including New York threatens 
an escalation of heroin use ;unon!! u," young. 

The DAWN data show that the city of Detroit 15 
d'spropordonul"ly repre5Cnl..d In hotpitotl repom 
of heroin use, with more than 80 p!!rcent of heroIn 
mentions coming {rom city hospItal ERs. Although 
heroin use is considered 10 be mort! prevalent 
among men, 32 percent 01 the Detroit heroin ER 
mentions In 1989 involved women, dose to the 
national figure of 30 p!!rcent. This also is Similar 
ttl figures for cocaine use; a thIrd of all cocaine 
rcpcMi through th~ DAWN system were women. 

The link between the Human Immunodeficiency 
Virus (HIVl which leads to AIDS (Acquired 
Immune Dericlency Syndrome) and intravenous 
(I. V.) drug use provIdes a strong motivation for 
k .... ping heroin use on the public health agenda. 

• In April 1991, the Centers for Disease Control 
(COO reported that there was a cumulative to­
~I of 2,17!1 AIDS C45eS in Michigan. Oetroit 
had nearly half - 941 - of those cases. Of 
those 941 cases, almost one-half were related 
to I.V. drug u:.o:. 

• Olthe 17 pediatric AIDS cases thus far reo 
portrd In the city of Detroit. 10 were related 
to I.v. drug use. 

HIV seroprevalence 5wdies conducted by CDRS 
In 1~90 of 277 anvnymou. blood 'pQ<:imen. 
showed that heroIn was the primary drug ior all of 
those that were HIV positive. A larger proportion 
of the females were posillve (12 percen!); lIi,le 
percent of the males were HIV positive. Nearly 
three time,<; as many blacks as whit~ were 
seropositive. 

Sinee the AIDS cases reported to the CDC 
represent only the advana:d stages of the ubu.e 
caused by HIY infection, the number of persons 
in rnA De!rQjt area infected by HIV and capable 
of pas~ing it to their sexual partners or, In the 
Cise of women, to their newborn infants. Is no 
doubt much l.rBP.r than the number of reported 
AIDS cases. 

Besides the link between Intravenous drug use 
and HIV transmission, use of such drugs h .. ~ been 
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linked with high-risk sexual and drug-taking be­
haviors. I ~'ile metropolitan areilS hllV!! reported an 
increase in the prevalence of sexually transmitted 
diseases other than AIDS in the saml! years that 
~li1ck use hAS tlIken hold. 

Alcohol, Marijuana and 
Other Drugs 

Although the sudden Increase in th,e popularity 
of cocaine has monopolized a good deal of public 
attention. any reyiew of substance alll,..., must 
Include the persistent use of other addIctive sub­
~tances - notably, alcohol. 

Alcohol use is related in various ways to more 
than 2,000 deaths a year In the Detroit area, com 
pared to lewer than 1,000 dt!"'.hs woeiated with 
the abuse of other legal and /IIegal drueiS. Perhap! 
thousands of other individuals suffer mental or 
ph~lcal health problems due to their or family 
members' alcohol use. Nationally, alcohol cause: 
mor. nonl"th<ol health problems as well as more 
deaths than any other addictive substance.. . 

Although dIfficult to track, marijuana use 
remains a concem throughout the Deuell metro· 
politan area because it has harmful physical elfe 
(or thp. user. Including a polential for creating de 
p!!ndence. It alw can be a "gateway· to the use I 
other harmful drugs. 

In the 19805, Schedule II prescrIption drul\S SL 

as Preludin, Oilaudid and Codeine were a seriOI 
problp.m in Southeastern MichIgan. The implem 
!alion of the state computerized triplicate: preser 
tlon program has helped bring that problem une 
control <Inc! pre .. nt it. recurrenc:e. Codeine ap­
p!!ars to be the m~in remainIng problem. 

• The most common legally prescribed drug 
with abuse JXIII'lilialls diazepam ($Old und, 

• the'trade nam .. , Valium) which has been 
detected in about three percent of all ER 
eplsod~ (or which dNB usa wu 'DCOrdPrl. 

Some other illegal drugs that are quite comm 
in other part< of the country - pcp in Washing 

• 

• 
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D.C .• l.o5 Angeles and New Orleans, or amphet­
ami"", lit Philadelphia And S~n Diego - rire 
relatively urn;ommon i'n the Detroit area. , 
Violence and Neighborhood 
Destruction 

One of the most Importtnt consequences of 
the drug trade and Its attendant vlol.m~e I. the 
destruction of civic bonds and erosion of resl. 
dents' feelings of safety and ownership in many 
of Detroit's neighborhoods. The violence and 
neighborhood disorder lISsoclated with open drug 
... Ies !"lEe B"'ater problems for poor than for rich 
neighborhoods. Not only do the drug trades repre­
sent a major diVl!rsion of resources and Income 
irurlO the Ie!itlmete economy. they al;o lilven many 
young people from building experience in, and 
work habits suitable for. the legitimate economy . 
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For years the homicide rate in Detroit has been 
one of the highe.t among American cities - in 
fact, Detroit had the highest homicide rate of any 
American city during the 19705. After a dip in the 
late 1970., nelroit's homidde rate climbed to a 
peak in 1987. 

• Although the relationship between the homi­
cide rate and the Increa.e in the drug tr"dB is 
undear, in 1987 half the homicide victims in 
Wayne County tested positive for cocaine use 
shortly prior to Ih~lr <leath •. 

Efforts to reverse this trend app@arto be 
succeeding; in 1991, tha Fed.ra' Rureau of 
Investigation reported that Detroit's homicide rate 
had fall~n'irol':'l third highest in the nation in 1989, 
toilfth ,;.. f':1S0.ln D~lrojl in 1980, 624 homicide. 
were commitied; 582 homicides were c.ommitted 
in 1990 • 

Figure 5 
Perr:entage of Teenagers Among Homicide Victims and Killers. 1980-19/)8 
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Despite this. in recent years there has been a ri~ 
In the number of teenagers involved in homicide •• 
both as killers and as victims. The arrival of crack 
seems to have accelerated a process that had 
alre.dy ""8un in which drug sales became more 
visible and competitive. The legal:}' for the 19905 
Is that significant numbers of young men are well­
arm..u dnd accu.tomed to rOlolving even rw.ttv 
disputes with deadly (orce. 
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Prevention in the Schools 
Much urgency has been given recently to pri­

mary prevention becQu~e of • lack of f.ith in tnP. 
10ng·tenT! effectiveness of Ueatment measures and 
law enforcement strategies. In the Detroit metro­
politan area. the majority of pr"Y"nuon resourCC3 
have been Invested in school-based. primary· pre­
vention programs. 

Evaluations of school drug prevention programs 
in the 1960s and 1970s have been disappointing. 
More recently. some "vdluation. nave .nown th.t 
prevention programs based on the "50clal influ­
ence model" appear have positive. short-tenT! 
effects in a wide range of s~hools for diverse 
student populations. A key assumption ofthese 
proer~m~ is that delayin~ or preventing the first use 
of gateway drugs such as nicotine and marijuana 
will reduce the number of young people using 
th • .e 3ubst,,"clK ... well as Ihelle who later will 
progress to /TlQre hannful patterns of drug use. 

For the most part. substance abuse prevention is 
embedded In health ~urricula.ln elementary and 
middle schools this probably str~ngthens su~ 
.t~nca abu •• prev~ntion both substantively and 

• PTin"'l Y JX't'o'Vmion n:Nn '" v.o., Artivltln intended to prt:\1!nt 
a ho.1hh probIam jn>m d< .... loc>Ins. s.condory provenrion _rTljllS 
10 Io.ntiiv huhh problrnu tm"cne thty olre symPtomalic Olnd atch 
1Mm in an e.ariy Klatt in which they can be cured Of their tHeel! 
mI~mlZt.'\J. 

• Violence has a momentum of lIS own. In 
Detroit as In other cities. there has been no de­
cline in hemicidp. rates comparable to recent 
declines in indicators of drug use. 

AlthouRh the current wave of Illegal drug use 
and Its attendant violence did not crea~ Deuolt's 
economic decline. It can only hinder the efforts of 
ra.ident,1O ovp.rc.ome it. 

administratively by making it part of the normal 
work of the school rather than an isolated extra­
curricular activity. In the high schools,. however, 
h!alth courses are electives that reach few stu­
danlS. Now led",ral drull prevention program 
certification regulations stipulate that all secondar 
schools must develop and Implement comprehen 
.h·e alcohol end othor drugs prevention progr.ams 
for all students In all grades. • . 

The Michigan Model 
The two dominant school prevention program! 

in the Detroit area are the Mi~hlgan Model for 
Comprch"nsivo School Health Education. which 
Is the state-mandated health curriculum. and the 
Growing Healthy School program. 

Both programs inclUde the key elements that 
have ~n shown In evaluations of similar pro­
gr.ms In be effective In reducing tobacco and 
Illegal drug use among young adolescents. Both 
are based on teaching speclfi~ resistance skills: ~ 
represents II clear ~dvanc. over older methods tr. 
offer infonT!ation alone by providing practl~e in 
realistic social5eltings. One study found that the 
Michigan Model'. Jubot3nc. abu ... I .. son. were 
effective in reducing gateway drug use among 
middle 'school age children. 

• 

• 
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• 01 the 83 school districts serving public 
<ehool <llJd~nts in the re~ion. 54 use th!! 
Michigan Model. 24 offer the Growing 
Healthy program. four have their own locally 
devalopecl ~bst.ance abuS!! curriculum. and 
one does net have a drug education 
curriculum. 

• Tilt: Mlchis.n Mod~II' tho mo" widely used 
prevention curriculum in th!! Detroit metro­
politan area. employed by 33 out of 34 
dl.trh:ts in Wayne County. .nd 18 out of 21 
districts In ~comb County. as well as 3 out of 
28 districts in Oakland County. 

Initiated in 1983. the Michigan Mo<lells a .!zItc­
wide health and substance abuse curriculum for 
kindprgarten through the eighth grade. Designed 
to indude age-appropriate activities to influence 
students' health attitudes. practices and cognitive 
skill •• one of tho major cllrrlculum emphases i. on 
drug education and resistance training for school. 
aged children and their parents. Federal and state 
funding an: u>ed for local coordination. teacher 
training and materials. 

In the D.trolt mp.tropolitan area. the Michigan 
Model is Implemented through three intermediate 
school districts (ISDs) and the Detroit public school 
syst~m. Each ha.s ft Mlchisan Model r.oordinator 
charged with implementing the MichIgan Model, 
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classroom teachers. community resource agencies 
and personnel who supPOrt the model, and trainers 
who proviu~ in-service training for the model. 

School districts in the Detroit metropoilian area 
.t~rted phasing in Ihp. Michigan Model during the 
1984-85 s~hool year on a small scale In a few tar­
S!!t elementary schools. Since then the Michigan 
Mou~1 h •• f:Xpondcd r.pldly to new districts and 
new schools. Initially. most districts gave first prior· 
Ity to phasing in the elementary s<:hool curriculum 
for the early grades. Later, 1II0st turned thoir ~tWn­
tion to the middle school program. 

• Pr08r~m implementation for the city of Detroit 
began in 1984, with only six target elementary 
schools. By the 1989-90 school year, approx· 
imately 60 percent of the city'S elementary 
schools (117 of about 200) and all 40 junior 
high s~hools were tea~hing the Michigan 
Motjpl pmaram at one or more grade levels. 

• During the 1989-90 school year. Wayne 
County ISD staff estimated that more than 
O~ percent oi the elem.ntary srhools and 
nearly 70 percent of the middle schools taught 
the Michigan Model at one or more grade levels. 
Mo.t elemcnt.ry schools in th .. r.ountY are 
teaching the model for grades K·3. K-4. or K-6; 
more than 3,000 teachers have been trained 
'0 far.> 

Table 2 
~nce Abuse Prevention In the Michigan Model and Other Drug Prevention Curricula 

Curriculum 
Michigan Mod.1 

ALERT 

STAR 
QUEST (Sk1ll5 for Adol~cel'(5) 
Source: training rmuwAI, mrCQch program 

Grade Lewis 
K-6 
7-8 
7 
8 
6-9 
6-8 

Clns.room Time Spent on 
Substance Abuse I're\oention 
4-8 IS-minute sessions per grade 
4-8 SCJ..mlnute session. per zrade 

8 SCJ..minute sessions 
3 SCJ..minute session; '2 "'-minute se.!tsions 

11 45·minute sessions 



Tho limitation. in the use of the Michigan Model 
curriculum include: 

• It Is not always clear whether districts are 
usIng all, some, ur 1I0ne of the <:urri<:uI8r 
materials provided. 

• Although each district signs a partiCipation 
agreement with Its Intermediate School 1)15-
mct agreeing ta inCDrpellate all ten content 
a~as of the Michigan Model health curricu­
lum, schools and teachers have a good deal 
of discretion in deciding whether a particular 

. course objective already is covered by their 
iixisting program. Given the large number of 
partiCipating schools and teachers, the ISO 
staff cannot effectively track Implementation 
in the local schools. 

• Most partlc:ipating districts have not yet fully 
implemented the curriculum.t.1I grotielevels 
in aU schools. Participating districts In the 
region are in varying stages of curriculum 
implementation. 

• Implementation has been a slow process 
although funds for this purpose have been 
available from the Stalt<. During the 1990-91 
school year. most ISOs were still phasing In 
the curriculum for the early primary grades. 
I tw cruCial bonleneck alJf.l\IdrS to be the la<:k 
of Michigan Model training staff, especially for 
teachers in the city of Detroit. 

• Training resources vary greatly within the 
region. The Detroit Public School System. 
with more than 260 schools. seems to have 
the most limited staff resourc~ for implement­
ing the Michigan Model. While the Detroit 
School System's Michigan Model coordinator 
serves as the master trainer for the city with 
limited assistance from a few part-time teacher 
trainer.;. the Wayne County ISO has many 
more trainers to assist with the Implementa­
tion o( thi: Michigan Model in areas outside 
'he city of Detrolt.ln addition to a full-time 
Michigan Model Coordinator, there is one full­
time health educator (or every five districts In 
the Wayne County region working on program 
implementation. 

• Implementation of the program In elementary 
5ChCI<'Jl~ seems to have proceeded more rap­
idly and smoothly than in middle schools. 
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Local education officials attributed this in part 
to the fact that the 11:-6 currlcululII is the re­
sponsibility of a single classroom teacher who 
is responsible for integrating it into the existing 
school curriculum. At the mhJul" schoollev<:l, 
it is reportedly a more difficult task (or schools 
to fit together the Michigan Model and their 
current curriculum and to nlld a suitable pool 
of seventh and eighth grade teachers who ~re 
~vailable and willing to teach the program. 

A major concern with the Michigan Model Is 
whether, as Implemented by the Individual schools 
enough Lime for s<lbstance n.bu~ prilMlntion i, 
provided. If dellverud as designed, the Michigan 
Model course 'NOuld Involve about as much 
classroom tim!! as other effec:tJve reslstan~"tI.kiils 
programs. 

As of November 1991, continued State suppOrt 
for the Michigan Model 15 in jeopardy. 

• . Growing Healthy 
Growing Healthy is the predominant health 

and substance abuse curriculum (or the Oakland 
County Intermediate School District; it emphasiZE 
the same h@.llth content areas as the Michigan 
Model. This program has a special module on suI: 
swnce abu5Qand 'I'. which i~ taught at each leve 
from kindergarten through seventh grade. 

• First introduced In the region in 1976, Crow­
InB Healthy Is now tht: wain program in 24 0 

Oakland County's 28 public schoo! districts 
and 29 private schools. A total of 183 public 
schools, l.n1 t~~t;hers and GG,OOO .ttJdonts 
were involved In the program In the 1989.9C 
sthool year. 

Although the GrOWing Hulthy program is 
designed for grades K-7. while the Michigan Moe 
I. {or K-8, 50mc tc~chert have divided Gmwlna 
Healthy's &eventh grade drug edua.tlon curriculu 
into two classes - one for seventh sraders and 0 
tor elghU, graders - to lIive sttJdents more tim. t 
practice a range of prevention oriented actlvlUes. 

• 

• 



• 

• 

Substance abuse education in Detroit area high 
schools is provided In health courses that typically 
are taken iUl<Ue!..ctive 'lithe, th:.n a ,oquirw! 
course. Most course content Is derived from pop­
ular health curricula such as Teenage Heelth 
Teaching Module! (grades !HZ); QU~ST: Skill. 
for Living (grade! 9-12 enhancement); and Here's 
Looking at You: 2000. 

A 
Supplemental Programs 

Many schqols use a variety of other programs to 
enhance their core substance abuse cun iculum. 
Among the most common in the Detroit metro· 
politan area are: BABES (grades K·6); QUEST: 
Skills for Growing (K·S); QUEST: Skills for Adoles· 
cence (grades 6-8); Guided Group Interaction 
(gr~des JG.12); Merrill·Hp.alth: A WeJlness 
Approach (grade 9); Children Are People programs 
(elementary level) and other self-esteem building 
programs; und Peer leAdership Training Work. 
shops (secondary level~ Project DAR.E. (Drug 
... .buse Resl5tance Education~ a law enforcement· 
sponsored program targeted at fifth and sixth 
graders where uniformed officers visit the school 
once a week, has been piloted In several elemen· 
tary schools in Wayne and Oakland counties and 
recently received a state appropriation for wider 
implwnentalion thmushout Michigan. 

State and local school officials have expressed 
concerns that these supplemental programs com· 
pete with the core drug education curriculum. The 
proponents of the Michigan Model argue that the 
st.l1tc'ollll'lph;sis on a t"omprehensive kindeniarten 
through eighth srade drug curriculum keeps indio 
vidual school efforts from becoming sporadic and 
fragmt!nll<d. Wilen the StnlQ shifted attention to the 
comprehensive heaith curriculum approach of!he 
Michigan Model. some local prevention prosrams 
were displaced or recelv...J lawer funding priority. 
Ne\'ertheless. most officials Interviewed felt that 
implementation of the Michigan Model need not 
crowd out experimentation With Other al'fJro~ches. 
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Student Assistance Programs 
Secondary prevention. especially In the high 

schools, has been somawhat slighted In the recent 
amph •• i, on O\~tablithing primary prevention cur. 
ricula. However. there is evidence \hal primary 
prevention programs do not affect use among those 
whu already have $~rtqd regular drui or tobacco 
use. Coupled with a lack of affordable formal treat· 
ment lor young drug users, secondary prevention 
programs In lunlor and s~lIior high ,chools oll.>ht 
to be a priority. 

The~ ha, been ~ strons pu,h fmm the state for 
Student Assistance Programs (SAPs) targeted at 
high·risk elementary school students. Like many of 
the supplemental prugrams lor elementary school 
students, SAPs are not uniquely aimed at drug 
prevention but attempt to iocus on personal and 
family problems which might put Studenb ~t risk 
for abusing drugs Including iamlly vlolen~e, child 
abu$!', alcoholic or druR abUSing parents. problems 
of latch key kids. low self-esteem and lack of posi • 
tive role models. 

• In 1990, Maculllb County Id<mtiliGd a ""all 
number of target elementary schools which 
were1eeder schools to Junior high schools 
where SAPs were already employGd. Tha Oak. 
land County ISO also received a small state 
grant to work with four school districts to plan 
and dev~lup <;!I~,cnl'ry .ehcol SAP,. 

• During the 1989·90 school year, the Wayne 
County ISO received about S43,000 In state 
funding to begin working with 17 elemental y 
schools irom six districts to help them plan 
and pliot SAPs. In 1990, Southeasll!m Michi· 
gan Substance Abuse Services (SEMSAS) 
allocated its total prevention budget of about 
5200,000 to implement SAPs In nine addi. 
tional Wayne County school districts. 

During the 1989·90 school year Michigan 
school dbll i~u received ~l~te funding to bf,gln 
SAPs in a small sample oi elementary schools In 
each county. Most of the SAPS are only beginning 
to form core sUpport team~ in participntinS s<:hool~. 
However. these programs also face difficulties . 



• A ",ajor rnod block In setting UP SAPs has 
been recruiting teachers and administrators 
who are willing to participate as volunteers. 
Rp.<:l1litment often is hampered because 
teachers are not compensated (or any extra 
time that they spend working on the SAP core 
SIl~pOrl team. which typically requires a sub­
stantial after school commitment. 

Because o(the long lead time needed to gain 
school-level cooperation from teachers and admin­
istrators to mount such programs, the process of 
phasing in SAPs has been very slow. Like SAPs In 
other parts of th2 region. the SEMSAS programs 
only recently have been implemented and are still 
in thv early~rilnP.nt.1 stases. 

Schools often supplement their core drug cur­
riculum with school-wide activities or services. 
student group activitles, or community activities. 
Onesuccessful Detroit area effort Is "Project Grad­
uation.N a hieh v.hool prevention program to warn 
students about the danger3 of drinking and driving. 
usually presented at a student assembly near grad­
udlion. Other schools mount sp<oclal prevcmtion 
activities during Substance Abuse Awareness 
Month. an annual statewide public awareness 
campatgn. 

• Many Detroit area schools have active Stu­
dents Aialnst Drunk Driving (SADD) group'; 
which sponsor peer leader3hip workshops, 
training on peer resistance skills. drug aware­
ness pi'OiJ'ams. and other support activltie~ for 
drug-free lifestyles. 

• Concemed parent and community groups . 
• uch III PArcnt to Parent. Concerned P~rp.nts 
Coalition. the Prevention Network. and Fami­
lies in Action (FIA) group3 also sponsor student 
leadership lruininG worlGhopl. 

In secondary schools where few students are 
"nrolled in health education. such programs are 
often the only source of drug abuse counselling 
since few SAPs are In place in middle or senior 
hiSh .chools. esp<'<"ially in the inner city. 

There are a few more ambitious attempts to 
reform schooling in inner city Detroit. For these. 
substance abuse prevention is embedded I n a 
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larger context of motivating school achievement 
and avoidance of destructive behaviors. 

• An experimental program for mlnorily 
'tud"nu designed by Creigs Beverly Ilf the 
Wayne State University School of Social Wed 
is being implemented in two target high 
school, with wpport {rom the W.K. Kellogg 
Foundation. The idea behind the program is 
that disadvantaged minOrity students need cu 
turally ,,,nsili,,,,, help to overcome feelings o( 
hopelessness and vulnerability since many r:' 
these students lack strong church, family or 
school ties. In addition to activities such as 
mentor training, guest speakers. and peer 
leadership training. a health clinic has been 
svt up in .. ach panicipating school where 
health professionals visit the school once a 
week to proviae on-site assistance with a 
ranee of health problems. IncJudln.~ substanr 
abuse concems. 

An important question is hoW much exposure 
to prevention programs children actually are 
receiving. as compared with what the currlculun 
requires. There is much uncertainty at present 
about how many children - particularly those a 
high risk for substance abuse - actually are pan 
Ipatins In the prav"ntlo" programs adopted by tt 
;choo! districts. The Michigan Akohol and Oth( 
DlUgs School Survey, developed for the Michiga 
school Lii!tric;tJ by the MichigMI Department of I 
ucation and the Michigan Department of Public 
Health Office of Substance Abuse Services (051 
contains items on what program. u, ".us~ chil 
ren remember having. as well as Items on drug­
related knowledge. attitudes and behavior3. Sch 
and coordinating agency officlals could make 
more informed decisions about allocating traini 
and other resnurces and trving new or suppleml 
tal appros'ches with such information. 

Recommendations: 
• The Detroit School Sy;wm Ihould II"; the 

resources available for training teacher3 in 
Michigan Model Curriculum In order to im 
plemcnt th" Michigan Mndelln the remair 

• 

• 
L-________________________________________ ~ ___ 



• 

• 

district elementary and middle school. when: 
the curriculum has not yet been established 
(sponsoring group re<:ommendatlon~ 

• Substance abuse prevention courses and 
activities should be part of an overall school 
district pl~n ancllncorporated Into the curric:u­
lum. rather than treated as "add on" programs, 

• Given the diversity of the problems addressed 
along with >~b:mnce ahu.e pr ....... ntlon in 
various enrichmenl programs. the Michigan 
Model need not crowd out other special 
purpv>e prevontion programs dHisned to 
enhance the curriculum. The Michigan Model 
curriculum does not appear to be incompat­
Ibl" with other !~i::.t purpo£e prevention 
programs that have been adopted by $Ome 
Detroit area schools. 

• Early childhood programs should ~ proVided 
for children in high-risk families. These pro­
grams. like many prevention efforts, are not 
$Olely directed at SlJbstance auLJ5C. Promislns 
strategies. local experimentation, and adapta­
tion of early childhood programs should be a 
high priority for both public Clnd pri .... "' sector 
support. 

• Given evidence that primary' prevention pro­
grams have little effect among those teenagers 
who have already begun using alcohol and 
other druas. Student Assistance Programs, 
which have the potential of helping young 
people In the early stages of drug use quit, 
shoulrl be implemented in secondary schools 
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throughnut the Detroit metropolitan area, 
Inner city schools that have a large concentra­
tion of hlgh-risk students arc an especially 
important target ior these programs. 

• Since the public: sector's m~jor emphasis is on 
primary prevention curricula. private sources 
.uch ... local found3tlon;. bu<lncsses and 
community groups can playa role in stimulat­
ing the development of secondary prevention 
program) by providing fin.ndal resources or 
volul1teer time to augment what the schools 
can provide out of rllgular 'resources. Founda­
tion., for In.t.lncQ. mlsht r1rnvide seed monies 
needed to impl!ment secondary prevention 
programs such as SAPs; while businesses 
might .uppert othQr e~~rimental approaches. 

• Collaborative efforts linking family. schools 
and community-based activities are a 
particularly effective approach for preven­
tion programs. Efforts should be made to 
p.xtendschool curriculum programs Into the 
community by Involving parents'and other 
community organization •• 

• The amount of actu.1 exposure that children 
have to in-school prevention programs should 
be measured and evaluated regularly. Although 
the St~te h ••• ponsorp.ri the development of an 
Alcohol and Other Drugs survey ior use by the 
school districts. few In the Detroit area thus far 
have p3rticipat"d largp.ly due to the cost of 
participation. 

Prevention in the Community 
Support for community l'revention prosrams 

In the Detroit metropolitan area has not been a 
major priority for public expenditure. In Michigan 
as in other state5.lIttie more than the prescri~ 
minimum of federal block grant money has been 
<pqnt on community prevention programs. Until 
recently, federal requirements for prevention pro­
gram. primarily were met by statewide programs: 

only in the past two years has the state required 
Michigan's 1 B regional coordinating agencies to 
spend at least 1 5 percent of the fit3te and federal 
funding they receive from OSAS on prevention 
efforts. 

Since 1973. federal aid for substance abuse 
prevention and treatment prul!r~ms h~ been 



channeled through the ·single state agencies" (or 
drug and alcohol In,atment end prevention. In 
Michigan. this agenc;y is the Office o( Substance 
Abu.e Services (OSAS) In the Department o( Public 
Health. OSAS contracts with the I II regional wor­
dlnatlng agencies which. in tum. r:ontract with 
programs licensed by OSAS to provide treatment 
and prevention serVices (or alcohol and drug 
abuse. The coordinating agencies In the Detroit 
metropolitan lIrea incJudp the city of Detroit 
Health Department, Macomb County Community 
Mental Health Services, Oakland County Health 
Division. and Southeast MlchiS~i'\ Sub.t:lnc .. 
Abuse Services (SEMSAS) (or Wayne County 
outside the city of Detroit and Monroe County. 

Federal and State Initiatives 
The amount of federal and state money allocated 

per resident for prevenliull under the c:oordin~tin8 
igenr:ies budgets has never been large. 

• In fiscal year 1989, coordinating agenc;y 
~pending for prevention was lust over 52 per 
person in thr. city o( Detroit: between 35 and 
45 cpnts per person was allocated to preven­
tion for the rest of the metropolitan area. 

• Some of the coordinating agenr:ies in the 
DVlloit area did not have a iull-rlme proles-
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sional working in prevention until recently. 
and there has been high turnover among 
prevention staff in some agencies. 

Most oi the prevention contracts awarded 
by the city of Detrul~ Oakl&nd and Macomb 
counties have supported services organized by 
sr:hool districts or private agencies. These can 
be categorized as: 

• Programs for preschool children and their 
paronts: 

• School h~alth curricula Including substance 
abuse prevention (I.e .. Michigan Model. 
GrowlnB Healthy) and Studont As,;i.Uncp. 
Programs; 

• Community-based programs for target groups 
of concern (i.e .• high crime neighborhood •• 
pregnant women, high-risk youth. senior 
citizen substance misuse); 

• Parenting programs: 
• Support services (or parent and community 

groups; anu 
• Mass media r:ampalg"!. 
Of the D"troit Area cQordin~tlnB a8.nci~ •. 

SEMSAS has the most limited range of prevention 
services. using its funds exclusively for Student 
Assistance Programs • 

Since 1967. additional federal funds under the 
Drug-Free and Communities Act h~ve become 

Table 3 
Prevention Expenditures of Detroit Area Coordinating Agencies. Flscal.Year 1969 

~n~ng Agency: 
City of Detroit 
SEMSAS (rcs! ofWa~..,e County. Monroe) 
Macomb 
Oakland 
TOTAl Metro area 

thousands of dollars 
Totcl: 

$2;113 
391 
256 
704 

53.464 
NtlI., TO..., filWres .. clud. OSAS funding of stalOwide prevention project>. 
Soun:", OSAS 

Per resident: 

S2.06 
0.36 
0.35 
0.G5 

SO.sa 

.. 

• 

• 



• 

. , 
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• available to the Slates (or both school and commu­
nity-based prevention. Of these new funds, 30 
percent is set aside for each state as a governor's 
discretionary fund; in Michigan, the Michigan 
Depart"TIent of Public HeaithiOSAS has adminis-

. tered a "Governor's Initiative Grants" (GIG) 
program whir:h disbursed 51.6 million in grants in 
fiS<:a1 year 1990, and $760,000 in fisCIlI yc~r1991. 

• One quarter of the GIG funds were awarded 
for projects in the Detroit metropolitan area. 
'These projects have includEd media projects 
such as Detroit Educational Televislon's 
Proje::t Grnduation; education and support 
groups fo1 children ot alcohohcs li.e .. BABES. 

the Detroit Urban League's LlfePower project); 
projects for specific r~cial or ethnic groups; 
and prevention training lor adul~nlS. 

For the 1991-92 fiscal year. GIG grants. now 
being called Governor's Discretionary Grants, wili 
be channelled through the new Michigan Office of 
Drug Control Policy. 

Other preveniion grants are made on a com­
petitive basis direc:tly to iocal applicants under 
programs of the new federal Office of Substance 
Abuse Prevention (OSAP~ The three largest aSAP 
grant programs are for high·rlsk youth. pregnant 
WOI"en, :and;; new "c:ommunity J1;utnArship" 
program. Although proposals from Detroit area 

Table 4 
Prevention Funding from the Office of Substance Abuse Prevention 

thou.and. of dollar. 
Detroit area Michigan tOlal 

Fiscal year: 
1987 0 18& 
1988 0 198 
1969 214 594 
1990 1.634 2.17& 

SouICE: OSAP 

Table 6 
Prevention Funding Und .. ./" the Governor's initiative Grants 

thousands of doliars I % of total 
hscal year: 

U.S. total 

45.896 
26,898 
55.336 

I S5,oOH 

1988 1989 1990 

CUV~d~t:!: 
Detroit metro irea 

Re.l of Michigen 

Statewide 

TOTAL 

Source: OSAS "GIU Summ.ri~," Y;lriou~ YW;'Il . 

$569 
( 31%) 
1.233 

( 67%) 
40 

( 2%) 
1.642 

(100%) 

5595 
( 30%) 
1.215 

( 62%) 
14S 

( 7%) 
1,955 

(100%) 

$390 
( 25%) 
1.011 

( &4%) 
180 

( nOlo) 
1,581 

(100%) 



agencies fared poorly during the first few years 
of the OSAP grant program, thiS began to change 
between 1989 and 1990. 

• In 1990, saven Detroit area STOUpS opplied for 
high-risk youth demonstration grants and four 
- La Casa Family Services, the Detroit Urban 
laagua. tha Detroit Health Departmen~ and 
the W;arren Conner Development Coalition _ 
received grants ranging from 5232,000 to 
$304,000. 

• Under the program of demonstration grants ior 
pregnant women, the Detroit Health Depart. 
nllmt =eiv.,u d !wv-yedr grail! i1l196~ .Il\J 
1990, and the League of Catholic Women 
received a five-year grant in 1990; the grants 
aV\!raged 52S0,000 p.!1 yed'. 

• In 1991, the city 01 Troy received a five-year 
community partnership grant. 

The increase in public funding also has made 
possible a new range of targeted prevention pro. 
grams. The llureau of Substance Abuse Services in 
the Detroit Health Department has started major 
efforts to reach young women with prevention 
messages and to link substance abuse prevention 
to family skills training, in addition to supporting 
training ~nrl technical assistance for community 
groups and other organizations working in 
prevention. ,'-City Activities 

The recent concern with Increased cocaine use 
~nd th" r.ontinulng concern witl> alcohol abuse has 
led to a good deal of prevention activity In the city 
of Detroit, much of it organized by community 
group' without .ignificant S"VQmmgnt (unding. 
Poor n~ighborhoods often are the sites of open 
drug market! and crack houses, with the attendant 
violence and social dbrujJLiuII. III ""iJU'""', ,.,,,iMh­
borhood groups, churches and other religious 
institutions in many parts of the T>!gion have orga­
nized broad.spectrum efforts directed against 
crime and violence and partiy against drug use. 

In thc city of Detroit, two example, of cucc;,,(ul 
community-based efforts are those initiated by 
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REACH. Inc. (Reach Everyone, Administer Care 
and Hope) and the Ravendale Community Pro. 
gram. These two programs have many slmllaritles 
- both have stimulated citizen groups that march 
against drug sales, sponsored youth recreation. 
counselling and mentor programs, and offered 
rnun~lIinB ~nri ~upport prollrarns for recOVl!rina 
addicts. 

• REACH, which grew out of the housing recla 
matlun IJrug. dill oi tho; T .. "IrU. SUet>! Baptist 
Church, seeks to reduce open drug sales and 
violence. Its strategy is to build residents' 
Inv~1I11~1I1 ill the neighborhood through 
redevelopment and home ownership. In 198{ 
with support of REACH staff, residents in the 
sunuuntllr'llllt!illhborhood u.ganiLed a clti· 
zen's group - WePROS (We the People 
Reclaim Our Street) - to combat neighbor. 
hood drull sal~~. 

• The Ravendale Community Program initially 
sought to bring minority leadership back inlt 
the neighborhood through an "adopt a block 
approach to community development. With 
cooperation from the Detroit Police Depart. 
ment. local bwlnesses, and other city ~genc 
landlords of crack houses have been tracked 
down ior notification of code violations and 
arrests have beer: made for open drug sales. 

Billboard advertising in the city promoting 
tobacco and alt:uhull'd~ been ldrgeted by other 
groups through tampaigns to reduce advertlslog 
aimed specifically at minorities and young peopl 

In thl! suburbs. groups workins against sub· 
stance abuse have been organized around spedf 
lJ.ulliem •• uch as th .. inc:ro_d risk of traffic Ace: 
dents due to .. Icohol consumption. These Includ, 
Students Against Drunk Driving and Mothers 
Against lJrunk Uriving (SADDIMADO~ Many 
existing service groups, especially those dealing 
with youth, have taken on substance abuse 
prevention as an expanded role. 

Another type of community organization In th 
suburb. is relJr""~"tj!(j by parent group. such as 
the Families in Action (FIA) movement. which ai 
to prevent alcohol and other drug use among ad 
lescents. ~IA gTOUpS provide cooperative '1ctlvltl 

• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

ior children and their parents that footer iamily 
communication. 

Suoport from the mass media ha. been enll<lpr! 
for campaigns that are more sophisticated than the 
old "scare tactic" public: service announcements. 
Sov"rol ~p.igns h:>ve been coordinated with 
other school-based or community-based 
prevention programs. 

• WlVS (Channel S&~ a Deuoit public televi­
sion station, has broadcast programs linked to 
"Project Graduation" event, fnr high ~hnnl 
seniors. 

• "Club Connect." a television program for 
teenagers. provide. anti-drinking and driving 
messages and other prevention messages coin­
ciding with high school events such as proms. 

[;~;?mUWj 

Nonprofit Support 
Most community prevention activities are fairly 

<m211 inse.lv YIlt incorPOr~te 0 widc ""riety of 
activities. They also rely heavily on volunteers. 
Community organlzation~ or church groups that 
undertake prevention .cUvili"" may need help In 
making contacts with other groups, generating or 
using Ideas, and tapping into the resources that are 
available. Several nonprotitorganizations provide 
technical assistance. encourage networking among 
groups working in prevention. and award grants to 
prevention projects. 

• The Prevention Network proviaes technical 
~5i:;+wncc in community organization, fund­
raising. access to prevention materials, and 
networking. It publishes a monthly newsletter' 
thot summarizes fe.earch re.ult:!, Ii.t, funding 
sources, describes model projl!(:ts, and docu­
ments legislative developments. It maintains 
rclerr,1 hotlincs and 'pon50" regianal confe", 
ences for information sharing and training. 
It also awards mini-grants of up to $500 to 
volunteer sroups to conduct very ,m.:I-,cale 
primary prevention projects. 

• In 1990. the Prevention Coalition of Southeast 
Michigan (PRfVCO) was organized as a 
regional resource for substance abuse preven-
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tion. Wilh repr~semat1on from coordinating 
agencies. school districts. criminal justice 
agencies. human service agencies. business. 
media. cOllI/nullity gruulJs and IndiVidual 
acti\'ists, PREVCO is intended to serve as a 
forum for discussion, strategic planning and 
the ccordin.liun ur ro:giundl media-based 
campaigns as well as a prevention iniomlatlon 
clearinghouse. 

• United Community Services of Metropolitan 
Deueit and New Detroit. Inc. have developed 
FACT - Family Approach to Crime and Treat­
ment. Focusing on young people aged 14 to 
21, FACT supports fimlly strategies to protect 
young people from substance abuse and other 
social problems by seeking to preserve the 
family as a unit rather than removing t~n­
agers to foster care or other living arrange­
ments. ~ervices offered by FACT Include 
advocacy. community awareness. technical 
assistance and information and referral. 
LImited funding also is available to e~pand 
successful model program •. In 1990, FACT re­
ceived S300,OOO from the Detroit Renaissance 
Foundation and $150,000 tram the Skillman 
Foundation. 

• Project EPIC: woo .. ,t~"li<hpr! in 1985 by thQ 
Addiction Research Institute within the De­
parUnent of Community Medicine at Wayne 
State Univer.ity with funning from thE! Bura.u 
of Substance Abuse in the Detroit Health De­
partment to provide technical assistance to 
community grnups in th~ city of Detroit EPIC 
consultants provided assistance in community 
organi~atlon, iundraising, grant writing and 
program ev.luMinn, onr! ~I<n made larger 
mini-grants through a subcontract with the 
city of Detroit. Funding for EPIC from the city 
was discontinued in !i.e,,1 yeor lqql-9~. 

• New Detroit. Inc .. which received support 
from the Governor's Initiative Grants (GIG~ 
provided ,mall grant$ for prevention prul!'''u,~ 
through 1991.ln 1991, 22 programs received 
grants totalling S42.000 for projects ranging 
from cammunit,. education and empower­
ment to youth mentoring. This program also 
will be affected by the channelling of GIG 
funds through the new office of Drug Control 
Policy. 



• Under a new grant initiative. the Skillman 
Foundation awarded a total of S470.500 to 28 
organizations in 1990 and the first five months 
011991. Skillman funded a wide variety of prc:r 
grams; for example. a "Partners 111 Prevention" 
plogram at Common Ground. a "Smart 
Moves" program at the Boys and Girls Club 
of Pontiac. WE-PROS activities through Core 
City Neighborhoods. and the D.A.R.E. pro­
gram of the Detroit Police Department. 
Skillman's initiative in prevention encourages 
submissions that "build. Improve or incorpo­
rate partnerships among a communlty's 
organizatJons and luders" and "coordinate. 
network and share infonnation among com­
munity organizations involved in substance 
abuse prevention.' Th,t " ti:latlve stimulated 
substance abuse prewr.1.ion proposals from 
traditional youth. social service and recreation 
organizations. 
Skillman also has made larger grants for sub­
".nco .bu." prevention a. a part nf its regular 
Children and Youth programming. A wide 
ringe of programs were funded; for example. 
th .. organiz.otion of • ~fP..wide peer leader­
ship program on drug and alcohol prevention 
at the middle school level similar to the SADD 
program,. a program fnr children and siblings 
of adolescents and adults in residential treat­
ment for substance abuse to prevent further 
.ub,,:ance abuS(>. and a ~.omprrhenslve school 
district substance abuse prevention program 
In the Waterford School District. 

• I he Community Foundatlull (UI Southeastern 
Michigan initiated a sub5tance abuse preven­
tion program by sponsoring a Think Tank for 
Actlon on Substan~1: Abuse Prevention in 
Southeastern Michigan to develop a range 
01 strategies for prevention in the region. Its 
findings have bt:t:" lJublished In " resource 
manuai for prevention and the proceedings 
oj a regional confercnc:e also has been pub­
lished.ln 1990 aml 1991, the Community 
Foundation made 5413.500 In grants as part of 
an effort to encourage nonprofit organiZations 
and local ~.,vemment Il!!encics to "ns.s. in 
long-term. comprehensive approaches to sub­
stance abuse prevention. Awards ranged from 
$25.000 to $SO.OOO for u .. owr one let 1!l!reE' 
ye1!rs. 

104 

Other Detroit area service agencies, such as the 
Junior League, the Michigan Council 01 the Arts. 
the Detroit Council oi the Arts. the Black United 
Fund. and the city of Detroit's Nei~hborhood 
Opportunity Fund provide small grants to local 
community groups. Examples of coordination 
.mons communl/Y group. within town.hip' or 
cities as well as coordinatil)n across neighboring 
jurisdictions also exist in some sections of the 
mlMJ'lJUliLiin area. 

= 
Research and Evaluation 
Thu~ far In Michigan or n1itlonally. few resourcr 

have been devoted to evaluating community pre­
vention programs SUch as the ones that have beer 
implemenled throushout tho Dvtroit mvtropolitar 
area. Instead. the majority of research has focus", 
on discrete media campaigns lIgainS! smoking or 
driving while alcohol.lmpai...u. 

Although rigorous evaluations wher!! original 
data Is collect~ can be ""pen,i"e. m"mbers of II 
Detroit community could work to d;;"ejop Inter­
mediate lonns of evaluation Using existing data 
such as th~1.: used In the RAND study. For ""am 
pJe. local organizations could be assisted to use 
crime reports or DAWN emergency room report 
to monitor progress and trends In (' lelr respectlv( 
areas. Partnerships could be lonned between thE 
lOCal coordinating agencies and local unlversitie 
and rescarch Institutes. OSAS and university-bas 
researchero would be able to advise funders and 
Implemel,tlng nrganizations on WilYS to increase 
the usefulness of such evaluations. Coordinating 
agency 5taff could monllor evaluations of prever 
tlon programs being ccnciuctiod n:ationwld .. and 
communicsUi the results for use in local policy 
and planning. 

Since research on prevention and intcrventlor 
programs can be shared beyond the confines 01 
on .. community. th ... loglcal sources for suPPort· 
evaluations are state and federal agencies. 

• 

• 



• 

If prtM!nt/on is to be given new emp"'asl& within 
drug programs and policy, a good deal of advocacy 
ior prevellliQ,' will u.. leQui .. ed. Some of the ~.".. 
munity organil:ations now active in prevention 
have a solid base and could SC!Ml u models and 
even scurce50ttechnlcal usistancefor new neigh. 
borhood efforts, while ethers appear more fragile. 
Yet. the strength of those that are successful is 
based on the fact that they are locally conceived 
and managed, ~nd have the broad-based support 
of m.ny groupo; in their cnmmunit". The institu­
tions cn.;,:;ting networks and spreading Information 
about local activities are likely to be Important in 
!u,u,ininl!) c:cmmunity interest in prevention in the 
coming years. A crucial test will come for these el­
ions in the next few years, as the sense of urgency 
~urrcunding the cocaine epidemic diminishes. 

W4PHEU 
Recolll mendati ons: 

• In orderiorthe eoordinatin~ agencies to 
exercise a real role in assisting prevention 
programs, creating networks, and rnoniioring 
activities. each needs at least one full-time 
professional to work specifically on preven-
tion programs. . 

• Dlveroity cmong prevention proj&ets and 
1~;tI experimentation should be encouraged 
becaLi~ !h!!re is no single prc-Jlm mocJ.~1 for 
how to pre..,.,! drllg abuse in tho community. 
Furthermore. substanel! aQuse is a complex. 
community problem that only c~n be solved 
through a coordinated, community eff!;>rt. 

• Organizationswlth a track record ofworking 
successfully on soclallssue5 in the target 
neighborhoods and that have lo;cal Sl!ppo~ 
and involvement should be asSIsted III thell 
efforts to provide community-based prevention 
programs. Funders should look forsuc.:essful 
organil:ations, rather than successful models. 

• FedP.ral C"ahlgnri("~1 proilrams (drugs in public 
housing. treatment improvement. community 
partnerships) constitute a vital source of tu.n.d. 
ing needed to implement prevention ac:t1Vllles 
on a broader scale. Yet. the inferior quality of 
grant proposals coming out of the Detroit area 
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has hurt the ability of the region to compele 
succe!siully for these grants. Beth public ilnd 
priv~te asandes should mak~ a srGat.r effort 
10 coordinate efforts and ~nliSI the aid of local 
universities In preparing timely and responsive 
propo.als. 

• The recent growth of inten'Sl by private 
funders in the drug prevent;on field should be 
treated u a way to stimulate experimentation, 
not as a substitute for already scarce public 
funding. It is unlikely thai foundation and 
charitable funding for substance abuse pre­
v~ntion will reach anywhere near the levels of 
school district and coordinating agency fund­
Ing. The truly private funding SOU=5 hay!! tu 
be regarded as catalysts for experimentation 
with nev.' approaches and a useiulsupplement 
to, rather than substlWIe lor, public expendllur~ •. 

• Mini-grant programs are a particularly U5e­
ful forrn for providinll funds to community 
groups since proposal and reporting ;equire­
ments impo5ed on the recipients can be kept 
minimal. 

$ Technical assistance to grassroots organiza­
tions should be made available by both public 
~B~nci ... and la'll- private onaoto help sust.in 
such groups without damaging the sense of 
local response to shared problems that got 
themsllIrted. 

• Public and private sector organizations should 
seek to develop networks among themselves 
to iOSter the development of Im"1l~tt!d 
approaches to substance abuse prevention. 
These networks ought to Involve both the for 
profit and nonprofit seClors as Wl:1I11~ ~tIt<k 
to bl,llld coalition. across city and county 
jurisdictions. 

~ There is a need for funding agencies to help 
stimula!e and shape proposals and create net­
works of I\nlnlees, rather than jilSt choose from 
proposals already "on the shelf.· 

• There should be Increaied !!fforts mad@to 
ev31uaw community-basad p'll'",ntion pro­
grams in order to prOVide suppor{ fur those 
programs that are both sustainable and effec­
Ilv ... In Detroit, such rp.<p~rr.h could involv€ . 
partnerships between coordinating agencies 
and local universities or research Institutes . 



• Social5ervice agencie5. particularly those that 
work with hish-risk ~uth. C~h pl"y ~n impur­
tant role in substance abuse prevention. These 
agencies are e5peclally suited for e~rly inter. 
vention with young childre" ~nd ~QCondary 

Treatment Systems 
The cocaine epidemic has put a great strain on 

treatment programs In the Detroit area. requiring 
them to adapt to a new influx of cocaine users who 
ar .. younger ~nri often have different treatment 
needs than the alcohol and heroin users who. until 
recently. comprised the majority of clients. Even if 
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prevention programs for troubled teenagers • 
the types of ~rograms that are not Incorpo­
rated into. or only weakly connected to. 
the school-based programs that dominate 

. th .. prevention lillid. 

cocaine use levels off In the next few years. the d 
mand for publicly financed drug trCGlIl1~IIL is lik. 
to grow for some time. There is still much uncer­
tainty about the course of cocaine dependence. 
particularly about what will happen 10 the many 
who began using it In the form of crack. 

Table 7 
Admissions to Publicly Funded Substance Abuse Treatment Programs, 
by Primary Drug of ~UStl, 1966 and 1989 

i'rimarydrugofabuse 1986 1989 

AICt'hol 1 b.b~:t 12,71l7 
Opiates 3,64& - 2,625 
Cocaine 3.393 6,8&4 

("Crack") (0) (J,-45-4) 
Other drugs 3,459 3,230 
lOTAL 27,350 27,506 

Sou,,,,,: OSAS t.bulaticra 

Table 8 
Ucensed Drug Treatment Programs, 1990 

Coordinating Agency: 
City of Detroit· 
SEMSAS (rest of Wayne County, 

Monroe) 
Macomb 
O.kland 
10TAL 

State funded 
38 

24 
12 
16 
90 

No state funding 
28 

sa 
32 
64 

162 

10TAL 

66 

82 
44 
so 

272 
N<lte: Does noc Include progr;m. providing p",,,entlon and education. or sc"",nlng and ouc>smtnt services only. 
Sou"",; OSAS "MIe:hi5an', Sub.!."c. Abu .. Servi,:. Dell""" N_: DIfOClDry ur P":'ijr&m'," A.,If 1990. 
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Table 9 
State Funding for Drllg and Alcohol Treatment and Prevention Programs, fiscal Year 1989 

thousands of dollar. 

Detroit 
SEMSAS 
Oakland 
Macomb 
TOTAL 

Soureo: OSA$ 

f'reYention 

2,112 
391 
704 
256 

3.463 
<18.8%) 

1l'eatment TOTAL 

&.859 8.972 
4.408 4,799 
1.700 2.404 
1.942 2.199 

14.909 18.374 
(81.2%) (100%) 

Average (or rest of state: 

pe' ..... idenl 
$10.40 
S 4.40 
$ 2.70 
5 3.60 

$ &.30 

Table 10 
Licensed Drug Treatment Programs, By T}'Pe of Facility, 1990 

Coordinating Agency: Inpatient or Residential outpatlem MethauufI" maintenance 
City of Detroit 23 3& 7 
SEMSAS (rust of 

'Wayne County. 
• Monroe) 15 66 1 
Marllmb 9 34 1 
Oakland 15 65 0 
lOrAL 62 201 9 

Note: Most raidentiAI and ~one program, aro Ii~~ fnt nutn;alipnr Mtrvices as well. 
Source: OSAS "Michigan', Subs~nceAb_ Service Delivery Networlc: Dlre<:1ol)' 01 Programs.' April 19SO. 

More than 270 programs in the Detroit metro­
politan area are licensed by OSAS to provide drug 
tre~tment. Only one-third of th ... e re<:pive ,;tale 
funding. Those that receive some stile funding 
often rely heavily on other funding sources as well. 
Private programs ~bounU III lite ,uburb~, especially 
In Oakland County. In contrast. most programs in 
the city of Detroit are publicly supported. 

More than 200 of the licensed programs in 
the region provide services only on an outpatient 
l>asis. Sixty-two prosrems, tither chemical depun­
dency units of hospitals or fref1-standing facilities, 
provide residential treatment; most of these are 
licensed to provide otnpatlem _vices ., well. 

Nine programs. most of which are in the City, are 
licensed as methadone maintenance clinics for 
opiate addicts. 

The number of admissions funded by the Detroit 
area coordinating agencies has been fairly constant 
at around 27,000 per year during the late 19605. 
The city of Detroit accounted for 40 percent of the 
total number of publicly funded treatmer:l admis­
sions. Of the four coordinating agencies In the 
Detroit metropolitan area, only Oakland County 
had ~ signifir.anl growth in the number of admis­
sions irom 1966 through 1989. 
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• While the number of admissions during the 
I~ 1'lllOs was stable. there were striking 
changes in which drugs were listed as die pri. 
mary drug of abuse at the time of admission. 
Althcuih alcohol still accounts for the largest 
number of admi55ions. it fell from 62 percent 
of all ildmissions in 1986 to 4& percent of all 
admissions in 1989. In contrast. the number of 
admi55ions for which coc:aine was listed as the 
primary drug of abuse more than doubled. 
from 12 percent of all admissions in 1986 to 
33 percent In 1989. 

o Those reporting alcohol or opiates as their 
primary drug tended to be older th~n th~ .. 
reporting cocaine as primary. in 1989. the av­
erage age foralcohol admissions was 33. with 
31'> for opiate:; olI1d 29 for co<:aine or cr.rk. 

• In 1986. thgse reporting cocaine crcrack as 
their primary drug were less likely 10 have h 
previous treatment tllJi~es thilO them rcpt 
Ing alcohol or other drugs. By 1989. this 
difference had disappeared; half of those at 
/Tlltted with cocaln~ '" the primAry d,ug of 
.abuse had been in treatment before. 

Since the number I'lf admissions is constant. II 
is possible that the increasing number of person 
treated in public programs for cocaine depende 
dlsplac"u uther pCr30n. whg needed treotment 
alcohol or heroin dependence. However. the pc 
ulation in need of treatment cannot be neatly 
classified into groups dependent on slnlllo:: drug 
Clinicians in Detroit. as elsewhere. report that 
most of their clients have significant problems 
with several illegal drugs as well as alcohol. 

1able 11 
Admissions to Publicly Funded Substance Abuse Treatment Programs, l!1Ht;.1989 • 

---C-I-tY-m~D-~-ro-it-------------------l1~2~~0~23---- ---~I~~~~~~~B-----------------
SEMSAS 6,7&7 6.893 
O.kl.1nd 4.892 _ 5.931 
Micomb 3.668 3.654 
TOTAL 27.350 27.506 

Sourer: OSll~ IobIII.tlcn5 

Table 12 
Prior Treatment experience of Those Admitted to Publicly Funded Substance Abuse 
1l'eatment Program,. By PrimOlry Drug, 1986 and 1989 

. Primary drug 01 abuse: 
Alcohol 
Opiates 
Coc~lr", 
Other drugs 
TOTAL 

Source: 0SA:i tobulatlons 

Percentage of admittees with one or IOOre prior treatment episodes: 
196G 19BP 
53% 50% 
70% 69% 
37% 50% 
25% 28% 
50% 49% 

'~ 

• 

• 
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Access to Treatment Programs 
In the Oetroit ~re~ :IS In othQr parts of the nation. 

access to substance abuse treatment programs 
largely depends upon who is paying - private In­
surers orme sta~. PufJlh.Jy .ubsldized treatment 
programs in the Detroit metropolitan area report 
that they have many more applicants than there are 
aval!.ble spaces, with the problem especially acute 
in the city of Detroit. Many people seeking treat­
ment at programs funded by the dty's Bureau of 
Substance Abuse Servic:es are being turned away. 
However. those individuals who haw private Insur­
~nc. C"""r38~ usu~lIy are ablp. In find a program 
that will take them without much delay. 

Although there is a need for more drug treatment 
In the Detroit metropolitan area. the first priority of 
the public system in the next few years should be 
to.lm~ In., effectiveness of existing services 
and to expand services to spedal and underservecl 
popuiations. rather than to simply expand uni­
(Qrmly. Beth the city Md the :;tate i.1cQ fiscal crl_ 
that are among the worst in the nation; this adds to 
the Importance of improving the effectiveness with 
which resources are used In the public .y>lI!lll. 

Programs for Women 
In Detroit. .. In oth .... big cities. thf!1e is a short­

age of appropriate treatment slots for women. Most 
of the well established drug treatment programs are 
either for ITH!Il unly ur th~y haveiew or none of the 
ancillaty services that are considered necessary to 
keep women in treatment long enough for toem to 
benefit. There is iI particular shortage at treatment 
slots where pregnant women can receive prenatal 
care a5 well u child care for their older children at 
the saine time as counselling for drug abuse and . 
other problems. Lack of child care often Is reported 
10 be ~n obitlcfS! to ynun!! womens' participation 
in substance abuse treatment. Providing these an­
clllilfY services is not just a irill In programs for 
poor women; they are neceSS3ry if worrutn are In 

109 

keep coming often and long enough for treatment 
to help. 

• According to a recent study conducted by 
Mirhi8"n ~tal_ I Jnivp.,..Ity. the women enter­
Ing drug treatment programs repolled more 
sever" medical, family. and psychological 
problems than their male counterparts. 

• Women who use drugs and alcohol heavily 
often are involved in abusive relationships 
with men as well. or are economicolly 
dependent on men who oppose the womens' 
efforts at recovery. Thus. they may have either 
long-term or emergency houslns n~. thot 
are more pressing than those of men with 
similar drug problems. 

The city of Detroit has one program that often is 
cited as a national model for integrated medical 
and 5ubsI<1nce abuse trqatml!nt of preanant addicts. 
The Eleanore Hutzel Recovery Center hu in ad­
junct dayeare center where children of the clients 
,eeeive not Just babysitting. but speci,,' educ3!lon. 
However. waltfnglfsts for the program are long and 
the demand for more such programs Is pressing. 

Since 1988, the federal block grants have 
included a requirement that stales set aside at least 
10 percent 01 their total aWQrd to provid .. t",atmenl 
and prevention services to women. OSAS and 
Detroit area coordinating agencies are planning 
to Implement that requirement by oJ"veloplng (Qur 
new programs that will provide services to women. 
including pregnant women. 

M e e 
Matching Clie~ts to Treatment 

Because clients have diverse needs and ~ause 
no single treatment protOCol haS)'l'l "merged to 
dominate the field. it is important to have a tange 
of treatment options ~vallable in the area. The 
challenge to treatment agencies is to develop ways 
to assess clients' needs. assign clients to the rlsht 
level of treatment. and follow up to make sure that 
they do not simply disappear. . 

Drug treatment programs are under pressure to 
Improve and munllo, Ih"ir dfectlvene.,. Thl~ c:.1n 



1§Mt¥@¥!i 
Financing for Treatment 

In the Detroit area as in the rest of the nation, 
most substance abuse treatment is financed either 
by govemment, private insurance, or user files. 
Th. growth in funding (or Irea_nt prosrams has 
come primarily from federal government sources; 
federal grants to Michigan more than doubled dur­
Ing the period from 190& to 1989, ..... hlle =e "nd 
local expenditures remained constant. 

• In fiscal year 1989, OSAS provided abou: 
15 million dollars (evenly split between fed· 
eral and state govemment appropriations) to 
thG four Detroit area coordinating agencies to 
fin-ance drug and alcohol treatment. City and 
county funds added about another million to 
thi5 total. Since the OSAS formula for allocat­
Ing funds to coordinating agencies IS partly 
based on the number of persons in families 
below the federal poverty threshold, t~e ci~ 
of Detroit receives more on a per capita basLS 
than the other jurisdictions in the area -
more than twice as much as the rest of Wayne 
County and Mac;om~ County. 

It In fiscal yearS 198~ and 1990. an additional 
$140 millien in c:ampetlti"" 8r~nts was aprm­
prlated by the federal government to treatment 
programs in large cities. Although Detroit re­
C1IiVlKl ~ sh~ra o( thl. man.y, thesP. grnn~ h~rl 
limItEd Impact because they provided only 
one year of funding; programs could not 
hire ~dditional full-time staff on the basis of a 
short-term, potentially renewable grant. The 
two Detroit grants were not renewed In fiscal 
YQar1990-1991. 

Most private financing for treatment is provided 
by health Insurance reimbursement which g~er. 
~lIy is provided as a benefit of employment, With 
employers or unions paying part or all of the pre­
miums. Besides traditional inrl~mnity insurance. 
health maintenance OIllanizations (HMOs) provide 
care to many individuals in the Detroit area. 

According to some oi the coordinating agency 
officials and health care providers Interviewed, the 
~ of health insurance cost containment effom 
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i1l Detroit can be felt by programs that provide 
treatment to poor and lower middle class clients. 
Reimbursement rates for imured clients are no 
longer high enough to cover some of the shared 
costs that allow lower fees to be charged for those 
clients who lack Insurance. 

11,': Slat\!< ol Mi(.hi~.II, uncler Its Medicaid 
program, has covered inpatient substance abuse 
treatment in hospitals and institutions for the men· 
tally disabled; however, coverage for sub-acute 
services has been eliminated. In Mlchlga.'1, Medi· 
cald currently reimburses intensive outpatient 
treatment for substance abuse involving three or 
more hours per day for up to 40 days: outpatient 
trp.atmp.nl ~nMi~ting of 45. nnP.ohour visits for any 
combination of one-on·one and group sessions: 
methadone maintenance and counselling: and 
medic:al treatment (or dcto)(iilClltion under 
life-threatening conditions. 

In addition. an increasing proportion of those 
now seeking tr~atment for cocaine dependence 
have had prior episodes of treatment. this suggests 
thot in the next fe ..... yeQrs it i~ likely that an Inertias. 
ing number of those who became dependent on 
cocaine will be exhaustlngllietime limits placed 
on substanc" abu~" cowr"!!" III h .... I~,I .. loUl'ance 
policies. Many other workers and their families 
lack health Insurance entirely. 

The proclems of the public and prlVilIe sectors . 
are linked .:... as the economic recession contlnues, 
hlSh unemployment and inc:reasins premiums arc 
likely to leave more people uninsured Dr under­
Insured. Current efforts to control costs In both 
sectors by limiting benefits, more careful screen. 
ing, and referral to less expensive forms of treatment 
run the risk of Indiscriminate unclertreatment. At 
the same time, these measures are IlkelV to result 
in greater pressure on the public: trotment system, 
which serves as the third·party funder of last resort. 

Foundations ~nd other private (unders hive pro­
vided only minimal support (or treatment programs. 
Many at the reforms for WhiCh this report calls 
(e.g., targeting services to neglected populations, 
improving .,sesament and treatment matching) 

• 

• 
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be accomplished by Improving screening In order 
I(! beu.:r ", .. teh the need. of clicnu to Y:lriouc treat. 
ment programs. 

• A study a.t Michigan Slate University is explor. 
Ing the potential for better matching using the 
Addil:tions Severity Index to examine differ· 
ent!!S among client and program types in 
treatment outcomes for a large sample of 
Michigan programs. This study may provide 
guidanCE for large-scale Implementation of 
matching schemes throughout LJetrolt area 
coordinating agencies. 

• SEMSAS has adol'h':d new methods of assess. 
. ins clients' needs and making referrals to kx.al 

programs under "purchase of setVlce" agree­
ments. These ch~nges might mak" it eailer for 
coordinating agencies to function fortileir cli. 
ents as the equivalents of emplO)W assistance 
plans in th .. priv:tte sector. It would be worth· 
while to evaluate the implication, of this 
method for the coordinilting agencies, treat· 
menl. provider;. ~nd the clients themselves. 
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Methods of ilccurate asseasment that predict 
which treatment setting is most effective for a given 
patient must be developed ,and a reswch base 
must be est,ablished in order to ImpJWe the pro­
cis, of matching clients to treatment. There is a 
need for 10ngi.lUdlnal outcome slUdies to evaluate 
the various tnlatmenl models that currently are in 
use; 0 better ,articulated research ~ could I .. ~d 
to the development of Innovative tnlatment models. 

0"", means of improving treatment services. that 
of intensifyil,'8 resources per client admitted to drug 
treiltment. a.lready may have been Implemen~ In 
the area. D •• rinS the puriod from 1<18& to 1989. 
spending on treatment rose 14 percerrt in real 
terms. so spending per admission has Increased. 
However. If the ef( .... tlvenes.!l of the treotment 
5ystem is to be improved. 8~ier efforts will be 
r.eeded to monitor tnlatment outcome'l. --Case Management 

The majority of those who seek treatment do 50 
under some typ" of c:oen;ion, whether aenerated 

by the Criminal justice system. employers, orfami 
and friends. 

• In the SEMSAS jurisdiction, Oakland, and 
Macomb countil!5, more than half of tIM! cli· 
ent! admitted to 'ta~(unded progtllms ~"! 
Involved $omehow with the criminal justice 
system at the time oftheir admission. In the 
city of Dctroit, the corr8lponcjinS proportion 
is about a quarter of admissions. 

There is a need for better coordination betwee! 
Detroit area public treatment agencies and the 
criminal justice system as well as better tracking. 
tho~ refarr.d to tr .. .atment programs. One problE 
with the current process il that It is difficult to tra. 
referrals - to make sure that thOi! who .are told. 
d judge or probDlion officers t:> _k tr(latment at: 
tually do 50. This will require investing more of 
coordli'ating agency resources for initial assea5-
ment a.,tj case managl.lml!nt. 

There also Is a need for ccordinatlon between 
~ial service Gsenclas and th ... drUB treatm~nl sy 
tem, including training social service agency star 
In assessmel'1l. Many of the clients of social servic 
agencies have sub~liIcn:e abuse problem. them. 
selves. or are affected by the 5ubSlince ablJse of 
other family members. 

Increasing Treatmenl Options 
Intermediate treatment alternati\'P.$ between 

completlll no:.idenlial care and low· intensity 
outpatient treatment also. are in short supply 
throughout the Detroit mfltropoiltan region. 
"D,ay/nlght treatment" programs ,and halfw.ly 
houses have appeared in the Detroit area partiy 
in respOnse to expanded coverage prcvlilons In 
the last round of benefit negotiations for the auto 
workers. One of the weakest links In the contino 
uum of care r.malns the lack of halfway houses, 
particularly those that can accommodate womer 
and children. Problems have Included where to 
locate ~uch program, and hnw 10 fund them: haf 
way hOUleS for drug abusers ire not typically 
welcomed by neighborhoods. 



112 

Office of the Mayor 
City of Seattle 
NOfl1tilll H. l1ico. Mayor 

Statemcnt by Seattlc Mayor Norm Rice 
Hearing before the House Select Conllllitl(',e 

on Narcotics Abuse and Control 

June 30, 1992 

Chairman Rangel, distinguished members of the Committee. I want to thank 
you for giving us this opportunity to speak with you about the needs of American cities 
-. and in particular how the federal government call assist local govcrnrnent in ridding 
our communities of the scourge of drugs and drug·relatc.d violence. 

j am sorry to say that, as Mayors, we have no easy answers for you -- drugs 
and drug-related violence remain a source of significant concern in Seat!le, and a 
~ource of shame to us &1, as a nation. 

These issues have taken on a new urgcncy, given the events of the past two months. 
1 think everyone in this na.tion was stunned by that Simi Vlllley verdict. That verdict r. and 
the outrage and violence that followed _. sent II powerful message that our nation _r all of 
us -. still have a lot of work to do when It comes to race and fairness and e.conomic 
opportunity. 

nut some people in this nation don't appear to have gotlen that message, Why did 
it take Congress and the White House almost tWQ months to llRSS an urban aid package? 
And why. after two months, did Congress and the White House pass a package that was so 
small aI1d so limited that it would be an insult _r if it were not foJ' the reduced eXllectations 
created by the pastlwelve years of federal Indifference to cities" 

Afler the worst rioling in decades, nfter dozens of lives senselessly lost, 1 think a lot 
of people are beginning to wonder "what dn~s it lake to get some action out of the federal 
government?" 

In my mind, the LA vCl'dict represents a rare moment in the life of this natiOll. 
How we Interpret that verdict and the violence (hat followed -- how we rcsJ)Ond to these 
overwhelming events -- will determine the course of our nation for decades (0 come. 

11' 8 as (hough after 20 years of groping in the darltrle~s, someone finally lit a 
candle and gave our entire nation a fleeting chance to sec where we arc going, and 
to set a new directiotl. 

The light from that candle may l10tlast for long. Already, we are seeing the 
pressure, for change begin to fade as the evcnts in l.QS Angeles grow more distant. 

An I:!qua! omploymont opporhmily • ll1h"II\I\I\.'U I-IthOl\ (1I11p!O}'(:' 

':;(Il) MVlliuipul Oullding. lin(i f-o~trtll AW'IOun, $N\IIO. WUHhinr,lntt001U-1·1U/J. (fAX) (,(14 b:iUV (200) r,H4 4000 
'f'rillrl!lIClllllr'')'(I~II'''wt'' 
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We can't afford to squander this opportunity. This kind of opportunity does not 
come very ofleil. We've gollO respond, both at the national level and at the local 
level. 

2 

Do not imagine that the violence, looting and deslruction in Los Angeles and in 
other cities were caused solely by that infamous Simi Valley verdict.. That verdict wasjus\ 
the spark that touched off a powderkeg that has been building in our nation for years. 

The violence we saw in Los Angeles and other citie~ was reatly about two things: 
fairness ane! economic opportunity. These are also lssues whIch lie althe root of our 
nation's drug crisis and the violence that follow drugs -- not just in the inner city, but in 
suburbs and rural communities, as well. 

There is a growing feeling all across this nation, and especially among young 
people and people of color. that the system is staoked against them -- that they will never 
gel a fair shake from our legal system or our system of government. 

At the same time, there is a growing sense that the doors to economic opportunity 
have been slammed shut on far too many Americans. Once again, this frustration and 
anger is particularly intense among young people and people of color. 

Anyone who thinks thaI law enforcement alone can win the so-called "War on 
Drugs" just isn't living in the real world. Yes, we need tough law enforcement, but we 
also need to address the poverty, joblessness, and despair that provide ferLlle ground for 
drugs and violence to take root. 

And anyone who thinks that l(leal communities can handle this problem on their 
own, is also kid9ing themselves. Drugs are a national problem, and we need a more 
comprehensive national strategy that addresses the real rools of our nation's drug crisis. 

!t's not enough for nationallcaders to (ell our kids "Just say no." It's not 
enough for Congress to simply call for tougher law enforcement and stiffer jail 
sentences. 

One of the biggest failures of our national governmenl over the last. decade has 
boon the failure to address both sides of the drug issue, with clear analysis and wJth feal 
dollars . 

Too often, the federal government has taken the easy way out, by defining the 
drug problem in terms of cops and robbers, by declaring a "War on Drugs," by acting 
as though law enforcement alone could solve the problem. 

By looking at drugs in a one-dimensional way, by ignorIng the root causes of 
poverLy and despair, by falling to il.Vest In education, Ilouslng, and health care -- the 
federal government has actually contributed to the drug problem that now grips our 
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nation. 

I am hopeful that the testimony you are hearing here today will help to turn 
those policies around, and give our nation a more effective "battle plan" in the "war on 
drugs." 

Yes, we need tough drug interdiction and law enforcement at both the federal 
and the local level. But we also need to invest in our nation's human capital, to 
address the rool causes of our drug epidemic. Unless we do both, We are doomed to 
failure. 

And as we work to build more effective policies and programs, we must work 
together in partnership -- a partnership between local government and the community, 
and a partnership among the various levels of government. We can take back our 
neighborhoods and provide a better future for O\lr children, but only if we work 
together. 

Having said that, 1 would like to turn my ailen(iun to two specIfic programs or 
proposals, which hnv(l beell advl\nced by the federal government as ways to combat 
drugs and violellCC and address the needs of urhl\ll cltie~ •• ul'ban enterprise zones and 
the so-called "Weed and Seed" program. 

Urban Enterprise Zones 

I understand the Administration's arguments in favor of enterprise zones as a 
way to assist distressed areas, but J am concerned that enterprIse zones, by thelilselvcs, 
are not the answer. 

Current enterprlse zone proposals will nol reach eno\lgh cities. Enterprise zones 
would 1I0t do anything for existing businesses that are already in dIstressed arens, 
providing jobs and economic activity. In addition, the incentives they would Ilt'Ovidc 
would Illost likely not be sl1ffieientlo address the needs of ~mall businesses. In 
addition, unless there are safeguards built into the progrrlTll, enterprise 7.ones could 
Simply shifljobs and economic opport\lnitics from adjacenlneighborhoods, rather than 
create new jolls and opportunities. 

Enterprlse zones could be a \!Seful tool, however, jf they were expanded to 
address the needs of all cities, Rnd if they were a component of a truly comprehensive 
urban aid package. Simply providing tax incentives for new businesses to locate in 
depressed neighborhoods will accomplish little, unless we also invest in illlllroving the 
public infrastructure and developing the job skilIs of the people in those areas. 

In particular, 1 believe any effort to create enterprise zones must also be 
combinc;o.d wilh a comprehensive infrastructure funding bill. rounding infrastructure 
improvements wlll accollll,lish two critical goals .- (1) providing decent jobs for 
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residents of distressed communities and (2) upgrading the roads, sewers, sidewalkS, 
hridges and other economic infrastructure (hat can attract positive development and 
enable a community to become sliccessful for the long-term. 

tlwc.cd and Seed" 

Despite its offensivt: and dehumanb.ing name, 1 believe this program has the 
potentlal to make a significant impact in the years ahead by increaSing community 
development and combatting drugs and violence. 

The concept behind this program •• the need to combine law enforcement with 
social services and other preventive nlC'.asure.s to reclaim our neighborhoods, to 
strengthen and enhance the redevelopment process of our distressed urban areas •• is 
one thallocal governments have been implementing for years, and one that Is long 
overdue from the federal government, And it is onc thaI is vital to the s\ll'vival of o\lr 
urban areas, for without healthy neighborhoods, without strong and vibrant 
communities •• safe from crime lind drugs •• the heart and soul of our c!ti(~s is in dire 
Jeopardy, 

As Mayor of one of the cities that has qualified for demonstration funding this 
year, 1 would like to share my thoughts about thi5 program. 

First, Congress and the Administrati()n must take whatever steps are necessary 
to eliminate any dOUbt about who is actually in charge of this program at the local 
level. 

There exists thro\lghoul most urban cities a real fc.1r and mistrust of federal law 
enforcement. Despite the facl that Seattle's grant proposal clearly does not in any way 
expand federal authorJty, many groups and individuals havc expressed concern that 
acceptance of this grant would result in "fl'.deral troops," or "marLinl ll\w" in the 
affected area, 

And this misconception is nollimiteci to Seattle, alone. My conversations with 
other Mayors Indicates that local residcnts in many communities aTC mistakenly 
conccmed that the so·called "Weed and Seed" program will give federalal.lthorities 
new powers to harass or even arrest innoc.cnt members of the community. 

My understanding of the grant process and mcetings with a wide variety of 
federal officials have clearly indicated Ihat this grant would in no way expand federal 
authority or result in violations of the civil rights of my constituents. Hit did, I would 
not be pursuing this program, Dut given the widesprLlad misconceplions and fears, 1 
believe Congress Rnd (he Administration should take explicit action to confirm this 
point and directly aUay any fears local residents may have about unwarrant".(\ federal 
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intrusion into their lives. 

As the Commillee and the Congress move forward with this lnidative, I would 
urge you (0 put specific language into the law, clarifying that the federal role is limited 
to that of a grantor of funds, and that all day-to-day policy decisions and 
implementation will be controlled by local authorities, 

Second, the social programs allowed under the so-called "Weed and Seed" 
initiative mus~ be expanded to allow maximum flexibility for local govcrnments to 
address the indivldulIl needs of their local communities. 

Il's not enough to simply focus on rehabilitation of people already in our 
criminal justice system; we must also have the flexiblllty to provide preventive services 
that keep our citizcns -- especially ollr young people .- from ever funlling afoul of our 
criminal justice system in the first place, 

The highest priority in one community may flOt be the highest priority in 
another, What works in Seattle may not work in Chicago, or some other city with 
different needs IIlid different existing progra.ms, 

If the dollars como to local communities wllh all kinds of red tllpe about which 
scrvice.s can or cannot be funded, or which grO\1ps can or cannol be served, then this 
})l'Ogram will not be effect.ive. 

Congress needs to make lhe dollars available for local government, establish 
hrond performance standards and rcporting requirements, then gel out of the way, 

Already, in Se.'\ttle, we are seeing how all the strings altached to the 
demollstrntion program dollars are \1Odermlning the public acceptance nnd the 
effectiveness of an olherwise worthwhile program, 

As the Committee knows, funding for this year's demonstration program Comes 
from essentially two funding sources within the Departmcnt of Justice, When we 
applied for this grant, we proposed II carefully-balanced package of counseling, health, 
recreatioll, and other social services that would help address the mosl pressing needs of 
lIllr youth in the specified area, Then, weeks after our proposal was accepted by 11le 
Department, we receiVed word that perhaps some of the programs we proposed would 
nol flllhc technical criteria of these two funding sources, Later, we were told that 
perhaps these programs cO\lld fit the technical criteria, but only if services were limited 
to individuals who were referw.l in some way by the criminal justice system. 

The shifting sands of what programs lind which individuals were eligible for 
federal funds only exaccrhated the mistrust of some community mcmhers, Evcn more 
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important, it raised fundamental questions about the effectiveness of the program. If 
social programs funded through the so-called "Weed and Seed" initiative are only 
available to pooplo who have already come through the criminal justice system, thal is 
hardly my definitloll of prevention! 

I rccogllize that under the current plan, social service dollars for 1993 or beyond 
would come from a broader array of sources, but the problem remains. What If It city 
determines thaI its most pressing need is for a community-based hcalth clinic, but only 
a fraction of the money it is receiving is ilealth-related? 

I would strongly urge the Committee to remove any undue restrictions and red 
t"pe from the social service dollars provided under the so-called "Weed and Seed" 
program, so that local officials can have the flexibility we need to address the rcnl 
challenges In Ollr communities. 

Third, in the years ahead, the so-called "Weed and Seed" must he funded 
through new money, not simply by reprogramming existing dollars that already go to 
support important \Irban initiatives. 

if Congress and the Administration simply move dollars around and do not 
provide new resources for this Initiative, cities will continue to compete for these 
dollars -- how could we do otherwise _. but you will have done vil'lually nothing to 
address the real Issues facing our nation. If the so-called "Weed and Seed n initiative iN 
Ilot sustained by new dollars, you will be robbing Peter to pay Paul, creating new 
whlllers and new losers among America's cities, instend of addressing the needs that 
exist throughout this nation. 

Finally, Mr. Chairman, 1 would urge YOll LO change the name of this program. 
The very name "Weed and Seed" sends a very divisive and distorting message ahout 
the true I\a~ure and intent of this program. It seems 10 imply that the federal 
government -- and by implication, any participating Im;al government -- has a very 
narrow-minded view of what's really going on ill our urban communities. We're not 
talking about plants here, Mr. Chairman, we are talking about human beings. 

It all boils down to trust and fear. As Mayors, we understand that the only way 
to eliminate fear is by building the bonds of trust in a comlllunity, not by playing on 
people's fears in a misguided attempt to generate trust. 

When you look at a name like "Weed and Seed," when you look at all the chest­
beating rhetoric 011 public safety that politicians tend to speak these days, it's e.1SY to 
see why communities might harbor some distrust for a federal program, no matter how 
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wcll-Jllfenlioned it might be. 

For many people, especially poople of color, public 'safety often feels like 
something that is done to them, rather than/or them or witll tltclII. 

Now, some people say that we have to choose. Some people say that tnking a 
tough stnnd against crime means you have (0 violate the civil rights of some people in the 
community, especially the civil rights of young people and people of color. 

I rej~t that kind of thinking. I will never subscribe to the view that you have to 
accept a certain level of civil rights abuses, as the natural cost of being tough on crimc. 
We should never choose bctween public safety and human rishts. 

We can do both, and we mus! do both. I would urge Congress to hold r~ogni7.e 
that moral imperative In everything you do, related to public safety. We can have strong 
law enforcement and prot~t the rights of our residents, at the Sallle lime. 

To recap, Mr. Chail'man, there are no easy answers when it. comes to drugs, but 
local communities aro doing a twmbcr of things to tnke back our streets, to make life 
misemblc for the pushers, and to give our young pcople rW alternalives to drugs. 

Our expericnce In Seattle has taught us several things. First, we cannot beat 
this ugly problem with the programs of the past. We need new approaches -- both here 
at the loeallevcl illli! from the federal government. ' 

Second, we cannot solve America's drug problem Ihrough law enforcement 
alono. We need a mOre comprehensive approach that gets at the real root causes of the 
problem •• poverty, educatloll, unemploymont, lack of affordable housing, despair. 

In Seattle, and In r.ities all across this nation, we are atl,lcking both sides of the 
drug problem, with aggressive law enforceme.nt filli! innovative social programs to 
address the needs of our children and families. 

We need that same kind of two-pronged approach from the federal government, 
as well. 

Untillhe federal government makes II real commitment to education, housIng, 
health care, job training and other human investlllents, we will never win the so-called 
war 011 drugs. 

As I said earlier in my testimony, there are no e.?sy answers when it comes Lo 
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drugs and public safety -- or when it comcs to community economic developmenlln 
today's fiscal and economic climate. There are, however, a number of things that local 
governments can do, and have been doing, despite the inaction of the federal 
government. 

I would like to submit for the record a vcry brief summary of some of the most 
promising programs we have underway in Seattle. 11 is my hope that this brief 
descriptive narrative may give memhers of the committee or others who review this 
hearlng in the future some ideas on what local government is doing, and how the 
federal government can support and complement those activities. 

First, with respect to law enforcement, Seattle ha$ taken a number of tough 
actions lhat are making lifQ mlscrnblc: for the tlealers, ami increasing publio safely on 
our strcels and in OUf neighborhoods: 

II< Twice in tbe last four years, Scall1e rcsidellls hnve voted to t",x themselves to 
pay for Ilew anti-crime measures. These voter approved meaSlIl'('.S have 
provided nearly 100 additional police officers, but that's only II small part of thc 
story. Those new dollars have also provided additional prosecutoTs, additional 
court cal)acity and important new programs for at-risk youth, to stCCT our young 
people away from drugs. 

.. The Cily of Scallle has enacled a tough new law against. drug-traffic loitering, 
that gives our police officers a critical new tool to address the changing tactics 
of street dealers, especially dealers of craek cocaine. Already, we can sec Ihat 
the law is working. In the tirst two years alone, the law has resulled in 'over 
120 prosecutions, many of them cases that we could nut have made withoullhis 
new law. A~ ft group, thos~ l20 ~u~pects represent almost 650 prior convictiollA _. not ju~t 
arre$lO', convict/otIS, As II group. those 6UBpcct~ r,'preselll almu8t 200 felony cllnviction~, 
including nrmed rt>hbery, kidnapping, and I\S~BUll wilh intent 10 kill. 'l'hot'R who this law is 
affecting _. career criminols and dnlg denIer!!, not innocent yuung p.,<>plo whu just hal'pen 10 be 
Nlundlo,l! on the comer. 

II< Thanks to the leadership of Xing County l'rosr..cutQr Norm Maleng and Seattle 
Police Chief Patrick Fitzsimons, we implcmente.d a tOllgh "catch-and-hold" 
policy for most drug-related arrests. We have stopped the "revolving door of 
justice," which had previously put drug Slispects back on the streets within 
hours of their arrest. 

II< The City of Seattle has created a specialized "sang squad," dtlsigncd to work 
directly with gangs -- and potential gang members. Our gang squad officers 
work day and night with these young people. They work with them on a pro­
active basis, and they know them as human beings. Our gang squad officers 
make their share of arrests, hut their real value is even grc.ater than that. ny 
working directly with these young people, they cun d(',fuse potentially violellt 
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situations, they can alert our patrol officers when something ls about to "go 
down," and they CM steer kids away from the gangs and into more constructive 
activities. Our gang squad members carry badges and gUllS, but they also carry 
job applications, social service agency referral Information, and the unique 
ability to reach these young people on their own turf and their own terms. 

II< One of the programs I'm most proud of is our Drug Free School Zone effort. 
Thanks to a recent state law, the City can declare drug free zones within 1,000 
feet of any pul>lic or private school. And anyone convicted of a drug-related 
offense within that zone can receive double penalties -- twice the normal fine, 
twice the normal jail term, or both. 

The reason 1 am so proud of our Drug Free School Zone program is that it's 
more than just a sign, it's more than just longer Jail terms. Before that sign 
ever goes up, we have spent months building a community partnership against 
drugs. Teachers, principals, parents, local merchants, neighbors -- everyone 
gets involved. And most important, the students do most of the work 
themselvcs. The students arrange drug frtic assemblies. Thc students gO door 
to door in the neighborhood, creating that bond between community and school. 
The students take the lead ill making their school a place where drugs are not 
wclcome. 

Once again, the program 1s working. Since the progrAlll bellsn, we've collvicll.'lI112 pURhcrB 
fur dealing around our sohool~. Tb~ Average jail s6nlence i& anywher~ frolll fnur and a half )loKr. to 
~even )lellrs. 

And these are just a few of the success stodes in OllT ongoing battIe against 
drugs and violence. Thcre are mRny mOre. Through a combination of a civil 
abatement program, asset sei:ture and forfeiture, and trespassing ordinances we have 
had gratifying success at moving rock houses out of our neighborhoods. 

. We've given drug trafJickers fits wilh ollr new bicycle patrol units, whiell can 
pursue SIISpects in ways that a patrOl car or an officer on foot could never dream of. 

nut even these Jaw enforcement activities are only part of the policing story in 
Seattle. In addition to (he traditional policing approach, in which an ofliCer rcsponds to 
calls, wc are forming community police teams, lhrough which officers work with the 
community to solve problems. 

Thi~ community policing strategy has reaped significant dividends in the City's 
residential neighborhoods -- neighborhoods in which 25 percent of our residents already 
participate in Blockwatch programs. That's three times higher than the national 
ilVerage of 7 pr.rccnt blockwatch participation. 
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We are committed to commlmity policing in the downtown and in commercial 
l\eighhorhoods as weI! •• because we recognize the Importance of a partnership between 
the police and community, I firmly believe that community policing is an idea that 
needs to be spread to every city, in every state, all across this nation. 

As 1 said before, howe.ver, law enforcement is only half the story. 

In Seattle, we know the only way we're going to defeat drugs Rnd violence is by 
combining tough law enforcement wllh solid programs that give young people real hope 
and real opportunity . 

In 1990, at the same time that Seattle residents were voting to tax themselves 
for stronger criminal justice programs, they also voted to tax themselves to pay for a 
comprehensive package of educational, social and recreational programs for ollr YOllllg 

people. 

And despite the early signs of the recession and strong concern over taxes, both 
measures passed by wide margins. That tells me that even in all ami-tax mood, ollr 
nation is willing to invest in the safety of our neighborhollds and the future of our 
children. 

The Families and Education Levy passed by nearly 57 perl' 1 want to tell 
you a little bit about the Levy, because 1 thInk it shows what w n",J to be doing aU 
across this nation. 

The I.evy was based on a simple principle! too many of our children arc 
arriving In school sick, hungry, impoverished or abused. If government can step 
forward and meet the human needs of our families and Our children, then ollr schools 
can fllCl1S on the JOD of teaching our childmn and giving them the tools for success. 

The Families and Education levy will provide $60 million over the next seven 
years, to ensure that every child is safe, healthy and ready to It'.arn. 

What docs the l.evy mean for Seattle's children? 

$2.2 million each year for child care, communlty-ba5ed fHmily resources 
centers and olher programs for early childhood dcve.Jopment 

$2 milJi\)O for community school programs, family support workers, 
counselors, drllp-out prevention programs and olher school-based family 
services 

$2.7 million for comprehensive health care services in our schools, and a 
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variety of spccia1i7.ed health services to meet the needs of at-risk youth 

and $1.6 million for latch-key programs and multi·cultural, community­
based, after schoolactiyities for students of a1lages 
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tn addition, the levy was designed to frcc up about $2.1 mililon each year 
for the school dlstrletto use to provide academic enhancements such as 
expanded library services, arts and music education, classroom materials, Of 

slaff development. 

Even before the passage of the Families and Education Levy., the City of Seattle 
was spending more than $7 million a year on programs and services directed toward at· 
risk youth and their families. 

The Seattle Team for Youth Program, for example. is a collaborative approach 
\0 gang prevention, involv!ng ten community agencies, the Police Department, Seattle'g 
l'arks Department, the County's juvenile justice system, and the schools. The progrl.\')l 
provides referrals to a variety of services, inch:ding outpatient drug and alcohol 
treatment, employment services, educational assistance, and recrt'~\tional progrnms. 

Let me dwell for a moment on that recreational component. A little more than 
two years ago, we Slarted an innovative Late Night. Recreation Program at two 
recreation centers in neighborhoods where our young people didn't have very many 
alternatives to gangs, drugs and violence. The program was an instant ~uccess, so this 
year we doubled the size of the program and extended it city-wide. Today, we are 
seeing literally thousands of young people showing up at Late Night Recreation 
programs every weekend. 

To me, that says, "give these young people a chance. Give the~e young pcojlle 
a choice. lfwe provide an alternative to drugs, our young people will re~llond, just 
like they have here in Seattle. " 

Other parts of the Team for Youth Program look equally promising. Among 
the young people who enJ'olled in outpatient drug and alcohol treatmenl, nearly two­
thirds reported sobriety during the firs! six months of their treatment. }lOI' those who 
~~ the program, a full 100 percent reported sobriety throughout the entire year. 

And we're seeing mMy other positive signs, including a greatel' commitment to 
stay in school, lower rates of absenteeism, alld fewer school-related connicts. Youth 
and probatIon officcrs alike have reported significant decreases in criminal activity 
since involvement in the treatment program began. 

,II Now, so far are numbers are small-- ollr intcnsive programs for youth are still 
relatively new. But the conclusions are unmistakable; mending the social fabric 
around at-risk youth must be a primary element of any attack on drugs and drug-relaloo 
violence. 

It must be a part of the fe.deral government's approach, juslllS it is past of ours. 

So, how effective is all this activity? I cannot tell you that we have beaten the 
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problem, I cannot tell you that drugs and drug-related violence are no longer a 
problem in Seattle. But r can tell you this •• we afe making'an impact, and we are 
strtrtlng to turn the tide, 

One of the best indicators of drug activity is the number of cili~en complaints, 
The number of narcotics complaints rose steadily in the past decade -- mOTe than 
doubling, for example between 1987 and 1989, from 2350 complaints in 1987 to 5,717 
In 1989, But, thanks to some of the efforts I have described and thanks to a lot of hard 
work by our entire community, narcotics complaints actually declined in 1990 al\d 
1991. 

Felony narcotics arrests are also down from the peak years, 

Now, let me state this clearly: despite the progress we are making in OUI" hattlc 
against drugs, those levels are still too high, and neither City government. no)' this 
community are going to rest. until those numbers are much, much lower. 

And nor are we going to let you in the federal government rest, unlillhose 
numbers are much, much lower I 

Bul the numbers i!2 offer some hope that •• at least. in Seattle _. we are 011 (he 
right track and are meeting the problem head-on. 

1 want to thank the Committee for your interest in these issues, and] look 
forward (0 working with you in partnership, to provide a better future for urban 
communities. 
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statement By Honorable Sandra Warshaw Freedman 
Mayor, Tampa, Florida 

Before The 
House Select committee On Narcotics Abuse and control 

Honorable Charles B. Rangel, Chairman 
Tuesday, June 30, 1992 

Thank you Chairman Rangel, Members of the Committee, Ladies and 
Gentlemen, for including me on this panel. I was pleased to see 
that your letter of invitation did not speak to the much 
ballyhooed "war on drugs". Every time I hear that cliche I cringe 
in frustration. This nation is not fighting a war on drugs. 

A nation ~t war uses everything at its disposal. We are not. A 
nation at war deploys its forces based on what they can do best. 
Our strategies have evolyed into a mishlnash of Jurisdictions 
duplicating one another's efforts. A nation at war stops the 
eneny before it gets a hold. In some areas of this land the enemy 
is in contrQl. 

It is time for us to pause and evaluate this war in name only and 
make some changes while we still can. 

A nation at war uses everything at its disposal. We must start 
doing that. Drug rehabilitation and drug treatment on demand 
should be the norm, both for those struggling in the streets and 
others held in the criminal justice system. Daily I hear from 
Tampa Police officers who are frustrated gecause they can't help 
some poor sculs who have accepted the harsh reality of drug 
addiction. They beg the officers to help them find treatment. 
Tney want to be saved from themselves. Some of the worst cases 
are pregnant women and frantic parents. Yet it is our officers in 
the field who must look into the •• tortured faces and report that 
there are no treatment beds available. What's worse, there 
probably never will be for them. They will be denied help in the 
greatest country in the world. That makes no sense. 

The problem goes beyond serving people who are on their own. Our 
criminal Justice system is ill-equipped to help those in custody. 
Lock-up, without treatment and counseling, i. the status quo. 
This does little to prepare anyone for re-entry into society. The 
prison door revolves. They're in, they're out. It's predictable. 
They're back. Or they're dead. 

A nation at war deploys its forces based on what they do best. We 
do not. You should do what you do best; and let us do likewise. 
Some of the initiatives passed by this Congress read more like 
local ordinanoes or internal policy document.. For example, jobs 
are important. They keep our kids off the street. They qive them 
alternatives to drugs and crime -- confidence, pocket money, self­
worth. Yet, the cookie cutter approach you just approved with 
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respect to funding the summer jobs program treats every local 
government the same. Our communities, our pa~tnerships, even our 
school years, vary. The turn-around timeo in that program applied 
to our west Central Florida school schedule and combined with 
other bureaucratic nonsense make' it almost impossible, if not 
impossible, for us to spend the money. That's crazy. We need 
summer jobS for our youth. Trust your mayors to spend money in 
the manner which suits our communities, which are your 
communities, as well. A congressional daily lesson plan, if you 
will, is not essential. And, with all due respect, you do not do 
it well. 

What you £SD do well is develop national and international 
policies which cut into illegal drugs as a money making business. 
The bulk of drugs which kill in Tampa are grown abroad, in 
countries which are otherwi~e our friendS. Dirt-poor rice farmers 
eventually learn that they can substantially improve their lot 
with a great cash crop; coca. Mayors are not equipped to tackle 
that problem. You are. 

I come from Florida, whose coastline provides a wealth of 
opportunity for enterprising drug runners. You can ~ake sure that 
this coastal border is secure. We can't do that as well as you. 
Another opportunity for you to assist us would be to declare all 
of Florida a Drug Tr~fficking Area under the Federal Drug Control 
Act. That's hardly a good P.R. move for our Sunshine state, bl~t 
our Florida Department of LaW Enforcement advises us that it is 
just about a reality. It's more than a label. Such a designation 
would produce more funds for us. More importantly, it will cut a 
lot of the bU.reaucratic drill in drawing down those funG~. 

A nation at war stops the enemy before it ~4ts a hold. You can 
and should play to your strengths. Don't tie our hands. stop the 
enemy with aggressive international and national policie~. 

We need your help to beef up our offense at the neighborhood 
level, taking our community back block by block. We hear a lot 
about "weed and seed". That has been our .trate~ in Tampa, if 
not our buzz word, all along. Let me briefly de.cr1be a few local 
programs Which exemplify what we believe is meant by weed and 
seed. 

JUMP STAR'!' 

When the crisi. blew up in Loa Angeles, we were, of course, 
concerned. As our teams fanned out, we were heartened to discover 
that lIIan~{ who had been troublemakers in past Tampa disturbances 
were not interested in rock and bottle throwing. Why? They now 
have jobs. Through Project JUllIp ,start, we identified the young 
men who had used their leadership skills in very destructive ways. 
We recognized that frustration was the cause which translated what 
could be constructive leaders into ring leaders. Now, due to 
action before a social explosion, the.e young men realize their 
salf-worth in a program which is design.d to explore and develop 
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job opportunities for Housing Authority residents and their 
neigr~ors. The primary objective is gainful employment with a 
long-range scope, thereby, stabilizing and then enhancinq what 
were unstabl~ neighborhoods. 

The City filled twenty-five (25) On-the-Job Training funded slots 
with residents from the target areas. we could do this due to the 
cooperation of private companies which hired our applicants. In 
addition, our Hillsborough Community College agreed to allocate 
thirty-two (32) slots to Project Jump start participants under a 
special work/study arrangement. Project Jump start agreed to pay 
for all classes and relatecl expenses in full. 

supportive services such as the following are offered when 
needed; 

*Bus passes (f~r those with transportation problems) 

"Fees paid for: 

a. Driver's License 
b. Chauffeur's License 
c. State 1.0. card 
d. Mandatory Driver's and Drug Classes required by 

Department of Motor Vehicles. 

*Work uniforms, hard-toe shoes, and other 
necessary to begin work and make for a smooth 
into employment. 

*Eye examinations and glasses. 

items 
entry 

*Counsolinq and referrals to other social services as 
needed.. 

Thus far the results are positive. Twenty-five (25) applicants 
have been hired with Mayor's O. J • 'r • funds. and one hundred and 
thirty (130) clirectly by the private sector or through 
Hillsborough Community colleqe. Since January of 1991, one 
hundred and fifty-five (155) have found a better way. 

Another local Buccess story is found in Project REAP. The 
Resident Enterprise Assistance Program as.ists public hOUsing 
residents by providing management and technical assistance for 
those who dream of owning and operating their own businesses. 
Participants start with goods or .ervice enterprises which are 
suitable for contracting with THA. In time, they branch out to 
other public and. then private sector opportunitie., thereby 
spawning community-based businesses in an innovative incubator 
program. 
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Q.U,A.D. 

We have also harnessed the energy of our citizens who have 
i!lgg-ressively reclaimed their own neighborhoods thl"Ough our 
nationallY accldllled C.U.A.D. program. 

The Qui~k Uniform Attack on Drugs targets the users as well as the 
sellers of illicit drugs. A combination of uniformed and 
pli!lin-clothes officers pursue illegal drug activity in assigned 
geographic areas. They appear to be everywhere. They work hand 
in hand with civic groups, religious organizations, and individual 
citizens. The Q.U.A.O. System joins police and citizens together 
to make our community a safer place to live and work. 

The strategy is city-wide. The commitment is total, long-term. 
citizens with neighborhood drug complaints are active and real 
participants in the eradication. Reeponse is ill\ll1ediate and 
guaranteed. The confidentiality of citizens' complaints is 
sacrosanct and they are protected from exposure to retalii!ltion or 
intimidation. Furthermore, all police bureaus or divisions and 
all city departments provide back-up. Our housing inspectors and 
code enforcement officers are crucial players. Condemnation 
procedures against drug dens became real when private demolition 
and waste hauling companies joined in to aasist us and demolish 
and cart away crack houses. New o~inances such ae one on 
Nuisi!lnce Abatement gave teeth to the system from othgr tha,n solely 
a law enforcement approach. There i. active ~edia involvement to 
enhance public education and support. 

DRUG COURT TREATMENT AND REHABILITATION PROGRAM 

We would be remiss if we did not speak to some of our wonderful 
efforts involving those who are within the Criminal Justice 
system. We work with our colleague. on the Hillsborough County 
Commission and have invested $165,000 in U.s. Dopartment of 
Justice Anti-Drug Abuse Act fund. to implement our new Drug court 
Treatment and Rehabilitation Program. This will be m~tched by 
just under $55,000 in local dollars. 

As an innovative diversionary alternative dealing with fi'rst-time 
drug defendants, thim program will provide outpatient 
detoxification through acupuncture, supplemented by an addictions 
treatment plan tailored to each client. First-time defendi!lnts 
charged with cocaine use (Dealers are excluded.) will enter a 
twelve-month structured, three-tiered treatment regimen, with 
expungement of the original charge as the incentive for auccessful 
completion. As an affordable alternative to expensive residential 
programs, this will alleviate overcroWded dockets. We expect to 
serve 100 pre-trial defendants during the first year, far .hort Qf 
the number in need but at lea.t a start. 
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Excellent an~ established programs are tound in DACCO. 

Drug Abuse Comp~ehensive Coordinating ottice, a not-for-profit 
comprehensiv0 prevention and treatment agency, provides a 
continuum of services for substance abusers. In addition to 
traditional outpatient counseling and methadone treatment and 
residential ca~e, DACCO provides numerous innovative programs 
including: 

*A tlay treatment program for substance abusing preqrlant 
and ~ost partum women and their children. Child care, 
transportation, education and job development services 
are provided in addition to intensive group and 
individual counseling five days a week. 

*A school-based prevention program with a Prevention 
Specialist on site at each junior and senior high 
school and alternative schools for youth unable to 
succeed in the traditional setting'. 

*A specialized residential pI'ogram desiqned to divert 
substance abusing offenders from prison. The two-phase 
program includes an employment component. 

*Traditional Apartment Living primarily for recovering 
addicts in a safe, affordable, supportive environment 
for recovering addicts to live. 

*Project HOPE. This HIV/AIDS prevention and 
inter>'ention program includes mobile outreach vans that 
go into HIV/AIDS high-risk areas to distribute 
information and make referrals. other health related 
issues are also addressed and case management, 
transportation, nursing service., and counseling are 
provided to at-risk and HIV positive symptomatic AIDS 
clients. 

CHALLENG~ 

Jobs and treatment are important. But one of the areas I consider 
most crucial i. Affordable Housing. The stress and frustration 
which can drive someone to drug abuse is often compounded by the 
lack of adequate safe, secure and atfordable housing. Rottinq 
neighborhoods provide a perfect breeding ground tor crimes of drug 
use and abuse. We have invasted a great deal ot local private and 
public money and talent assisting our housing authority with 
enhancing and improving the quality of lite in its very well 
defined community. we have done this d •• pite numerous hassles 
from the federal bureaucracy regarding what constitutes 
appropriate expenditures ot their tund., appropriate credits of 
funds or in-kind services we secure, or a legitimate modification 
of any urlits or public housing propertiea. 
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Through our nationally acclaimed Challenge FUnd, home ownership 
is reality for thousands of citizens. An outstanding team of 
lenders, not-for-profits, builders and other housing related 
professiona1& has made this possible. The program has assisted 
with the development, construction and rehabilitation of rental 
properties, as well. 

MAYOR'S OWN-A-HOKE 

The Mayor's Own-A-Home Program is a partnership effort by the city 
of Tampa and oUr Housing Authority to promote home ownership 
opportunities for residents of public housing or for section S 
participants. We leverage Federal community Development Block 
Grant funds with private financing obtained through our Challenge 
Fund. 

Condemned and/or vacant houses are identified by the city and 
various non-prOfit housing service organizations. Once a hOllle has 
been approved for purchase and/or rehabilitation, Challenge FUnd 
bank dollars are used to purchase the property and to cover part 
of the cost of repairs; community Development Block Grant funds, 
loaned on a deferred payment basiS, are used to rehabilitate it. 

When a home is determined to be a candidate for the Mayor's OWn-A­
Home Program, the public hOUSing and non"protit staffs also begin 
outreach activities to id.ntify potential low and moderate income 
home-owners. Any resident of public housing or of section s 
subsidized housing may apply to purchase a home. Candidates are 
screened to insure that they have a stable employment situation, 
and a satisfactory credit report and history of rental payments. 
Given the ability to pay, suitable debt-to-incame ratio and 
adequate credit rating, the applicant then selects the home of his 
or her choice from the inventory of the Mayor's CWn-A-Home homes. 
Qualifying individuals then submit loan applications to Challenge 
Fund local lenders through the non-profit organization. 

The Mayor's OWn-A-Home Program is a model for HOD's "Up and Out" 
efforts to end the cycle of dependency on public housing through 
home ownership. It succe •• fully addr •••• s the ne.d to 
rehabilitate substandard housing units and it greatly expands the 
opportunities for at fordable home ownership by low-income 
families, some of whom are third-generation occupants of public 
housing. The program is makini a' significant contribution to the 
revitalization and stabll zation of Tampa's daclininq 
neighborhoods and provides a source of pride for its ditizens. 

Mr. Chairman, Ladies and Gentlsmen, you requested information on 
sOllie of Tampa's suocess stories. I am honored and proud to have 
been given the opportunity to represent the wonderful partnerShip 
t.1llII which makes these programs work. 10u alllo asked wllat you can 
do to help, I cannot over-~phasize how important it is for us to 
d.clare ii, real war on drugs. li'. are partners, you and I. As 
partners we must fashion strategies which meet the three 
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principles in my openinq remarks. We mu~t use evcryth!;n>T I!;t. (Ill;;' 
disposal. We must deploy our feder5i, state amI :i:;,,~,,1 ~orces 
pased on what each is best equipp9?, f,;;O do" Finl:;lly, ~;~ ii!.I,;j,:.r!;; stop 
the enemy .. before it gets a hold. 

Thank you • 
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Chai~man Rangel and members of the Select Committee: 

Thank you for allowing me to submit for the record testimony on the scourge of drug 

abuse that is devastating the health and safety of our people -- and on the 1992 National 

Drug Control Strategy that has been offered as a response. As Mayor of a city that has 

been hit very, very hard by drug abuse -- as someone who is truly battling the problem on 

the front-lines -- it is important for rile to discuss some of the shortcomings of the federal 

government's proposed strategy, so that we can work together to ensure that it meets the 

needs of our cities, and of Jill Americans, during these very tough times. 

Let me begin by saying that ~ertain portions of the Strategy are indeed worthy of 

praise. I am especially pleased that the strategy is aimed at both casual use and hard-core 

addiction. But despite the progress that has been mad~ to curb casual drug use in the 

suburbs, we simply have not done enough to attack the main problem -- addiction in our 

urban centers. In this area, the resources from Washington do not follow the rhetoric. The 

federal government must work harder -- and offer more dollars -- to help cities fight hard-

core drug addiction. 

In New York City, the human and financial consequences of drug abuse are 

absolutely devastating. The statistics speak for themselves -- and they speak volumes. 

Between 1980 and 1989, New York City experienced a 400 percellt increase in the number 

of babies born to substance abusing mothers. 

And the problem elo:tends far' beyond the maternity ward. Our Child Welfare 

Administration estimates that almost one-quarter of all child abuse and neglect cases involve 
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parental substance abuse. This means that 18,000 children each year may enter foster care 

because their parents use drugs. 

We see substance abuse on our streets and in our schools as well. According to a 

recent report by our Commission on Homelessness, as many as 80 percent of our homeless 

suffer from substance abuse. Unless we tackle the problem of drug abuse -- we can never 

begin to solve the many social problems that plague our cities. 

It is gratifying to see the National Drug Control Strategy acknowledge for the first 

time that alcohol is a drug, and is the gateway drug for young people. Because there are 

over 100,000 drug abusers between the ages of 12 and 17 in New York City. And this 

number does not even begin to capture the' extent of alcohol abuse among our teenagers. 

As these statistics imply, drug abuse has had a cr.ippling impact on our ability to 

delivet social and health services to the citizens of New York City. This is especially true 

when we consider the link between drugs, HIV / AIDS, and drug-resistant T.B. Of the 

200,000 intravenous drug users in New York City, approximately 50 percent are HIV 

positive, and the rest are at risk of infection because of their continned drug use. And our 

anecdotal evidence of "sex-for-drugs" transactions -- usually involving Cfl!ck -- tells us that 

the 300,000 to 400,000 non-intravenous drug users in New York City may also be at great 

risk of HIV infection as a result of their addiction. 

Right now, intravenous drug abusers account for at least half of all newly diagnosed 

AIDS cases in New York City. The consequences of these twin epidemics are staggering. 

Our Department of Health estimates that by the end of this decade, as many as 50,000 

children will lose one or both parents to AIDS. According to the New York State 
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Department of Social Services, the lifetime medical costs for each drug abuser who develops 

AIDS will exceed 90,000 dollars. 

In this context, we must appreciate that effective drug treatment and prevention are 

not only good social and health policy, but also sound fiscal policy. These kinds of programs 

prevent the disease of addiction before we pay millions to ~ it 00 or to punish it, for that 

matter. 

Consider the case of New York City's Family Rehabilitation Program, which provide 

drug treatment and intensive foster care prevention to families whose children are at risk 

of being placed in foster care due to their parents' substance abuse. The cost of the Family 

Rehabilitation Program may seem high - 15,000 dollars per family. But when you compare 

it to foster care costs 00 on average, 120,000 dollars..in city, state, and federal funds for a 

drug abusing family 00 it's truly a bargain. 

As the National Drug Control Strategy points out, children of drug addicts stay in 

foster care much longer than other children, placing an additional burden on our child 

welfare system. So far, the Family Rehabilitation Program has proven successful for 7 out 

of 10 families served, and by 1996 this innovative program may save the city, state and 

federal governments as much as 290 million dollars in foster care costs. 

This analysis does not even include the money we will save on other problems related 

to drug abuse 00 such as homelessness, AIDS services, emergency room care, and special 

education. 

Of course, there are other aspects of the National Drug Control Strategy that deserve 

special praise. I support O.N.D.C.P.'s decision to focus its law enforcement efforts on 
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dismantling drug trafficking networks, disrupting supply routes, and removing local street 

dealers. 

As the strategy notes, New York City is the nation's major port of entry for heroin. 

In a highly alarming trend, law enforcement officials have recently reported an upsurge in 

the supply of heroin entering New York City. I share the Bush Administration's concern 

about this issue, and I pledge the complete cooperation of New York City's criminal justice 

agencies with federal law enforcement authorities to stop the flow of tllis deadly substance. 

As some of you may know, I prOmised that my administration would be the toughest on 

crime that New York City has ever seen -- a pledge we are carrying out by filling our streets 

with thousands of new police officers. And we're going to apply our ingenuity and resources 

to this problem as well. 

But while I share the Bush Administration's desire to reduce the supply of drugs, law 

enforcement alone cannot adequately address this problem. The toll -- in human lives, and 

in taxpayers's dollars -- is simply too great to ignore early prevention and treatment efforts. 

And as you understand better than anyone, Chairman Rangel, the connection between urban 

drug abuse prevention and economic revitalization is crucial. 

Thus, I'm pleased that the President has adopted your innovative proposal for 

"superzones" as described in the Enterprise Communities Incentivc.}Act. The National Drug 

Control Strategy recommends adding an economic development dimension to "Operation 

Weed and Seed," which targets poor neighborhoods with high rates of crime and 

unemployment associated with drug activity. "Weed and Seed" will now combine law 
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enforcement; community-based social services, including drug treatment and prevention; and 

education with economic development and revitalization initiatives. 

I understand that the Administration has proposed providing 500 million dollars for 

"Weed and Seed," with 80 percent targetted to enterprise zones in FY 1993. The 

Administration's proposal would provide these funds by cutting other domestic programs -­

many of which have already been devastated, and cannot stand further cuts. Therefore, I 

urge Congress to support entirely new funding for a "Weed and Seed" or similar initiatives. 

I cannot support any effort to take money from existing programs and channel it to "Weed 

and Seed." 

I also urge you to: 1) provide the "Weed and Seed" funds directly to the local unit 

of government, 2) allow local mayors to determine the tru:.get neighborhoods; and 3) allow 

us at· the community level to plan and prioritize the programs needed in these 

neighborhoods. 

In New York City, we are already working closely with Otto Oberrnaier, the U.S. 

Attome~ for the Southern District of New York, on a "Weed and Seed" type project, using 

money from the High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area initiative. This project, however, 

covers only one small neighborhood of New York, when several should qualify. With a drug 

abusing populathn of over 600,000, we should have four or five "Weed and Seed" projects 

in New York. The current application process overseen by the Department of Justice, 

however, does not include New York City at all. I hope that this will be changed under the 

new "Weed and Seed" proposal being debated in Congress. 
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Furthermore, I believe it's time for drug treatment and prevention to catch up with 

law enforcement and interdiction on our national agenda. Now, I'm not saying we should 

reduce the budget for enforcement and interdiction. But we must ~ our commitment 

to treatment and prevention. O.N.D.C.P.'s strategy does contain several noteworthy 

suggestions on demand reduction. The Administration has again proposed the Capacity 

Expansion Program, aimed at increasing drug treatment resources in the areas hardest hit 

by hard-core abuse. 

The availability of appropriate treatment programs in New York City is simply 

inadequate. Our existing treatment network can only serve about 48,000 addicts at any 

given time. And 70 percent of these slots are in methadone programs that treat only heroin 

addiction. Thus, only 30 percent of the available treatment resources are suitable for over 

two-thirds of the city's addicts. It just doesn't make sense. That's why New York needs the 

Capacity Expansion Program, and I urge Congress to allocate funds for this Program. 

There are other things Congress can do to enhance New York City's ability to 

provide substance abuse services to at-risk populations. I urge Congress to fully fund the 

Ryan White Care Act. Thus far, New York City has used over 3 million dollars of its Ryan 

. White money to provide substance abuse services to HIV / AIDS infected addicts, the fastest 

growing population of AIDS victims. It is also essential that Congress re-authorize and 

~ the appropriation for the McKinney Act grant program, to provide drug treatment 

to the homeless. 

I applaud O.N.D.C.P.'s recommendation that states a~d localities increase their use 

of alternative sanctions for drug-related offenses, such as electronic home monitoring 
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combined with substance abuse services. The extent of the drug problem among the 

criminal justice population is well documented. A 1989 study at the New York City 

Department of Correction found that 58 percent of those inmates surve:yed admitted to a 

past problem with drugs and/or alcohol. 

Data from the Drug Use Forecasting System for 1990 indicates that 76 percent of 

those. arrested in Manhattan tested positive for drugs. Many non-violent offenders who 

abuse drugs commit crimes to support their addiction. By incarcerating these criminals we 

may be punishing them, but without substance abuse treatment, there's hardly a chance we 

can rehabilitate them. 

Unfortunately, the National Drug Control Strategy does not appear to include any 

new money for the alternative sanctions it recommends. ! encourage Congress to take the 

lead on this issue, and allocate resources for localities to carry out these creative projects. 

Along similar lines, the provision of the Omnibus Crime Control Bill which funds 

drug treatment for state prison inmates should be fully funded and amended to include 

substance abuse services in local correctional facilities -- and community-based treatment 

for our inmates once they are released, so that our investment in their health and welfare 

is not lost. The Substance Abuse Intervention Division -- we call it "SAID" -- operated by 

the New York City Department of Correction, is a good model for jail-based treatment and 

intervention. Serving approximately 13,000 drug abusing inmates each year, SAID provides 

structured services 7 days a week, 12 hours a day. I believe that programs like SAID meet 

the Admihistration's Strategy Drug goal to expand and improve treatment for drug-

dependent offenders, and are worthy of federal funding. 
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Finally, I caution the Bush Administration against labeling certain groups - such as 

pregnant and parenting women, intravenous drug users, and adolescents -- as "hard-to-reach" 

populations until we have in fact tried to reach them. 

New York City'S Family Rehabilitation Program is one successful example of 

engaging a so-called "hard-to-reach" population -- parenting women. With a small federal 

grant, we have been able to expand that program to serve approximately 85 pregnant 

addicts. However, our local Health Department estimates that H.ililQ precious babies will 

be born to addicted mothers in the coming year. If you've ever held in your arms a baby 

exposed to crack, then you know the profound tragedy of even .Qilll addicted baby. In yet 

another example of New York City's resourcefulness, my Office of Drug Abuse Policy. in 

collaboration with Harlem Hospital and the Board of Education, has established a 

therapeutic nursery to provide intensive educational and developmental services to children 

exposed to drugs "in utero." 

The fact is, we in the cities of our nation have the ability to reach even the toughest 

populations. What we lack in many cases are the dollars and cents. And that's where the 

federal government can play it~ most effective role. In addition to funding the federal 

initiatives discussed previously, I recommend that Congress and the President reform the 

Medicaid laws to allow reimbursement for residential drug treatment for pregnant and 

postpartum women. 

By providing a steady funding source, Medicaid reimbursement encourages health 

care providers to open and maintain programs dedicated to female addil:ts. I understand 

that many will greet such a recommendation with trepidation. But the time has come for 
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the entire nation to realize that drug treatment for pregnant women will reduce other 

entitlement costs, and save money in the short and long term, for taxpayers across the 

nation. 

In closing, I must say that it is deeply disturbing to me that the Bush Administration 

and Congress will not meet the same "maintenance of effort" requirements that it is 

attempting to impose on states and localities. Drug abuse is a long-term problem, and it 

requires an ongoing financial commitment from the federal government. Drug treatment 

and prevention save the city, state and federal governments a tremendous amount of money 

in health care, child welfare, and criminal justice, as well as saving human lives and helping 

families. It is short-sighted and just plain wrong for the administration to propose programs 

and then fund them for only two or three years. 

"If the "Weed and Seed" program is to succeed, the federal government must make 

a ,long-term commitment to funding it. While we encourage the development of new 

pl'pgrams, in the context of state and local fiscal crises, limited federal commitment dooms 

th~se programs to wither before they are ever able to bear fruit. 

Not only must more money for comprehensive treatment and prevention go into 

cities, but also the information gap on which the Nat.ional Drug Strategy is based must be 

closed. Each city is concerned that the Administration's drug prevalence surveys -- the 

NIDA Household Survey,. the DAWN statistics, and the Survey of High School Seniors --

may significantly understate urban drug use. Unanimously, we want a better measure. We 

suggest that the Select Committee work with Mayors from large cities across the nation to 
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develop a proposal to study drug prevalence in the cities. A non-partisan group like the 

Joint Center for Political and Economic Studies would be an ideal resource for this project. 

These are complex issues, and in many ways, our responses will determine the future 

of our cities and our entire nation -- because with every passing year, the problem only 

grown and intensifies. Together, we can reverse this ugly trend, by investing in programs 

that prevent drug abuse as well as punishing it; and by worrying not only about the overseas 

cartels, but also about the inner-city communities that are the victims of the problem. 

Thank you. 
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